
AGENDA 
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
February 12, 2024 

 
CALL TO ORDER 5:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL Directors McLaughlin, Withers, Swan, LaMar, and President Reinhart 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT NOTICE 

 
Public comments are limited to three minutes per speaker on each subject.  If you wish to address 
the Board of Directors on any item, you may attend the meeting in person and submit a “speaker 
slip” to the Secretary.  Forms are provided outside of IRWD’s Board Room.  If attending via 
Webex, please submit your request to speak, or your comment, via the “chat” feature and your 
remarks will be read into the record at the meeting.  You may also submit a public comment in 
advance of the meeting by emailing comments@irwd.com before 12:00 p.m. on Monday, 
February 12, 2024. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 
 
1. Written: 
 
2. Oral: 
 
3. ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
 

Recommendation:  Determine the need to discuss and/or take immediate action on 
item(s).  

This meeting will be held in-person at the District’s headquarters located at 15600 Sand Canyon 
Avenue, Irvine, California.  The meeting will also be broadcasted via Webex for those wanting 
to observe the meeting virtually. 
 
To observe this meeting virtually, please join online using the link and information below: 
 
Via Web:  https://irwd.webex.com/irwd/j.php?MTID=m5fc1735966012302d7dea60f165bb31d 
Meeting Number (Access Code):  2480 241 8846 
Meeting Password:  ZZcJxPua632 (99259782 from video systems) 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  Webex observers of the meeting will be placed into the Webex lobby when the 
Board enters closed session.  Participants who remain in the “lobby” will automatically be 
returned to the open session of the Board once the closed session has concluded.  Observers 
joining the meeting while the Board is in closed session will receive a notice that the meeting has 
been locked.  They will be able to observe the meeting once the closed session has concluded. 

mailto:comments@irwd.com


IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting 
February 12, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

PRESENTATION 
 
4. 2023 COMMUNICATIONS OUTREACH RESULTS 
 

Recommendation:  Receive and file. 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR, Items 5 through 7 
 
5. BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

Recommendation:  That the minutes of the January 22, 2024 Regular Board 
meeting be approved as presented. 

 
6. 2024 LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY UPDATE 
 
 The Board adopt a “sponsor/support” position on AB 1827 (Papan), a “seek 

amendments” position on AB 805 (Arambula) and SB 937 (Weiner), and a 
“watch” position on AB 1820 (Schiavo). 

 
7. WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENTS FOR TUSTIN LEGACY SPECIFIC PLAN 

AMENDMENT AND TUSTIN MARKET PLACE PROJECT 
 

Recommendation:  That the Board approve the Water Supply Assessment for the 
Tustin Legacy Specific Plan Amendment and the Water Supply Assessment for 
the Tustin Market Place Project. 

 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, members of the Board of Directors or staff may ask questions for 
clarification, make brief announcements, and make brief reports on his/her own activities.  The Board or a Board member 
may provide a reference to staff or other resources for information, request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting 
concerning any matter, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.  Such matters may be brought up 
under the General Manager’s Report or Directors’ Comments.  Pursuant to AB 1234 and Government Code Section 
53232.3(d), a written draft report of the meetings that any Board member attended on behalf of IRWD since the last Board 
Meeting will be available at the table near the Board Room entrance, and will be amended verbally, if necessary, during 
Directors’ Comments. 
 
8. General Manager’s Report 
 
  



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting 
February 12, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS (Continued) 
 
9. Receive oral update(s) from District liaison(s) regarding communities within IRWD’s 

service area and interests. 
 
10. Directors’ Comments and Meeting Reports 
 
11. CLOSED SESSION 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION — 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1):  Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water 
Storage District and Irvine Ranch Water District v. The Dow Chemical Company, 
et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-22-100041. 

 
12. Open Session 
 
13. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*************************************************************************************************************** 
Availability of agenda materials:  Agenda exhibits and other writings that are disclosable public records distributed to all or a majority of the members of 
the above-named Board in connection with a matter subject to discussion or consideration at an open meeting of the Board are available for public inspection 
in the District’s office, 15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California (“District Office”).  If such writings are distributed to members of the Board less 
than 72 hours prior to the meeting, they will be available from the District Secretary of the District Office at the same time as they are distributed to Board 
Members, except that if such writings are distributed one hour prior to, or during, the meeting, they will be available electronically via the Webex meeting 
noted.  Upon request, the District will provide for written agenda materials in appropriate alternative formats, and reasonable disability-related modification 
or accommodation to enable individuals with disabilities to participate in and provide comments at public meetings. Please submit a request, including your 
name, phone number and/or email address, and a description of the modification, accommodation, or alternative format requested at least two days before 
the meeting.  Requests should be emailed to comments@irwd.com.  Requests made by mail must be received at least two days before the meeting. Requests 
will be granted whenever possible and resolved in favor of accessibility. 



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



No. 4 2023 Digital Communications OutreachNo. 4 2023 Digital Communications Outreach 4 

February 12, 2024 
Prepared by: J. Fabris 
Submitted by: C. Compton 
Approved by: Paul A. Cook 

PRESENTATION 

2023 COMMUNICATIONS OUTREACH RESULTS 

SUMMARY: 

The 2023 calendar year began with atmospheric rivers bringing a substantial amount of rain to 
California, and the urgency of California’s drought began receding from public consciousness.  
Despite above average rainfall statewide, IRWD continued to teach its customers how to use 
water more efficiently.  A key part of that effort was the IRWD 2023 Communication and Public 
Outreach campaign.  To maintain and improve IRWD customers’ water efficiency, the District 
sought to: 

• Cut through crisis fatigue and advertising clutter to reach customers;

• Change customers’ perception of what constitutes a beautiful yard; and

• Inspire customers to take advantage of IRWD programs to help them transform their
yards and use water more wisely.

Using video and targeted calls to action, IRWD captured and increased customers’ attention 
using new tools and approaches on various digital communications platforms.  This led to a new 
all-time high of 18.6 million digital impressions in 2023.  Meanwhile, participation in rebate and 
water-efficiency programs increased significantly, and per-capita water usage was 14% lower 
than before the drought.  At the Board meeting, staff will recap the 2023 campaigns, present key 
metrics, and offer a look ahead to the District’s 2024 campaigns. 

BACKGROUND: 

A year ago, staff provided the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee a recap 
of the District’s digital customer outreach in 2022 – a year in which IRWD increased its use of 
video and strategic social media campaigns, fine-tuned its email campaigns, grabbed customers’ 
attention with humor, leveraged the popularity and expertise of IRWD’s Water Efficiency staff, 
and built educational webpages to help customers transform their yards to save water.  The first 
half of that year focused largely on education, but when a statewide drought emergency was 
declared, staff changed the outreach strategy to address the drought more directly and prioritized 
the delivery of drought messaging to customers as broadly and frequently as possible.  The 2022 
effort resulted in 9,951,445 digital impressions. 

In 2023, with the drought ending due to extensive precipitation throughout the state, the District 
pivoted its customer outreach reach away from drought messaging.  The outreach continued 
using video and strategic social media campaigns, fine-tuned email campaigns, humor, and 
leveraging the popularity and expertise of IRWD’s Water Efficiency staff to reach IRWD 
customers.  The outreach also continued to use greater audience segmentation and focused on 
delivering messages designed to inspire customers to act. 



Presentation:  2023 Communications Outreach Results 
February 12, 2024 
Page 2 

2023 Digital Outreach Approach: 

IRWD remains committed to helping its customers become more and more efficient with their 
water use – particularly outside.  To inspire tangible change in customer behavior, staff again 
focused the District’s 2023 outreach campaigns with clear calls to action (e.g., signing up for the 
Sprinkler Repair Program, attending water efficiency workshops, and participating in the turf-
replacement and spray-to-drip-irrigation-conversion rebate programs) and used humor to cut 
through crises and message fatigue. 

To reach new and untapped audiences, the following approaches were implemented: 

• Outreach in Multiple Languages:  Episodes of The Shed Show were re-released with
subtitles to reach IRWD’s Korean- and Chinese-speaking customers; and

• New Platforms to Reach New Audience Segments:  In addition to the more traditional
Facebook, Instagram, and YouTube platforms, IRWD’s humorous Sprinkler Repair
Program campaign videos were delivered on Nextdoor and Basis TV, which includes
connected TV platforms such as Roku, Apple, and FireTV.  The quick 15-second video
format helped ensure customers saw the entire message.

In social media parlance, an impression occurs when a user sees the content.  The more 
impressions, the more the message is in front of customers’ eyes.  In 2023, IRWD garnered 
18,621,720 impressions from its digital communications outreach, nearly twice the 2022 number.  
The impressions yielded in IRWD’s 2023 campaigns are shown below: 

Month(s) 
of 

Outreach 

Communications Outreach 
(Event, Campaign, 

Program) 

No. of 
Impressions 

Jan Shed Show 3:  Watering Tips (English only) 854,912 
Feb Wastey, the World's Worst Water Mascot 5,787,404 
Mar Fix A Leak Sweepstakes 169,470 
Jul Fix Your Sprinklers Workshop 201,716 

Jun-Sep Shed Show 3:  Watering Tips (reboot in English, Korean, Chinese) 1,919,701 
Aug-Dec Sprinkler Repair Program 4,309,676 

Oct Log a Leak tool 23,769 
Jan-Dec Community Tours 19,635 

Jan-Dec Mailchimp email opens (The Dirt, semi-monthly newsletter 
focusing on events including H2O Show 'n' Tell) 166,772 

Jan-Dec 
WaterInsight email opens (The Wave, event-specific emails 

focusing on Shed Show Road Shows, Fix Your Sprinklers, Don't 
Spring a Leak) 

170,113 

Jan-Dec Plant Like a Local workshop series 118,931 
Jan-Dec UCI Fan 365 website display 1,594,283 
Jan-Dec Various informational and educational social media posts (organic) 3,285,338 

 Total Number Of Impressions 18,621,720 



Presentation:  2023 Communications Outreach Results 
February 12, 2024 
Page 3 

Impact of 2023 Outreach: 

Although it is impossible to quantify causation or identify one single cause for customers 
becoming more water efficient, there is a noticeable correlation between the District’s 2023 
outreach and customer water savings and engagement in IRWD’s water efficiency programs.  As 
IRWD’s 2023 campaigns made more impressions, the District saw an increase in customers 
taking advantage of IRWD rebates and making gains in water efficiency.  A few examples of the 
increase in customer participation are: 

• Sprinkler Repair Program:  Sprinkler Repair Program applications in June-December
2023 increased 91% compared to those same months the prior year;

• Turf Removal Program:  With rebates from the District’s Turf Removal Program,
customers replaced 515,946 square feet of lawn with water-efficient landscape in 2023,
which was 151% more than in 2022, and 18 times more than in 2021; and

• Spray to Drip Program:  With rebates from the Spray to Drip Program, customers
converted 287,530 square feet of landscape from sprinklers to efficient drip irrigation —
115% more than in 2022, and 19 times more than in 2021.

The District also continued to see customer water savings.  Since June 2022, IRWD’s residential 
gallons per capita per day (R-GPCD) level has remained more than 14% below 2020 levels. 

Next Steps and 2024 Outreach: 

Building on 2023’s momentum, staff is developing a pair of digital campaigns for the first half of 
2024, highlighting the beauty of California-friendly landscape and encouraging customers to 
consider replacing their grass lawns.  This early 2024 outreach will lay the groundwork for a 
proposed long-term campaign, which is currently being developed.  The goal of the long-term 
campaign will be to change perceptions and behaviors to make beautiful, functional, water-
efficient outdoor spaces the trend and, in the long term, the norm within IRWD’s service area. 

Staff is currently gathering customer data to aid in development of a brand idea for this new 
campaign.  Opportunities to reach a younger audience, including millennials, are also being 
explored.  Staff expects that video and other digital messaging – designed for a wider variety of 
platforms – will also be key aspects of the long-term campaign. 

At the Board meeting, staff will provide an overview of this information using the draft 
presentation is attached as Exhibit “A”. 

FISCAL IMPACTS: 

None. 

COMMITTEE STATUS: 

This item was reviewed by the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee on 
February 7, 2024. 



Presentation:  2023 Communications Outreach Results 
February 12, 2024 
Page 4 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 

Not applicable. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

REVIEW AND FILE. 

LIST OF EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit “A” – 2023 Digital Communications Outreach Presentation Draft 



1

2023 COMMUNICATIONS 
OUTREACH RESULTS

Board of Directors’ Meeting

February 12, 2024

2

AGENDA

• Recap of the year’s key projects and
campaigns

• Video
• Social media
• Webpages

• A look at the data

• Correlations to water savings

• Sneak peek at what’s in store for 2024

1

2

A-1

DRAFT

Exhibit "A"



3

2023: A YEAR OF GROWTH 
AND TRANSFORMATION

• 2022 was a banner year for digital
outreach, but 2023 was better

• 2023 built on winning strategies with a
focus on video and audience segmentation

The result:
 Unsurpassed numbers on social media

 Unprecedented reach to new audiences via
translations and new platforms

 Quality engagements with customers

 Promising correlations between our campaigns
and customer water savings

4

THE SHED SHOW

IRWD.com/shedshow

A 3-episode landscaping series 
big on humor and graphics 

• Episode 1- Pollinator Gardens (10 mins)

• Episode 2- Big Ideas, Small Spaces
(10 mins)

• Episode 3- Landscaping (six 1-minute
shorts)

o Irrigation repairs & upgrades

o Beautifying yards

o Rebates for turf-replacement
& drip-conversion

• Episode 3 Reboot (with Korean and
Chinese subtitles/graphics)

3

4

A-2

DRAFT



5

2023 EPISODE IMPRESSIONS, VIDEO COMPLETIONS

Ep. 3: Landscaping Tips (6 x 1 min.)
• 854,912 impressions
• 238,907 video completions

Ep. 3:  Reboot
• 1.9 million impressions
• 603,562 video completions

Platforms:

Facebook        YouTube

Instagram Basis Connected TV 

6

7.2 million
impressions

1.2 million
video completions

Immeasurable
impact

TOTAL 2022-2023 SHED SHOW
IMPRESSIONS, COMPLETIONS

5

6

A-3

DRAFT



7

WASTEY THE WORST 
WATER MASCOT

• Campaign Period:

February 2023

• Results:
 5.8 million impressions

Nearly 1,000 shares & retweets

 578,893 engagements/video views

8

UCI ATHLETICS PARTNERSHIP

• Courtside signs

• Featured on ESPN+

• Fan365 digital banner ads

• AM-830 radio commercial

• UCI Athletics newsletter ads

• Restroom signs

• Events

• Campaign video

7

8

A-4

DRAFT



9

PETER THE ANTEATER SAVES WATER

10

SPRINKLER REPAIR 
PROGRAM CAMPAIGN

• Three short videos and static images featuring
Gary & Susan

• Use humor and “bad lip sync” voiceovers in
melodramatic scenes about sprinkler repairs

• 18-week run (Aug. – Dec.)

• Focus:

• Take advantage of the Sprinkler Repair
Program

• IRWD will send a professional to fix your
sprinklers and pay half the cost

9

10

A-5

DRAFT



11

Impressions:                 4,309,676

Meta Engagement Rate:  12.44%*
(*Meta’s average engagement rate is rarely over 3% in any industry)

Platforms:

Facebook   YouTube

Instagram Nextdoor     

Basis Connected TV 

SPRINKLER REPAIR 
PROGRAM CAMPAIGN

12

17

6
3 11 4

56

21 21

11
5 8

72

45

18

46 47

32

19 18

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

JUNE 
'22

JULY 
'22

AUG 
'22

SEPT 
'22

OCT 
'22

NOV 
'22

DEC 
'22

JAN 
'23

FEB 
'23

MAR 
'23

APR 
'23

MAY 
'23

JUNE 
'23

JULY 
'23

AUG 
'23

SEPT 
'23

OCT 
'23

NOV 
'23

DEC 
'23

SPRINKLER REPAIR PROGRAM PARTICIPATION

A
p

p
lic

a
tio

ns
 R

e
ce

iv
e

d

Program 
launch

Social media campaign

Lead story 
in Pipelines

Program participation from June‐December 2023 improved 91% 
vs. same months prior year

Post-
card

Lead story 
in Pipelines

11

12

A-6

DRAFT



13

EVENT PROMOTIONS

• Fix Your Sprinklers workshop

• Don’t Spring a Leak workshop

• Community Tours

• Plant Like a Local workshop series

• Prep for Fall Planting (September)

• Landscaping to Protect Our Ocean (October)

• Time to Plant (November)

First time combining workshops 
into a series and promoting them 

as one.

14

EVENT PROMOTION METRICS

• Fix Your Sprinklers
• Impressions: 202,328
• Attendance: 25

• Don’t Spring a Leak
• Impressions: 15,820
• Attendance: 52

• Community Tours
• Impressions: 21,448
• Attendance: 149

• Plant Like a Local series
• Impressions: 176,397
• Attendance: 68

13

14

A-7

DRAFT



15

2023 DIGITAL OUTREACH IMPRESSIONS

ImpressionsEvent, Campaign, ProgramTime period

854,912 Shed Show 3: Watering Tips (English only)Jan 

5,787,404 Wastey, the World's Worst Water MascotFeb

169,470 Fix A Leak SweepstakesMar

201,716 Fix Your Sprinklers WorkshopJul

1,919,701 Shed Show 3: Watering Tips (reboot in English, Korean, Chinese)Jun-Sep

4,309,676 Sprinkler Repair ProgramAug-Dec

23,769 Log a Leak toolOct

19,635 Community ToursJan-Dec

166,772 
Mailchimp email opens (The Dirt, semi-monthly newsletter focusing on events 

including H2O Show 'n' Tell)
Jan-Dec

170,113 
WaterInsight email opens (The Wave, event-specific emails focusing on Shed Show 

Road Shows, Fix Your Sprinklers, Don't Spring a Leak)
Jan-Dec

118,931 Plant Like a Local workshop seriesJan-Dec

1,594,283 UCI Fan 365 website displayJan-Dec

3,285,338 Various informational and educational social media posts (organic)Jan-Dec

18,621,720TOTAL 

16

2023 DIGITAL OUTREACH LESSONS

• Content is king — customers expect us to
be helpful and informative

• It’s more important than ever to ensure
messages are delivered the way
customers want

• All videos need captions

• Engagement is valuable

• People love videos

• People love videos

• Have we mentioned that people love
videos?

2020 2021 2022

7,597,351 

1,258,997 

9,951,445 

18,621,720

2023

Total Impressions

15

16

A-8

DRAFT



17

OUTREACH IS CREATING 
CHANGE

Compared to 2022: completions increased 55%

and square footage increased 151%

Square footage increased 18-fold since 2021

Compared to 2022: completions increased 26%

and square footage increased 115%

Square footage increased 19-fold since 2021

2021 2022 2023

Apps completed 23 86 133
Square feet 28,366 205,614 515,946

Turf replacement 

2021 2022 2023

Apps completed 12 42 53
Square feet 14,968 133,680 287,530

Spray to drip 

18

IRWD OUTREACH AND CUSTOMER WATER SAVINGS

Source: IRWD Water Efficiency department

Residential 
gallons 

per capita 
per day 

(R-GPCD)

Average 
monthly
R-GPCD:

2020

70
2022

64
2023

60
Since drought emergency declared R-GPCD 14% below 2020 baseline

17

18

A-9

DRAFT



19

GOALS FOR 2024

• Implement the tipping point campaign

• Right-size the number of impressions
needed to create impact

• Incorporate vertical video options into
every paid and organic social media
campaign

• Experiment with streaming audio

• Develop outreach strategies for email
campaigns

• Continue to revitalize IRWD.com

20

QUESTIONS?

19

20

A-10

DRAFT



No. 5 Minutes 5 

February 12, 2024 
Prepared and 
submitted by: L. Bonkowski 
Approved by: Paul A. Cook 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
SUMMARY: 

Provided are the minutes of the January 22, 2024 Regular Board meeting for approval. 

FISCAL IMPACTS: 

None. 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 

Not applicable. 

COMMITTEE STATUS: 

Not applicable. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT THE MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 22, 2024 REGULAR BOARD MEETING BE 
APPROVED AS PRESENTED. 

LIST OF EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit “A” – January 22, 2024 Minutes 



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 

A-1 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING – JANUARY 22, 2024 
 
The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) was 
called to order by President Reinhart at 5:00 p.m. on January 22, 2024 at the District offices, 
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine. 
 
Directors Present:  McLaughlin, Swan, Withers (arrived at 5:06 p.m.), LaMar, and Reinhart. 
 
Director Absent:  None. 
 
Oral and Written Communications:  None. 
 
Items too late to be agendized:  None. 
 
Also Present:  General Manager Cook, Executive Director of Operations Chambers, Executive 
Director of Water Policy Weghorst, Executive Director of Technical Services Burton, Executive 
Director of Finance and Administration Adly, Director of Water Quality and Regulatory 
Compliance Colston, Director of Water Resources Sanchez, Director of Human Resources 
Mitcham, Director of Safety and Security Choi, Director of Maintenance Manning, Director of 
Information Technology Kaneshiro, Director of Water and Recycling Operations Zepeda, Director 
of Treasury Morris, Director of Strategic Communication and Advocacy Compton, Director of 
Financial Planning and Data Analytics Smithson, Secretary Bonkowski, Assistant Secretary Swan, 
General Counsel Collins, Consultant Newell, and members of the staff and public. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Director Swan asked that Item No. 9 be moved to the Action Calendar for discussion.  This item 
was moved accordingly.  On MOTION by Swan, seconded by LaMar and unanimously carried, 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 5 THROUGH 8 WERE APPROVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
4. BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

Recommendation:  That the minutes of the December 11, 2023 Regular Board meeting 
and December 12, 2023 Adjourned Regular Board meeting be approved as presented. 

 
5. MEMORANDUM ON OFFICERS OF THE BOARD, COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 

AND OTHER ASSIGNMENTS 
 

Recommendation:  That the Board receive and file the memorandum dated January 22, 
2024 titled Officers of the Board, Committee Appointments and Other Assignments and 
approve attendance for meetings and events for the Board’s representation for calendar 
year 2024 as delineated. 

 
6. APPOINTMENT OF ASSISTANT TREASURER 
 

Recommendation:  That the Board appoint Neveen Adly as the Irvine Ranch Water 
District Assistant Treasurer effective January 22, 2024. 

  



A-2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONTINUED) 
 
7. DECEMBER 2023 TREASURY REPORT 
 
 Recommendation:  That the Board receive and file the Treasurer’s Investment Summary 

report, the summary of fixed and variable rate debt, and the disclosure report of 
reimbursements to Board members and staff, approve the December 2023 summary of 
payroll ACH payments in the total amount of $3,762,189, and approve the December 
2023 accounts payable disbursement summary of warrants 439830 through 440234, 
Workers’ Compensation distributions, ACH payments, virtual card payments, wire 
transfers, payroll withholding distributions, and voided checks in the total amount of 
$14,353,604. 

 
8. ADOPTION OF REVISED IRWD SCHEDULE OF POSITIONS AND SALARY RATE 

RANGES 
 
 Recommendation:  That the Board adopt the following resolution by title superseding 

Resolution No. 2023-16 and adopting a revised Schedule of Positions and Salary Rate 
Ranges for the General Unit, Non-Exempt Supervisor Unit, and for Managers, Exempt 
Supervisors, Confidential and Exempt Employees. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024 – 1 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT SUPERSEDING 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2023-16 AND ADOPTING A 

REVISED SCHEDULE OF POSITIONS AND SALARY 
RATE RANGES FOR THE GENERAL UNIT, NON-EXEMPT 

SUPERVISOR UNIT, AND FOR MANAGERS, EXEMPT 
SUPERVISORS, CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT EMPLOYEES 

 
 
ACTION CALENDAR 
 
9. FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 IRWD GUIDING PRINCIPLES SCORECARD 
 
In response to Director Swan’s inquiries, Director of Water Quality Colston provided the cause 
of the regulatory compliance incidents.  Additionally, staff said that a graph will be created 
showing the microturbine production at the Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facility.  There 
being no further discussion, on MOTION by Swan, seconded by LaMar and unanimously 
carried,  the FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 IRWD GUIDING PRINCIPLES SCORECARD WAS 
RECEIVED AND FILED. 
 
10. REMARKETING OF IRWD SERIES 2011A BONDS 
 
General Manager Cook said that staff placed before each Director a supplemental exhibit of the 
resolution reflecting nonsubstantive changes made by the District’s bond counsel.  Director of 
Treasury Morris reported that IRWD’s 2011 A-1 issue currently has $38.76 million of 
outstanding principal remaining, and IRWD’s 2011 A-2 issue has $25.84 million of outstanding 
principal remaining.  Mr. Morris said that the 2011A debt issues are remarketed annually by 



A-3 

Goldman Sachs based on a spread to the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association 
(SIFMA) weekly tax-exempt variable rate index.  He said that staff and the District's financial 
advisor Public Financial Management evaluated several remarketing alternatives available to the 
District and determined that the lowest annual all-in rate for the debt issues would be the daily 
variable rate mode with an annual net savings of approximately $930,000 in the first year. 
 
Mr. Morris said that staff and bond  counsel have prepared the draft revised Remarketing 
Statement reflecting the District’s most recent financial information, updated disclosure 
information, and other pertinent updates for the Series 2011A Bonds along with Amendment 
No. 1 to the Remarketing Agreement for the Series 2011A-1 Bonds, Amendment No. 2 to the 
Remarketing Agreement for the Series 2011A-2 Bonds, the Third Supplemental Indentures of 
Trust, and Reimbursement Agreements. 
 
Director Swan said that this item was reviewed by the Finance and Personnel Committee on 
December 5, 2023.  Following comments by staff and legal counsel, on MOTION by Swan, 
seconded by LaMar and unanimously carried. THE BOARD ADOPTED THE FOLLOWING 
RESOLUTION BY TITLE: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 

APPROVING THE REMARKETING STATEMENT 
RELATING TO UNSCHEDULED MANDATORY 

TENDERS OF THE BONDS OF 
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 

(REFUNDING SERIES 2011A-1 AND REFUNDING SERIES 2011A-2), 
AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE RELATED  

REMARKETING AGREEMENTS AND INDENTURES OF TRUST, 
AUTHORIZING REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENTS FOR LETTERS OF CREDIT, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF ALL RELATED DOCUMENTS 

 
 
11. DASH CAM AND TELEMATICS PLATFORM SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
Executive Director of Operations Chambers reported that the District currently manages a fleet 
of 240 vehicles equipped with separate telematics and dash camera systems which create 
significant maintenance challenges.  Ms. Chambers said that to improve operational efficiency, 
staff recommends implementing a cloud-based solution to seamlessly integrate both systems, 
effectively reducing staff time and maintenance efforts. 
 
Ms. Chambers said that a request for proposal for dash camera and telematics platforms was 
distributed to Lytx, Inc., SureCam, LLC, Samsara, Inc., and USA Fleet Solutions.  She said that 
all firms submitted proposals, and following staff review, Samsara’s proposal was deemed the 
best aligned with IRWD’s needs and specifications.  Samsara’s platform provides a unified 
approach where telematics generates comprehensive reports encompassing safety, fuel usage, 
and maintenance alerts.  She said that emissions data can be transmitted directly to the California 
Bureau of Automotive Repair, bypassing traditional smog checks and ensuring regulatory 
compliance.  Concurrently, dash cameras are crucial in providing video evidence for 
investigations and accident reconstructions.  The platform eliminates unreliable removable 



A-4 

memory cards and data will be uploaded directly to the cloud, ensuring secure storage for 14 
months, meeting legal requirements. 
 
On MOTION by McLaughlin, seconded by LaMar and unanimously carried, THE BOARD 
AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A THREE-YEAR SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH SAMSARA, INC., IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $487,613 FOR 
DASH CAMERA AND TELEMATICS PLATFORM SERVICES. 
 
 
12. DRAFT TERMS FOR EXCHANGE PROGRAM WITH SANTA CLARA VALLEY  

WATER DISTRICT 
 
Water Resources Manager Welch reported that Valley Water is a State Water Project (SWP) 
contractor with 100,000 acre-feet (AF) of SWP Table A water entitlement and that in 2023, staff 
began discussions with them regarding its interest in storing a portion of its Table A water in the 
IRWD Water Bank.  Ms. Welch said that recent discussions have focused on implementing an 
Exchange Program that would allow Valley Water to deliver this water into storage at the IRWD 
Water Bank on a 2-for-1 basis and has developed draft terms for a proposed Exchange Program 
with Valley Water. 
 
Ms. Welch said that staff proposes to allocate 20,000 AF of storage capacity to this proposed 
Exchange Program that would allow Valley Water to deliver its SWP supplies to the IRWD 
Water Bank with Valley Water’s share of the water, limited by a maximum account balance of 
10,000 AF.  She said that one-half of the water delivered by Valley Water would be transferred 
to IRWD through Metropolitan Water District and that delivery of Valley Water’s Table A water 
into storage would occur after the recharge needs of IRWD and its other exchange partners have 
been met. 
 
She said that Valley Water’s share of the water would be returned by the end of the seventh year 
after each recharge event by pumping wells at the IRWD Water Bank.  The pumping of wells for 
Valley Water would occur after meeting the needs of IRWD and its other exchange partners.  
IRWD and Valley Water would each be responsible for recharge and recovery costs associated 
with their respective share of the water delivered into storage under the Exchange Program.  
Additionally, Valley Water would pay for all fixed SWP costs associated with making the water 
available for recharge, including the water that will be transferred to IRWD. 
 
Director Swan said that this item was reviewed by the Supply Reliability Programs Committee 
on January 18, 2024, and on MOTION by Swan, seconded by LaMar and unanimously carried, 
THE BOARD AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN EXCHANGE 
PROGRAM AGREEMENT WITH SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT BASED 
ON THE DRAFT TERMS PRESENTED, SUBJECT TO SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES 
APPROVED BY THE SUPPLY RELIABILITY PROGRAMS COMMITTEE AND LEGAL 
COUNSEL. 
  



A-5 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 
13. General Manager’s Report – None.  
 
14. Community update. 
 
Consultant Newell provided an update of the first rain event in Santiago Canyon, and further 
noted the serious problem with diseased oak trees in the area. 
 
15. Directors’ Comments and Meeting Reports 
 
Director McLaughin said she had no meetings to report. 
 
Director Withers reported on his attendance at a Santiago Aqueduct Commission meeting, a 
Chapman University Economic Forecast webinar, an ISDOC Executive Committee meeting, a 
NWRI Board meeting, an OCWA Industry insight presentation, and a City of Lake Forest 
Community outreach event. 
 
Director Swan reported on his attendance at a MWDOC Administration and Finance Committee 
meeting, a Colorado River Water Users Association Annual conference in Las Vegas, a WACO 
Planning Committee meeting, a MWDOC Board of Directors meeting, an Urban Water Institute 
Strategic Planning Board workshop in San Diego, a MWDOC Planning and Operations 
Committee meeting, a MWDOC workshop Board meeting with MWD Directors, and a 
MWDOC Administration and Finance Committee meeting.  He asked that the Board meeting be 
adjourned in memory of Mr. John Thornton, who served as an engineer in the water industry for 
many years. 
 
Director LaMar reported on his attendance at a Chapman University Economic Forecast webinar, 
an ACWA Officers meeting, a California Council for Environmental and Economic Balance 
Water Quality Task Force Planning Session, an ACWA Board meeting, and a WACO meeting. 
 
Director Reinhart reported on his attendance at a OCWD Water Issues Committee meeting, a 
MWDOC Administration and Finance Committee meeting, a Colorado River Water Users 
Association annual conference in Las Vegas, a MWDOC Board of Directors meeting, an OCWD 
Board of Directors meeting, a MWDOC Planning and Operations Committee meeting, a 
MWDOC workshop Board meeting, a MWDOC Administration and Finance Committee 
meeting, an OCWD Water Issues Committee Meeting, and an OCWD Administration and 
Finance Committee meeting. 
 
16. Adjournment 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned in memory of Mr. John Thornton. 
  



A-6 

APPROVED and SIGNED this 12th day of February 2024. 
 
 
 
 
  
President, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Secretary, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
  
Claire Hervey Collins, General Counsel 
Hanson Bridgett LLP 
 



No. 6 2024 Legislative Update 6 

February 12, 2024 
Prepared and 
submitted by: C. Compton 
Approved by: Paul A. Cook 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2024 LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY UPDATE 

SUMMARY: 

This report provides an update on the 2023-2024 legislative session, regulatory issues, and 
IRWD priorities.  As legislation and regulations develop, staff will provide updates and 
recommendations to the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee and the 
Board, as appropriate.  Staff recommends the Board consider the following actions / positions: 

• AB 805 (Arambula) — Sewer Service within Disadvantaged Communities: “SEEK
AMENDMENTS”;

• AB 1820 (Schiavo)  — Housing Development Projects: Fees and Exactions: “WATCH”;

• AB 1827 (Papan)  — Water Fees and Charges- Higher-Consumptive Water Parcels:
“SPONSOR/ SUPPORT”; and

• SB 937 (Wiener)  — Development Projects: Fees and Charges: “SEEK
AMENDMENTS”.

BACKGROUND: 

January 15 was the last day for bills to be submitted to the Office of the Legislative Counsel, and 
January 31 was the last day for bills introduced in 2023 to be passed out of their house of origin. 
The bill introduction deadline this year is February 16, although resolutions and constitutional 
amendments can be introduced after that date.  The first policy committee deadlines are in late 
April and early May. 

A copy of the Legislative Matrix is provided as Exhibit “A”.  Links to the bills discussed below 
are included within each discussion, unless a separate exhibit is noted. 

2024 State Legislative Update: 

Connection Fees and Development Impact Fees: 

One of the prominent topics of discussion during the 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 legislative years 
was the lack of affordable housing in California, and that topic of discussion has returned in the 
2024 legislative year. 

The previous discussions related to fees were spurred by a report issued by the University of 
California, Berkeley’s Terner Center— the “Residential Impact Fees In California: Current 
Practices and Policy Considerations to Improve Implementation of Fees Governed by the 
Mitigation Fee Act,” (the “Terner Study”). 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB805
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB805
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB805
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB805
http://ternercenter.berkeley.edu/uploads/Residential_Impact_Fees_in_California_August_2019.pdf
http://ternercenter.berkeley.edu/uploads/Residential_Impact_Fees_in_California_August_2019.pdf
http://ternercenter.berkeley.edu/uploads/Residential_Impact_Fees_in_California_August_2019.pdf


Consent Calendar:  2024 Legislative and Regulatory Update 
February 12, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 
After the release of the Terner Study, Assemblymember Timothy Grayson (D-Concord) along 
with several of his colleagues proposed a number of changes to the laws governing fees charged 
to new housing developments, including connection fees.  At the time and in 2020, 2021 and 
2022, staff engaged with IRWD’s associations and industry partners to seek the removal of 
connections fees from the scope of Assemblymember Grayson’s proposals. 
 
Again, this coming legislative year, Assemblymember Grayson joined by others has introduced 
legislation related to the fees charged on new housing development. 
 
Assemblymember Pilar Schiavo (D, Santa Clarita) joined by Assemblymember Tim Grayson (D, 
Concord) introduced AB 1820.  As currently drafted, AB 1820 would permit a development 
proponent to request a preliminary fee and exaction estimate when it submits an application to a 
local government. 
 
Senate Scott Wiener (D-San Franscico) also joined by Assemblymember Grayson introduced SB 
937.  SB 937 seeks to change when fees related to a development are due to a local agency, and 
specifically makes water and sewer connection fees subject to portions of the Mitigation Fee Act.  
These two changes would likely impact IRWD’s current connection fee process. 
 
Staff will continue to monitor these bills and work to mitigate any impact they may have on 
IRWD.  To position the District to best mitigate any impacts of these bills, staff recommends the 
Board adopt a “watch” position on AB 1820 and a “seek amendments” position on SB 937. 
 
AB 805 (Arambula, D-Fresno) – Sewer Service within Disadvantaged Communities:  
 
AB 805, as substantially amended on January 22, would, among other things, grant the State 
Water Resources Control Board (State Board) the authority to require a sewer service provider to 
provide administrative, technical, operational, legal, or managerial services to assist sewer 
systems serving a disadvantaged community if a sewer system is found by the State Board to be 
an inadequate sewage treatment system or a sewer system that has demonstrated difficulty in 
maintaining technical, managerial, and financial capacity to prevent fraud and mismanagement.  
The bill would also permit the State Board to order a sewer service provider to provide those 
services to a sewer system that voluntarily accepts financial assistance for the provision of 
adequate sewer service.   
 
The State Board powers proposed by AB 805 are similar to those provided to the State Board for 
failing water systems.  AB 805 does not have same protections for the assuming sewer system 
that is provided for an assume water system.  For example, AB 805 does not guarantee that 
funding will be provided to a sewer service provider ordered to provide services to an inadequate 
system.  The bill also does not provide liability protection for providers ordered to provide these 
services.  AB 805 contains an urgency clause and would take effect 30 days upon passage. 
 
Staff recommends the Board adopt a “seek amendments” position on AB 805 and authorize staff 
to seek amendments that would provide protections for an assuming sewer provider that are 
similar to those provided in existing law for assuming water providers.  

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB1820
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB937
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB937
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB805


Consent Calendar:  2024 Legislative and Regulatory Update 
February 12, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 
AB 1827 (Papan, D-San Mateo) – Water Fees and Charges- Higher-Consumptive Water 
Parcels: 
 
The first is a proposal that would establish state policy to encourage and incentivize, but not 
mandate, the development of emergency water supplies, and to support the use of emergency 
supplies during times of water shortage.  The second is a proposal that would clarify existing law 
that the cost associated with peak water usage should be reasonably allocated to the parcels 
served by a water service provider in a manner that reasonably reflects the water service 
provider’s cost of serving higher-consumptive water parcels and low-consumptive water parcels, 
and that those costs could be proportionally allocated based on meter size, peaking factors or 
other methods consistent with Proposition 218. 
 
ACA 16 (Bryan, D- Culver City) – Environmental Rights: 
 
On January 25, Assemblymember Issac Bryan (D, Culver City) introduced ACA 16, a proposed 
constitutional amendment.  ACA 16 proposes to add one sentence to the California constitution 
which would read: “The people have a right to clean air and water and a healthy environment.”  
Staff will discuss ACA 16 with the Committee and the discussion taking place within the water 
industry related to its potential impacts on the human right to water. 
 
SB 908 (Cortese, D-Campbell) – Public Records- Electronic Messages: 
 
Senate Dave Cortese (D-Campbell) introduced SB 908 on January 8.  SB 908 would prohibit all 
public agency employees and elected or appointed officials from using an electronic messaging 
system to send or create an email or text message related to public business if the system is not a 
system used by their public agency for official business unless they send a copy of that message 
to the agency’s official system within 20 days.  The bill would also apply similar restrictions to 
the Legislature.  By enacting such a provision, the bill seeks to prevent the use of private email 
accounts and phones for texting. 
 
Other 2024 State Legislative Updates: 
 
Staff will also provide an oral update to the Committee on any new developments related to the 
following: 

• Budget discussions and water infrastructure funding; 

• Climate resilience bonds; 

• State dam safety funding;  

• Surplus Land Act changes; 

• Low-income water rate assistance; 

• SB 366 (Caballero, D-Salinas) – The California Water Plan Long-Term Supply Targets;  

• IRWD’s legislative proposal related to emergency water supplies; and 

• Other legislative matters of interest to the District.  

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB1827
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB1827
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240ACA16
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB908
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB366


Consent Calendar:  2024 Legislative and Regulatory Update 
February 12, 2024 
Page 4 
 
 
2024 State and Regional Regulatory Update: 
 
The following is a list of state and regional regulations and agency reports staff are monitoring, 
tracking, or planning to engage in over the next three to 12 months.  As the next drafts of the 
regulations or reports are released for public review and comment, staff will engage, as 
appropriate.  Staff will also provide an oral update to the Committee on any new developments 
related to these regulations and other regulations of interest to the District. 
 
The pending regulations and reports actively being tracked include: 

• California Endangered Species Act Listing for the Southern California Steelhead; 

• California Natural Resources Agency (CNRA) 30 x 30 California Implementation; 

• CNRA’s Water Resilience Portfolio Implementation and Resiliency 2.0 Implementation; 

• DWR’s 2023 California Water Plan Update; 

• DWR Surface water and groundwater interconnection guidance;  

• Housing and Community Development’s Surplus Land Act guidelines; 

• State Board’s implementation of the adopted “Cross Connection Policy Handbook”; 

• State Board’s implementation of the Lead and Copper Rule; 

• State Board’s “Making Water Conservation a California Way of Life” implementation; 

• State Board’s Safe and Affordable Funding for Equity and Resilience (SAFER) Drinking 
Water Program; 

• State Board’s Development of Maximum Contaminant Levels for PFAS; 

• South Coast AQMD’s Cumulative Impacts from Air Toxics for CEQA Projects; 

• South Coast AQMD’s Tier 4 Emergency Generator Testing Policy;  

• South Coast AQMD’s PAR 1146.2 Control of NOx from Large Water Heaters, Small 
Boilers and Process Heaters; and 

• South Coast AQMD’s Proposed Rule 1110.4, Emissions from Emergency Generators. 
 
Staff will also provide the Committee with an update on other regulatory matters of interest to 
the District. 
 
2024 Federal Legislative Update: 
 
Kern Fan Groundwater Storage Project Outreach: 
 
IRWD’s federal advocacy priority in 2024 focuses on seeking federal funding for the Kern Fan 
Groundwater Storage Project and advocating for an increased funding authorization for the 
federal Water Storage Program.  Staff will provide an update on those efforts. 
  

https://fgc.ca.gov/CESA#SCS
https://www.californianature.ca.gov/pages/30x30
https://resources.ca.gov/Initiatives/Building-Water-Resilience/portfolio
https://resources.ca.gov/-/media/CNRA-Website/Files/Initiatives/Water-Resilience/CA-Water-Supply-Strategy.pdf
https://water.ca.gov/Programs/California-Water-Plan/Update-2023#:%7E:text=A%20cornerstone%20of%20Update%202023,groundwater%20overdraft%2C%20and%20other%20challenges.
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/certlic/drinkingwater/cccph.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/conservation/regs/water_efficiency_legislation.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/safer/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/safer/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/certlic/drinkingwater/pfas.html
http://www.aqmd.gov/home/rules-compliance/ceqa/ceqa-policy-development-(new)
http://www.aqmd.gov/home/rules-compliance/rules/scaqmd-rule-book/proposed-rules/rule-1146-2
http://www.aqmd.gov/home/rules-compliance/rules/scaqmd-rule-book/proposed-rules/rule-1146-2
https://www.aqmd.gov/home/rules-compliance/rules/scaqmd-rule-book/proposed-rules/rule-1110-4


Consent Calendar:  2024 Legislative and Regulatory Update 
February 12, 2024 
Page 5 

2023 Federal Regulatory Updates: 

The following is a list of federal regulations and agency reports staff are monitoring, tracking, or 
planning to engage in over the next three to 12 months.  As the next drafts of the regulations or 
report are released for public review and comment, staff will engage, as appropriate.  Staff will 
also provide an oral update to the Committee on any new developments related to these 
regulations and other regulations of interest to the District. 

The pending regulations and reports actively being tracked include: 

• U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s (U.S. EPA’s) Lead and Copper Rule
Improvements;

• U.S. EPA’s Proposed Designation of PFOA and PFOS as CERCLA Hazardous
Substances;

• U.S. EPA’s Potential Future Hazardous Substances Designations of PFAS Under
CERCLA;

• U.S. EPA’s Proposed PFAS National Primary Drinking Water Regulation;

• U.S. EPA’s Consumer Confidence Report Rule Revisions; and

• Bureau of Reclamation’s Post-2026 Colorado River Reservoir Operational Guidelines
and Strategies for Lake Powell and Lake Mead.

FISCAL IMPACTS: 

Not applicable. 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 

Not applicable. 

COMMITTEE STATUS: 

This item was reviewed by the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee on 
February 7, 2024. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THE BOARD ADOPT A “SPONSOR/SUPPORT” POSITION ON AB 1827 (PAPAN), A 
“SEEK AMENDMENTS” POSITION ON AB 805 (ARAMBULA) AND SB 937 (WEINER), 
AND A “WATCH” POSITION ON AB 1820 (SCHIAVO). 

LIST OF EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit “A” – IRWD Legislative Matrix 

https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-water/lead-and-copper-rule-improvements
https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-water/lead-and-copper-rule-improvements
https://www.epa.gov/superfund/proposed-designation-perfluorooctanoic-acid-pfoa-and-perfluorooctanesulfonic-acid-pfos
https://www.epa.gov/superfund/proposed-designation-perfluorooctanoic-acid-pfoa-and-perfluorooctanesulfonic-acid-pfos
https://www.epa.gov/superfund/advanced-notice-proposed-rulemaking-potential-future-designations-and-polyfluoroalkyl
https://www.epa.gov/superfund/advanced-notice-proposed-rulemaking-potential-future-designations-and-polyfluoroalkyl
https://www.epa.gov/sdwa/and-polyfluoroalkyl-substances-pfas
https://www.epa.gov/ccr/consumer-confidence-report-rule-revisions
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/06/24/2022-13502/request-for-input-on-development-of-post-2026-colorado-river-reservoir-operational-strategies-for
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/06/24/2022-13502/request-for-input-on-development-of-post-2026-colorado-river-reservoir-operational-strategies-for


 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-1 
 

AB 122 
(Budget) 
 
 

Public Resources Trailer 
Bill 

 Expresses the intent of the Legislature that the administration 
conduct an assessment of offshore wind energy permitting and 
related resource needs across applicable State entities, including, 
but not limited to, the Energy Commission, the State Lands 
Commission, the California Coastal Commission, and the State 
Coastal Conservancy. States that the outcomes of the assessment 
may be considered as part of a future budget. Appropriates funds. 
 

08/14/2023 - Re-referred to SENATE 
Committee on BUDGET AND 
FISCAL REVIEW. 

AB 270 
(Lee) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Public Campaign 
Financing 

 Permits a public officer or candidate to expend or accept public 
moneys for the purpose of seeking elective office if the State or a 
local governmental entity established a dedicated fund for this 
purpose. Prohibits the public moneys for this dedicated fund from 
being taken from public moneys that are earmarked for education, 
transportation, or public safety. Provides that this restriction 
would not apply to charter cities. 
 

06/14/2023 - To SENATE Committees 
on ELECTIONS AND 
CONSTITUTIONAL 
AMENDMENTS and 
APPROPRIATIONS. 

AB 277 
(Rodriguez) 
 
 

Extreme Weather Forecast 
and Threat Intelligence 
Center 

 Establishes the State-Federal Flood Operations Center within the 
Department of Water Resources and authorizes the department to 
administer the center in the department's divisions, offices, or 
programs. Requires the department and the Office of Emergency 
Services, in consultation with cooperating agencies, to develop 
and submit a report to the Legislature on or before specified date 
that outlines necessary technological advancements for agile 
forecasting and gaps in data that would improve flood response. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

AB 295 
(Fong) 
 
 

Department of 
Transportation: 
Maintenance Projects 

 Requires the Department of Transportation to expedite roadside 
maintenance for specified projects related to roadside 
maintenance and the removal and clearing of material. Authorizes 
local governmental entities, fire protection districts, fire safe 
councils, and tribal entities to notify the department of those 
projects that have not been completed in an efficient and timely 
manner. Requires the Division of Maintenance to begin the 
maintenance project within a specified number of days. 

07/11/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on TRANSPORTATION:  Not heard. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-2 
 

 
AB 305 
(Villapudua) 
 
 

California Flood Protection 
Bond Act of 2024 

Support Enacts the California Flood Protection Bond Act of 2024 which, 
if approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds 
in the specified amount pursuant to the State General Obligation 
Bond Law for flood protection projects. Provides for the 
submission of these provisions to the voters at the specified 
statewide general election. 
 

06/14/2023 - To SENATE Committees 
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND 
WATER and GOVERNANCE AND 
FINANCE. 

AB 311 
(Santiago) 
 
 

Food Assistance Program: 
Eligibility and Benefits 

 Removes a specified age limitation and makes any individual 
eligible for the program if the individual's immigration status is 
the sole basis for their ineligibility for CalFresh benefits. 

06/14/2023 - To SENATE Committee 
on HUMAN SERVICES. 

AB 347 
(Ting) 
 
 

Household Product Safety: 
Toxic Substances 

 Requires the Department of Toxic Substances Control to adopt 
guidance regarding the perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl 
substances prohibition and the internet posting and labeling 
requirements for cookware, and to post that guidance on its 
internet website by specified date. Requires the department to 
select and test at least a specified number but no more than a 
certain number of random samples of food packaging and 
cookware for compliance with those PFAS prohibitions. 
 

09/11/2023 - In SENATE.  Read 
second time.  To third 
reading.;09/11/2023 - In SENATE.  
From third reading.  To Inactive File. 

AB 388 
(Connolly) 
 
 

California's Wildfire and 
Forest Resilience 

 Requires the Department of Conservation, in consultation with 
the Wildfire and Forest Resilience Task Force and member 
agencies, to establish guidelines for funding the implementation 
of regional priority strategies and to establish regional investment 
strategies to identify and align resources that support 
implementation of regional priority strategies that contribute to 
the goals and key actions identified in California's Wildfire and 
Forest Resilience Action Plan issued by the task force in January 
2021. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-3 
 

AB 408 
(Wilson) 
 
 

Climate Resilient Farms  Enacts the Climate-Resilient Farms, Sustainable Healthy Food 
Access, and Farmworker Protection Bond Act of 2024, which, if 
approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds to 
finance programs related to, among other things, agricultural 
lands, food and fiber infrastructure, climate resilience, 
agricultural professionals, including farmers, ranchers, and 
farmworkers, workforce development and training, air quality, 
tribes, disadvantaged communities, nutrition, and food aid. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS.  Held in 
committee and made a Two-year bill. 

AB 453 
(Cervantes) 
 
 

District-Based Elections  Requires a public hearing concerning district-based elections that 
is consolidated with a meeting of the governing body of the 
political subdivision that includes other substantive agenda items, 
to begin at a fixed time regardless of its order on the agenda. 
 

05/10/2023 - To SENATE Committees 
on ELECTIONS AND 
CONSTITUTIONAL 
AMENDMENTS and GOVERNANCE 
AND FINANCE. 

AB 457 
(Patterson J) 
 
 

Surplus Land Act: Exempt 
Surplus Land: Leases 

Watch Provides that the disposal of exempt surplus land is not subject to 
certain requirements. Expands definition of exempt surplus land 
to include a parcel that is identified in the local agency's 
circulation element or capital improvement program for future 
roadway development, is no larger than a specified number of 
acres, is zoned for retail commercial use, and the use of the parcel 
is consistent with the underlying zoning, and abuts a State 
highway right-of-way. Makes other nonsubstantive changes. 
 

09/13/2023 - In ASSEMBLY.  Ordered 
returned to SENATE.  *****To 
SENATE. 

AB 460 
(Bauer-Kahan) 
 
 

State Water Resources 
Control Board: Water 
Rights 

 Authorizes the State Water Resources Control Board to issue, on 
its own motion or upon the petition of an interested party, an 
interim relief order to a diverter or user of water in adjudicative 
proceedings to apply or enforce specified provisions of law 
related to water rights and quality. 
 

06/27/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND 
WATER:  Not heard. 

AB 468 
(Quirk-Silva) 
 
 

State Building Standards  Requires the housing or building department or, if there is no 
building department, the health department, of every city or 
county or a specified environmental agency to enforce within its 
jurisdiction all of the State Housing Law and State Building 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-4 
 

Standards Code. Provides that if an enforcement agency 
determines that a building is substandard based solely on the 
building being occupied, the agency is prohibited from 
commencing proceedings to abate the violation by repair if 
specified conditions are met. 
 

AB 518 
(Wicks) 
 
 

Paid Family Leave: 
Eligibility 

 Expands eligibility for benefits under the paid family leave 
program to include individuals who take time off work to care for 
a seriously ill designated person. Defines designated person to 
mean any individual related by blood or whose association with 
the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship. 
Authorizes the employee to identify the designated person when 
they file a claim for benefits. 
 

09/13/2023 - In SENATE.  From third 
reading.  To Inactive File. 

AB 527 
(Calderon) 
 
 

Urban Forestry: School 
Greening Projects: Grants 

 Provides that the California Urban Forestry Act of 1978 requires 
the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection to implement a 
program in urban forestry to encourage better tree management 
and planting in urban areas. Requires funds to be administered to 
support school greening by providing grants to eligible local 
educational agencies, nonprofit organizations, cities, counties, 
and districts, through a competitive grant process developed by 
the department. Requires the department to develop guidelines. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

AB 544 
(Bryan) 
 
 

Voting: County Jails  Requires the Secretary of State to, upon appropriation of funds for 
this purpose, operate a program to provide grants to a specified 
number of counties to improve voter participation in jail facilities. 
Requires, in counties administering grants, the county sheriff or 
jail facility administrator to designate an employee as a voting 
coordinator at each facility who will be responsible for, among 
other things, ensuring compliance with requirements pertaining to 
polling locations. 
 

01/29/2024 - In ASSEMBLY.  Read 
third time.  Passed ASSEMBLY.  
*****To SENATE. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-5 
 

AB 560 
(Bennett) 
 
 

Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act 

 Requires the parties to an adjudication action to submit a 
proposed settlement agreement determining rights to water to the 
State Water Resources Control Board for a nonbinding advisory 
determination as to whether the proposed settlement agreement 
will substantially impair the ability of a groundwater 
sustainability agency, the board, or the Department of Water 
Resources to achieve sustainable groundwater management 
before filing the proposed settlement agreement with the court. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS.  Held in 
committee and made a Two-year bill. 

AB 573 
(Garcia E) 
 
 

Organic Waste: Meeting 
Recovered Organic Waste 
Product 

 Provides that existing law requires the State Air Resources Board 
to approve and begin implementing a comprehensive short-lived 
climate pollutant strategy to achieve a certain reduction in 
statewide emissions of methane. Requires the Department of 
Resources Recycling and Recovery to allow a local jurisdiction, 
in procuring recovered organic waste products to meet 
procurement requirements, to use California-derived recovered 
organic waste that the local jurisdiction sends for processing 
outside of the State. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

AB 593 
(Haney) 
 
 

Carbon Emission Reduction 
Strategy: Building Sector 

 Requires the State Energy Resources Conservation and 
Development Commission to adopt a strategy, with milestones, to 
reduce emissions of greenhouse gases for the building sector. 
Requires the commission, in developing the strategy, to consult 
and collaborate with certain entities, to hold at least a specified 
number of public workshops, and to convene stakeholder 
sessions. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS.  Held in 
committee and made a Two-year bill. 

AB 609 
(Papan) 
 
 

Office of Wildfire 
Technology Research and 
Development 

 Requires the Office of Wildfire Technology Research and 
Development to submit a report to the Legislature that assesses 
the feasibility of the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 
and the Office of Emergency Services, working with the National 
Interagency Aviation Committee and the International Airtanker 
Board, to conduct an evaluation of innovative new aerial 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-6 
 

firefighting technologies and whether any new technologies exist 
that might meet CAL FIRE standards of water and retardant 
delivery systems. 
 

AB 627 
(Jackson) 
 
 

Drayage Trucks: Voucher 
Incentive Project 

 Provides that the Air Resources Board administers the California 
Hybrid and Zero-Emission Truck and Bus Voucher Incentive 
Project under which the agency issues a limited number of 
vouchers to incentivize the purchase and use of zero-emission 
commercial vehicles. Requires the board to ensure that a voucher 
for the purchase of a new, or the retrofit of a used, drayage truck 
is provided to an operator in an amount determined pursuant to a 
sliding scale based on the number of drayage trucks the operator 
owns. 
 

01/29/2024 - In ASSEMBLY.  Read 
third time.  Passed ASSEMBLY.  
*****To SENATE. 

AB 749 
(Irwin) 
 
 

State Agencies: Information 
Security: Uniform 
Standards 

 Requires every State agency, as defined and subject to specified 
exceptions, to implement Zero Trust architecture for all data, 
hardware, software, internal systems, and essential third-party 
software, including for on-premises, cloud, and hybrid 
environments, to achieve prescribed levels of maturity based on 
the Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency (CISA) 
Maturity Model by specified dates. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

AB 754 
(Papan) 
 
 

Water Management 
Planning: Water Shortages 

Watch Relates to the Urban Water Management Planning Act. Requires 
a water shortage contingency plan to include, if, based on a 
description and quantification of each source of water supply, a 
single reservoir constitutes at least a specified percent of the total 
water supply, an identification of the dam and description of 
existing reservoir management operations, and, if the reservoir is 
owned and operated by the urban water supplier, a description of 
operational practices and approaches. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-7 
 

AB 788 
(Petrie-Norris) 
 
 

Fire Prevention: Grant 
Programs: Reporting 

 Requires the Wildfire and Forest Resilience Task Force, on or 
before specified date, and annually thereafter, to compile and post 
on its internet website specified information relating to specified 
State and federal grant programs relating to fire prevention. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

AB 805 
(Arambula) 
 
 

Sewer Service: 
Disadvantaged 
Communities 

 Authorizes the State Water Resources Control Board to require a 
sewer service provider to contract with an administrator 
designated or approved by the State Board for administrative, 
technical, operational, legal, or managerial services to assist a 
designated sewer system with the provision of adequate sewer 
service. Requires the State Board to take specified actions before 
determining that a sewer service provider is a designated sewer 
system. Appropriates funds. 
 

01/30/2024 - In ASSEMBLY.  Read 
third time, urgency clause adopted.   
Passed ASSEMBLY.  *****To 
SENATE. 

AB 817 
(Pacheco) 
 
 

Open Meetings: 
Teleconferencing: 
Subsidiary Body 

 Provides that the Ralph M. Brown Act requires, with specified 
exceptions, each legislative body of a local agency to provide 
notice of the time and place for its regular meetings. Provides that 
existing law authorizes the legislative body of a local agency to 
use alternate teleconferencing provisions during a proclaimed 
state of emergency. Authorizes, until specified date, a subsidiary 
body to use alternative teleconferencing provisions and imposes 
requirements for notice, agenda, and public participation. 
 

01/25/2024 - In ASSEMBLY.  Read 
third time.  Passed ASSEMBLY.  
*****To SENATE. 

AB 824 
(Calderon) 
 
 

Highway Greening: 
Statewide Strategic Plan 

 Enacts the Highway Greening Act, which would require the 
Department of Transportation to complete a statewide strategic 
plan to work to achieve at least a specified percent increase of 
green highways in urban areas, disadvantaged communities, and 
low-income communities by specified year. Requires the 
department to submit the plan to the Legislature and specified 
committees of the Legislature on or before specified date. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-8 
 

AB 828 
(Connolly) 
 
 

Sustainable Groundwater 
Management: Managed 
Wetlands 

 Adds various defined terms for purposes of the Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act, including the terms managed 
wetland and small community water system. Provides that 
existing law grants a groundwater sustainability agency specified 
authority and authorizes a groundwater sustainability agency to 
regulate groundwater extraction using that authority. Prohibits a 
groundwater sustainability agency from using that authority under 
specified circumstances. 
 

01/29/2024 - In ASSEMBLY.  Read 
third time.  Passed ASSEMBLY.  
*****To SENATE. 

AB 830 
(Soria) 
 
 

Lake and Streambed 
Alteration Agreements: 
Exemptions 

 Provides that existing law prohibits a person, a state or local 
governmental agency, or a public utility from substantially 
diverting or obstructing the natural flow of, or substantially 
changing or using any material from the bed, channel, or bank of, 
any river, stream, or lake. Exempts the temporary operation of 
existing infrastructure or temporary pumps being used to divert 
flood stage flows or near-flood stage flows to groundwater 
recharge as long as certain conditions are met. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

AB 837 
(Alvarez) 
 
 

Surplus Land: Exempt 
Surplus Land 

 Provides, until specified date, that land that is subject to a 
sectional planning area is not subject to specified requirements for 
the disposal of surplus land if specified conditions are met. 
Requires a local agency that disposes of land pursuant to these 
provisions to submit a specified report to the Department of 
Housing and Community Development. 
 

06/07/2023 - To SENATE Committees 
on GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE 
and HOUSING. 

AB 841 
(Berman) 
 
 

State Energy Resources 
Conservation and 
Development 

 Requires the State Energy Resources Conservation and 
Development Commission to submit to the Legislature an 
Industrial Heat Electrification Roadmap. Authorizes the 
commission to consult with the State Air Resources Board to 
include in the roadmap an estimate of the reductions in emissions 
of greenhouse gases and criteria air pollutants, and commensurate 
health benefits, from electrifying the identified industrial 
subsectors. 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-9 
 

 
AB 868 
(Wilson) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Digital Political Ads 

 Enacts the Digital Advertisement Transparency and 
Accountability Act, or DATA Act. Requires a committee that 
pays for a digital advertisement to appear on an online platform to 
submit to the Fair Political Practices Commission a copy of the 
digital advertisement and specified information. Requires an 
online platform to transmit to the commission specified 
information regarding digital advertisements, and to retain the 
information for no less than a specified number of years for 
specified purposes. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS.  Held in 
committee and made a Two-year bill. 

AB 914 
(Friedman) 
 
 

California Environmental 
Quality Act: Review Time 

 Requires a State agency acting as the lead agency, until specified 
date, to complete its environmental review for an electrical 
infrastructure project and to approve or deny the project within a 
specified number of years of the submission and acceptance of a 
complete application for the issuance of a lease, permit, license, 
certificate, or other entitlement for use for electrical infrastructure 
to the State agency. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

AB 923 
(Bauer-Kahan) 
 
 

Flood Plain Restoration 
Projects: Central Valley: 
Study 

 Requires the Central Valley Flood Protection Board, in 
coordination with the Department of Water Resources, to identify 
priority flood plain restoration or floodway expansion projects 
where increased flows due to climate change are likely to 
overwhelm existing flood protection infrastructure. Requires the 
department and the board to conduct broad stakeholder outreach 
to identify priority projects and would require that those projects 
provide at least a specified number of public benefits. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

AB 930 
(Friedman) 
 
 

Local Government: 
Reinvestment in 
Infrastructure 

 Authorizes a special district to join a Reinvestment in 
Infrastructure for a Sustainable and Equitable California district. 
Requires the Office of Planning and Research to develop 
guidelines for the formation of RISE districts. Requires the 
guidelines to require a RISE development plan to provide that at 

01/29/2024 - In ASSEMBLY.  Read 
third time.  Passed ASSEMBLY.  
*****To SENATE. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-10 
 

least a specified percent of the total funding received by the 
district be spent on residential units created within the district that 
are restricted to persons and families of low or moderate income. 
 

AB 998 
(Connolly) 
 
 

Biomass Energy Facilities: 
State Energy Commission 

 Requires the State Energy Resources Conservation and 
Development Commission, on or before specified date to issue a 
report on the utility-scale biomass combustion facilities still in 
operation as of specified date. Requires the report to include 
various assessments of biomass combustion facilities still in 
operation as of specified date, and options to maximize the 
environmental benefits of these facilities. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

AB 1024 
(Aguiar-Curry) 
 
 

Water Rights: Small 
Irrigation Use 

 Exempts an entity from the requirement to enter into a lake or 
streambed alteration agreement with the Department of Fish and 
Wildlife if the entity submits a State Water Resources Control 
Board-approved registration or renewed or amended registration 
for water use in specified counties to the department and the 
department determines certain requirements are met. Limits the 
number of these registrations to a specified amount for the first 
year of implementation. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS.  Held in 
committee and made a Two-year bill. 

AB 1170 
(Valencia) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Filing Requirements 

 Relates to the Political Reform Act, which requires elected 
officials, candidates for elective offices, and committees formed 
primarily to support or oppose a candidate for public office or a 
ballot measure to file periodic campaign statements and certain 
reports concerning campaign finances and related matters. 
Permits a filing officer to retain a report or statement filed in a 
paper format as a copy on microfilm or other space-saving 
materials or as an electronic copy without a two-year waiting 
period. 
 

01/29/2024 - In ASSEMBLY.  Read 
third time.  Passed ASSEMBLY.  
*****To SENATE. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-11 
 

AB 1176 
(Zbur) 
 
 

General Plans: Local 
Electrification Planning Act 

 Provides for the Local Electrification Planning Act, which would 
require a city, county, or city and county to prepare and adopt a 
specified plan, or otherwise integrate a plan into the general plan 
that, among other things, identifies opportunities to expand 
electric vehicle charging to meet the needs of the city's, county's, 
or city and county's current and future visitors, residents, and 
businesses, and includes policies and implementation measures 
that address the needs of disadvantaged communities. 
 

06/28/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE:  
Not heard. 

AB 1205 
(Bauer-Kahan) 
 
 

Water Rights: Sale, 
Transfer, or Lease: 
Agricultural 

 Requires the State Water Resources Control Board to, on or 
before specified date, conduct a study and report to the 
Legislature and appropriate policy committees on the existence of 
speculation or profiteering by an investment fund in the sale, 
transfer, or lease of an interest in any surface water right or 
groundwater right previously put to beneficial use on agricultural 
lands. 

09/11/2023 - In SENATE.  From third 
reading.  To Inactive File. 

AB 1211 
(Mathis) 
 
 

Safe Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund 

 Relates to existing law which requires the State Water Resources 
Control Board, at least once every 2 years, to post information on 
its internet website regarding implementation of the Safe 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Law and expenditures 
from the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. Requires the 
board to post the information at least annually. 
 

05/10/2023 - To SENATE Committee 
on ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY. 

AB 1246 
(Nguyen) 
 
 

Public Employees' 
Retirement System Optional 
Settlement 

 Provides that existing law permits a member of the Public 
Employees' Retirement System to elect from among several other 
optional settlements for the purpose of structuring their retirement 
allowance. Permits a member who elected to receive a specified 
optional settlement at retirement, if the member's former spouse 
was named as beneficiary and a legal judgment awards only a 
portion of the interest in the retirement system to the member, to 
elect to add their new spouse as the beneficiary. 
 

09/11/2023 - In SENATE.  From 
Special Consent Calendar.  To Inactive 
File. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-12 
 

AB 1272 
(Wood) 
 
 

State Water Resources 
Control Board: Drought 
Planning 

 Requires the State Water Resources Control Board, in 
consultation with the Department of Fish and Wildlife, to adopt 
principles and guidelines for diversion and use of water in coastal 
watersheds during times of water shortage for drought 
preparedness and climate resiliency. Authorizes the state board to 
issue a cease and desist order when a diversion or use violates or 
threatens to violate an applicable principle or guideline adopted 
by the state board for the diversion and use of water. 
 

09/14/2023 - Withdrawn from 
Enrollment.;09/14/2023 - In 
ASSEMBLY.  Ordered returned to 
SENATE.  *****To SENATE. 

AB 1284 
(Ramos) 
 
 

Tribal Ancestral Lands and 
Waters: Cogovernance 

 Encourages the Natural Resources Agency to enter into 
cogovernance and comanagement agreements with federally 
recognized tribes. Authorizes the Secretary of the Agency or a 
delegate to enter into agreements with federally recognized tribes 
for the purposes of shared responsibility, decision making, and 
partnership in resource management and conservation within a 
tribes ancestral lands and waters. Requires the secretary or a 
delegate to be the signatory for the State for such agreements. 

01/29/2024 - In ASSEMBLY.  Read 
third time.  Passed ASSEMBLY.  
*****To SENATE. 

AB 1297 
(Quirk-Silva) 
 
 

Public Restrooms  Requires each local government to complete an inventory of 
public restrooms owned and maintained by the local government 
that are available to the general population in its jurisdiction. 
Requires governments to report their findings to the State 
Department of Public Health, which would be required to compile 
the information and to report the availability of public restrooms 
to the Legislature. Requires the Legislature to consider the report 
when evaluating the public's access to reliable public restrooms. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

AB 1318 
(Rivas) 
 
 

California Environmental 
Quality Act: Exemption 

 Expands the CEQA exemption by increasing the size of a 
residential project that would qualify for the exemption to include 
a project of not more than 5 acres in total area. 

05/31/2023 - To SENATE Committees 
on ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
and HOUSING. 

AB 1337 
(Wicks) 
 

State Water Resources 
Control Board: Water 
Diversion 

Watch Expands the instances when the diversion or use of water is 
considered a trespass. Authorizes the State Water Resources 
Control Board to issue a curtailment order for any diversion, 

07/10/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND 
WATER:  Not heard. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-13 
 

 regardless of basis of right, when water is not available under the 
diverter's priority of right. Requires the board to adopt regulations 
to implement this provision. 
 

AB 1348 
(Grayson) 
 
 

State Government: 
Controller: Claims Audits 

 Relates to the Government Claims Act, which requires the 
presentation of all claims for money or damages against local 
public entities and the State. Authorizes the Controller to conduct 
financial and compliance audits as the Controller's office deems 
as necessary for purposes of ensuring that any expenditures are 
expended in a manner consistent with the law and the voters' 
intent. Requires the Controller to provide a report with specified 
information from these audits to the Legislature. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

AB 1349 
(Irwin) 
 
 

Electric Vehicle Charging 
Station Networks: Data 
Fields 

 Requires owners, operators, and infrastructure developers of 
electric vehicle charging stations, except for charging stations 
located at residential dwellings, for which those parties are 
awarded a State grant to support the electric vehicle charging 
stations to ensure that specified data fields for the owner's or 
operator's entire network of electric vehicle charging stations in 
the State are made available, free of charge, to third-party 
software developers through an application programming 
interface. 
 

07/03/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on ENERGY, UTILITIES AND 
COMMUNICATIONS: Not heard. 

AB 1465 
(Wicks) 
 
 

Nonvehicular Air Pollution: 
Civil Penalties 

 Provides that existing law establishes maximum civil penalties for 
a person who violates air pollution laws from nonvehicular 
sources. Requires, in assessing penalties, that health impacts, 
community disruptions, and other circumstances related to the 
violation be considered. Requires that civil penalties for a 
violation be assessed and recovered in a civil action brought by 
the Attorney General, by any district attorney, or by the attorney 
for any district in which the violation occurs. 
 

09/06/2023 - In SENATE.  From third 
reading.  To Inactive File. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-14 
 

AB 1546 
(Gabriel) 
 
 

CA Consumer Privacy Act 
of 2018: Statute of 
Limitations 

 Requires an action by the Attorney General to enforce the 
California Consumer Privacy Act to be commenced within a 
specified number of years after the cause of action accrued. 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

AB 1563 
(Bennett) 
 
 

Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency: Extraction Permits 

 Provides that the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 
requires all groundwater basins designated as high or medium-
priority basins by the Department of Water Resources to be 
managed under a groundwater sustainability plan or coordinated 
plans, with specified exceptions. Requires a county to forward 
permit requests for the construction of new groundwater wells, 
the enlarging of existing wells, and the reactivation of abandoned 
wells to the groundwater sustainability agency before permit 
approval. 
 

07/12/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE:  
Not heard. 

AB 1567 
(Garcia E) 
 
 

Safe Drinking Water, 
Wildfire Prevention, 
Drought Prep 

Support and 
Amend 

Enacts the Safe Drinking Water, Wildfire Prevention, Drought 
Preparation, Flood Protection, Extreme Heat Mitigation, Clean 
Energy, and Workforce Development Bond Act of 2024, which, 
if approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds 
in a specified amount to finance projects for safe drinking water, 
wildfire prevention, drought preparation, flood protection, 
extreme heat mitigation, clean energy, and workforce 
development programs. 
 

06/14/2023 - To SENATE Committees 
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND 
WATER and GOVERNANCE AND 
FINANCE. 

AB 1573 
(Friedman) 
 
 

Water Conservation: 
Landscape Design: Model 
Ordinance 

Seek 
Amendments 

Provides that the Water Conservation in Landscaping Act 
provides for a Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance that is 
adopted and updated at least every specified number of years. 
Requires the model ordinance, at the next update initiated after 
specified date, to require that all new or renovated nonresidential 
areas install in the project footprint not less than a specified 
percent of California native plants, and to prohibit the inclusion of 
nonfunctional turf in nonresidential landscape projects. 
 

09/07/2023 - In SENATE.  From third 
reading.  To Inactive File. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-15 
 

AB 1581 
(Kalra) 
 
 

Diversion or Obstruction of 
Rivers, Streams, or Lakes 

 Exempts certain individuals, agencies, universities, zoological 
gardens, and institutions authorized to import, export, take, or 
possess any endangered, threatened, or candidate species for 
scientific, educational, or management purposes from the required 
agreement with the Department of Fish and Wildlife. Requires 
entities to submit to the department a written notification, fee, and 
a copy of proposed environmental protection measures authorized 
by other agencies' habitat restoration permits. 
 

06/14/2023 - To SENATE Committee 
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND 
WATER. 

AB 1688 
(Sanchez) 
 
 

Voter Registration: 
Cancellation: Deceased 
Persons 

 Provides that existing law requires the Secretary of State to adopt 
regulations to facilitate the availability of death statistics from the 
State Department of Health Services for use by the Secretary of 
State and county elections officials to cancel affidavits of 
registration of deceased persons. Authorizes the Secretary of State 
to also seek an agreement with the federal Social Security 
Administration to facilitate the availability of death statistics from 
that agency. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

AB 1712 
(Irwin) 
 
 

Personal Information: Data 
Breaches 

 Provides that the Information Practices Act requires any agency 
that owns or licenses computerized data that includes personal 
information to disclose any breach of the security of the system 
following discovery or notification of the breach. Requires the 
security breach notification to include the websites of the major 
credit reporting agencies and the Uniform Resource Locator for 
the main internet website operated by the Federal Trade 
Commission to provide information for victims of identity theft. 
 

06/14/2023 - To SENATE Committee 
on JUDICIARY. 

AB 1757 
(Judiciary) 
 
 

Accessibility: Internet 
Websites 

 Provides that existing law imposes liability upon a person, firm, 
or corporation that denies or interferes with admittance to, or 
enjoyment of, public facilities or otherwise interferes with the 
rights of an individual with a disability for damages and attorney's 
fees. Provides that a website is presumed to provide equally 
effective communication and to facilitate full and equal 

08/15/2023 - From SENATE 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS 
with author's amendments.;08/15/2023 
- In SENATE.  Read second time and 
amended. Re-referred to Committee on 
APPROPRIATIONS. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-16 
 

enjoyment for the purpose of determining whether an award of 
damages is warranted if the website has a certain certification. 
 

AB 1781 
(Waldron) 
 
 

State Mandates: Claims  Changes the minimum claim for reimbursement for a state 
mandate to $800. 

01/16/2024 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT. 

AB 1782 
(Ta) 
 
 

Redevelopment: Successor 
Agencies: Housing Asset 
Fund 

 Increases the amount that a housing successor may expend on 
homeless prevention and rapid rehousing services to $500,000. 
The bill would require the Department of Housing and 
Community Development to publish on its internet website an 
adjustment to the amount that may be expended by a housing 
successor to reflect any change in the Consumer Price Index for 
All Urban Consumers. 
 

01/16/2024 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committees on HOUSING AND 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT and 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT. 

AB 1784 
(Pellerin) 
 
 

Elections: Multiple 
Candidacies 

 States the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation clarifying 
that a person is prohibited from filing nomination documents for 
more than one office at the same election. 

01/03/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

AB 1785 
(Pacheco) 
 
 

California Public Records 
Act 

 Defines home address, for purposes of the California Public 
Records Act, to include an assessorâ€™s parcel number, which 
may be converted to a physical address through reference to other 
information made available online by the state or local agency. 
 

01/16/2024 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on JUDICIARY. 

AB 1795 
(Carrillo) 
 
 

Primary Elections: Dual 
Candidacies 

 Clarifies that a candidate is prohibited from filing nomination 
documents for more than one office at the same primary election. 

01/04/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

AB 1798 
(Papan) 
 
 

Department of 
Transportation: 
Contaminated Stormwater 

 Requires the Department of transportation, in consultation with 
the State Water Resources Control Board, the Department of 
Toxic Substances Control, and the Department of Fish and 
Wildlife, to develop a programmatic environmental review 

01/22/2024 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committees on TRANSPORTATION 
and ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY 
AND TOXIC MATERIALS. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-17 
 

process to prevent 6PPD and 6PPD-quinone from entering 
salmon and steelhead trout bearing surface waters of the state. 
 

AB 1819 
(Waldron) 
 
 

Enhanced Infrastructure 
Financing Districts: 
Wildfires 

 Authorizes an enhanced infrastructure financing district that are at 
least partially in high or very high fire hazard severity zones 
designated by the State Fire Marshal to finance heavy equipment 
to be used for vegetation clearance and firebreaks, fortification of 
utilities against wildfires, and equipment used for fire watch, 
prevention, and fighting. 
 

01/22/2024 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT. 

AB 1820 
(Schiavo) 
 
 

Housing Development 
Projects: Applications: Fees 

 Authorizes a development proponent that submits a preliminary 
application for a housing development project to request a 
preliminary fee and exaction estimate. Requires a local agency to 
comply with the request within 10 business days of the 
submission of the preliminary application, except as specified. 
 

01/29/2024 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committees on HOUSING AND 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT and 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT. 

AB 1827 
(Papan) 
 
 

Local Government: Fees 
and Charges: Water 

 Provides that the fees or charges for property-related water 
service imposed or increased may include the incrementally 
higher costs of water service due to specified factors, including 
the higher water usage demand of parcels. Provides that the costs 
associated with higher water usage demands, the maximum 
potential water use, or a projected peak water usage demand may 
be allocated using any method that reasonably assesses the water 
service provider's cost of serving the parcels that are increasing 
demand. 
 

01/29/2024 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT. 

AB 1829 
(Patterson) 
 
 

Electricity: Certificate of 
Public Convenience 

 Requires the Public Utilities Commission to issue a decision on 
an application for a certificate of public convenience and 
necessity within 18 months of the filing of a completed 
application for building or upgrading an electrical transmission 
line that is reasonably necessary to facilitate the achievement of 
the state's renewable energy policy. 
 

01/29/2024 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on UTILITIES AND 
ENERGY. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-18 
 

AB 1851 
(Holden) 
 
 

Drinking Water: 
Schoolsites: Lead Testing 
Pilot Program 

 Requires the Superintendent of Public Instruction to contract with 
a nonprofit technical assistance organization, for purposes of a 
pilot program applicable to unspecified school districts, to sample 
all potable water system outlets on the campuses of the school 
district for lead contamination, except as provided, and to identify 
and remediate any potable water system outlet emitting water 
containing lead levels in excess of 5 parts per billion. 
 

01/29/2024 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committees on ENVIRONMENTAL 
SAFETY AND TOXIC MATERIALS 
and EDUCATION. 

AB 1854 
(Schiavo) 
 
 

Service Member Protections  Relates to existing law which authorizes a member of the United 
States Army Reserve or the National Guard who is called to 
active duty to defer payments on certain obligations while serving 
on active duty. Authorizes the notice of deferral to specify a 
different date after which payments will be suspended. Requires a 
request for deferral to be submitted not later than 180 days 
following the period of active duty on which the deferral is based. 
 

01/29/2024 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on MILITARY AND 
VETERANS AFFAIRS. 

AB 1857 
(Jackson) 
 
 

State Air Resources Board: 
Air Quality Regulation 

 Requires the State Air Resources Board to adopt regulations to 
improve air quality in population centers located in valleys and 
would require each local air district to implement those 
regulations with regard to stationary sources located within its 
jurisdiction. 
 

01/29/2024 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on NATURAL 
RESOURCES. 

AB 1866 
(Hart) 
 
 

Oil and Gas: Idle Wells  Eliminates the schedule of fees for idle wells, including all fees 
for deposit into the Hazardous and Idle-Deserted Well Abatement 
Fund, and would instead require the operator of any idle well, as 
defined, to file a plan with the State Oil and Gas Supervisor to 
provide for the management and elimination of all idle wells. The 
bill would require the plan to require the operator to consider 
specified factors when prioritizing idle wells for testing or 
plugging and abandonment. 
 

01/29/2024 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on NATURAL 
RESOURCES. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-19 
 

AB 1868 
(Friedman) 
 
 

Property Taxation: 
Assessments: Affordable 
Housing 

 Establishes, for purposes of valuing property by the county 
assessor, a rebuttable presumption that, at the time of purchase, 
the value of real property subject to a recorded contract that meets 
the specified requirements is no greater than the sum of the value 
of the first mortgage and any applicable down payment. 
 

01/29/2024 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on REVENUE AND 
TAXATION. 

AB 1879 
(Gipson) 
 
 

Electronic Signatures  Requires, at the option of the parties in any written 
communication with a public entity, the use or acceptance of an 
electronic signature, unless otherwise provided. Provides that a 
digital signature would also have the same force and effect as the 
use of a manual signature if it complies with specified 
requirements and the public entity's use of a digital signature is 
mandated. 
 

01/22/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

AB 1881 
(Davies) 
 
 

California Coastal 
Commission: Membership 

 Requires the representative appointed by the Governor to the 
California Coastal Commission to either have the qualification 
described in existing law or have a professional background in 
geology, environmental engineering, or carpentry or building and 
construction trades. 
 

01/22/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

AB 1889 
(Friedman) 
 
 

General Plan: Wildlife 
Connectivity Element 

 Requires a general plan to include a wildlife connectivity 
element, or related goals, policies, and objectives integrated in 
other elements, that considers the effect of development within 
the jurisdiction on fish, wildlife, and habitat connectivity. 
Requires the wildlife connectivity element to, among other things, 
identify and analyze connectivity areas, permeability, and natural 
landscape areas within the jurisdiction. 
 

01/22/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

AB 1890 
(Patterson J) 
 
 

Public Works: Prevailing 
Wage 

 Relates to existing law which requires an entity awarding a public 
works contract to provide notice to the Department of Industrial 
Relations. Requires the awarding body to provide notice to the 
department if there is a change in the identity of a contractor or 

01/22/2024 - INTRODUCED. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-20 
 

subcontractor performing the project or, within 30 days, if the 
total amount of the contract change exceeds $10,000. 
 

AB 1893 
(Wicks) 
 
 

Housing Accountability 
Act: Housing Disapprovals 

 Authorizes a local agency to disapprove or conditionally approve 
a housing development project for very low, low-, or moderate-
income households if it makes a finding that the local agency has 
failed to adopt a revised housing element that is in substantial 
compliance with the Housing Element Law, and the housing 
development project is proposed for a site zoned for residential 
use or residential mixed-use development. 
 

01/23/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

AB 1894 
(Ta) 
 
 

Nonvehicular Air Pollution: 
Civil Penalties 

 Requires an air pollution control district to provide a person with 
a period of not less than 30 days to rectify a violation of air 
pollution laws before the person may be subject to specified civil 
penalties. 

01/23/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

AB 1897 
(Flora) 
 
 

Civil Actions: Prevailing 
Defendant: Attorney's Fees 

 Requires a court, whenever a defendant prevails in a civil action, 
to award reasonable attorneyâ€™s fees to a prevailing defendant 
against the plaintiff upon a finding by the court that the plaintiff’s 
prosecution of the action was not in good faith. 
 

01/23/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

AB 1921 
(Papan) 
 
 

Energy: Renewable 
Electrical Generation 
Facilities 

 Expands the definition of â€œrenewable electrical generation 
facility to include a facility that uses linear generators using 
renewable fuels and meets other specified requirements. 

01/25/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

AB 1928 
(Sanchez) 
 
 

Worker Classification: 
Employees & Independent 
Contract 

 Repeals provisions that codify the ABC test. Declares that its 
purpose is to suspend and nullify the California Supreme 
Courtâ€™s decision in Dynamex and provide that this decision 
does not apply for purposes of California law. 
 

01/25/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

AB 1951 
(Fong) 
 
 

California Environmental 
Quality Act: Exemption 

 Exempts from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
a project for wildfire prevention within 50 feet of either side of a 
roadway. 

01/29/2024 - INTRODUCED. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-21 
 

AB 1953 
(Villapudua) 
 
 

Vehicles: Weight Limits  Clarifies that the maximum gross vehicle weight for a near-zero-
emission vehicle or a zero-emission vehicle is 82,000 pounds. 

01/29/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

ACA 2 
(Alanis) 
 
 

Public Resources: Water 
and Wildfire Resiliency Act 

 Establishes the Water and Wildfire Resiliency Fund within the 
State Treasury, and would require the Treasurer to annually 
transfer an amount equal to 3% of all state revenues that may be 
appropriated as described from the General Fund to the Water and 
Wildfire Resiliency Fund. Requires the moneys in the fund to be 
appropriated by the Legislature and requires that 50% of the 
moneys in the fund be used for water projects, and that the other 
50% of the moneys in the fund be used for forest maintenance. 
 

04/20/2023 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committees on WATER, PARKS 
AND WILDLIFE and NATURAL 
RESOURCES. 

ACA 16 
(Bryan) 
 
 

Environmental Rights  Amends the California Constitution to declare that the people 
have a right to clean air and water and a healthy environment. 

01/25/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

SB 74 
(Dodd) 
 
 

State Entities: State-Owned 
or State-Issued Devices 

 Requires State agencies, when implementing social media and 
cybersecurity policies pursuant to the Statewide Information 
Management Manual and authorizing any agency installation or 
download of an application for a particular social media platform 
on a State-issued or State-owned electronic device for an official 
State purpose, to adopt risk mitigation strategies tailored to risks 
posed by that social media platform. 
 

09/06/2023 - In ASSEMBLY.  To 
Inactive File. 

SB 231 
(Hurtado) 
 
 

Department of Water 
Resources: Water Supply 
Forecasting 

 Requires the Department of Water Resources to inventory its 
existing drought mitigation and response plans and submit a 
report to the Legislature identifying these plans and their purposes 
by specified date. Requires the report to include a 
recommendation on whether there is a need for a new 
comprehensive, long-term plan for mitigating and responding to 
the effects of drought at the State level. 
 

09/01/2023 - In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-22 
 

SB 233 
(Skinner) 
 
 

Electric Vehicles and 
Electric Vehicle Supply 
Equipment 

 Requires the Energy Commission, in consultation with the state 
board and the Public Utilities Commission, to convene a 
stakeholder workgroup to examine challenges and opportunities 
associated with using battery electric vehicle and bidirectional 
electric vehicle service equipment as a mobile battery to power a 
home or building or to provide electricity to the electrical grid, 
and require the Energy Commission, in consultation with the 
stakeholder workgroup to submit a report to the Governor and 
Legislature. 
 

09/13/2023 - In ASSEMBLY.  To 
Inactive File. 

SB 248 
(Newman) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Disclosures 

 Requires a candidate for elective office to file, when the candidate 
files a declaration of candidacy, a form to disclose the candidate's 
prior education and work history, and history of military service, 
if any. Requires the Fair Political Practices Commission to create 
a form for this purpose. Requires the Secretary of State to post on 
its website a copy of completed forms submitted by candidates, 
making such forms available to the public for a specified number 
of years from the date of the election. 
 

09/01/2023 - In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

SB 251 
(Newman) 
 
 

Candidates' Statements: 
False Statements 

 Provides that existing law prohibits a candidate for nonpartisan 
elective office, or an incumbent in a recall election, to knowingly 
make a false statement of material fact in the candidate's 
statement with the intent to mislead the voters in connection with 
the candidate's campaign for nomination or election to an office. 
Provides that a violation of this prohibition is punishable by a 
fine. Increases the maximum fine amount. 
 

01/16/2024 - In SENATE.  Read third 
time.  Passed SENATE.  *****To 
ASSEMBLY. 

SB 252 
(Gonzalez) 
 
 

Public Retirement Systems: 
Fossil Fuels: Divestment 

 Prohibits the boards of the Public Employees' Retirement System 
and the State Teachers' Retirement System from making new 
investments or renewing existing investments of public employee 
retirement funds in a fossil fuel company. Requires the boards to 
liquidate investments in a fossil fuel company on or before 
specified date. Suspends, temporarily, the liquidation provision 

06/08/2023 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on PUBLIC 
EMPLOYMENT AND 
RETIREMENT. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-23 
 

upon a good faith determination by the board that certain 
conditions materially impact normal market mechanisms for 
pricing assets. 
 

SB 265 
(Hurtado) 
 
 

Cybersecurity Preparedness: 
Critical Infrastructure 

 Requires the Office of Emergency Services to direct the 
California Cybersecurity Integration Center to prepare, and Cal 
OES to submit to the Legislature, a strategic, multiyear outreach 
plan to assist critical infrastructure sectors, in their efforts to 
improve cybersecurity and an evaluation of options for providing 
grants or alternative forms of funding to, and potential voluntary 
actions that do not require funding and that assist, that sector in 
their efforts to improve cybersecurity preparedness. 
 

07/10/2023 - From ASSEMBLY 
Committee on EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT:  Do pass to 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS. 

SB 299 
(Limon) 
 
 

Voter Registration: 
California New Motor Voter 
Program 

 Requires the Department of Motor Vehicles to transmit specified 
information to the Secretary of State for a person submitting a 
driver's license application who provides documentation 
demonstrating United States citizenship and that the person is of 
an eligible age to register or preregister to vote. 

06/13/2023 - From ASSEMBLY 
Committee on HEALTH with author's 
amendments.;06/13/2023 - In 
ASSEMBLY.  Read second time and 
amended. Re-referred to Committee on 
HEALTH. 

SB 308 
(Becker) 
 
 

Carbon Dioxide Removal 
Market Development Act 

 Requires the State Air Resources Board to prepare and approve a 
scoping plan for achieving the maximum technologically feasible 
and cost-effective reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and to 
update the scoping plan at least once every specified number of 
years. Enacts the Carbon Dioxide Removal Market Development 
Act. 
 

06/08/2023 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on NATURAL 
RESOURCES. 

SB 328 
(Dodd) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Contribution Limits 

 Relates to the Political Reform Act of 1974, which prohibits a 
person, other than a small contributor committee or political party 
committee, from making to a candidate for elective state, county, 
or city office, and prohibits those candidates from accepting from 
a person, a contribution totaling more than $3,000 per election. 
Applies those contribution limits to candidates for school district, 
community college district, and other special district elections. 

09/01/2023 - In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-24 
 

 
SB 366 
(Caballero) 
 
 

State Water Plan: Long-
Term Supply Targets 

Support Requires the Department of Water Resources to coordinate with 
the California Water Commission, the State Water Resources 
Control Board, other State and federal agencies, and the 
stakeholder advisory committee to develop a comprehensive plan 
for addressing the State's water needs and meeting specified long-
term water supply targets for purposes of the California Water 
Plan. Requires the department to submit an annual report between 
updates to the plan that includes progress made toward meeting 
the targets. 
 

07/11/2023 - In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on WATER, PARKS AND 
WILDLIFE:  Not heard. 

SB 393 
(Glazer) 
 
 

Environmental Quality Act: 
Judicial Challenge 

 Authorizes a defendant, in an action brought pursuant to the 
California Environmental Quality Act relating to a housing 
development project, to file a motion requesting the plaintiff or 
petitioner to identify every person or entity that contributes in 
excess of a specified amount toward the plaintiff's or petitioner's 
costs of the action. Authorizes the motion to be heard on 
shortened time at the court's discretion. 
 

07/06/2023 - In ASSEMBLY.  
Assembly Rule 56 suspended. 

SB 399 
(Wahab) 
 
 

Employer Communications: 
Intimidation 

 Prohibits, with specified exceptions, an employer from 
subjecting, or threatening to subject, an employee to discharge, 
discrimination, retaliation, or any other adverse action because 
the employee declines to attend an employer-sponsored meeting 
or affirmatively declines to participate in, receive, or listen to any 
communications with the employer or its agents or 
representatives, the purpose of which is to communicate the 
employer's opinion about religious or political matters. 

07/11/2023 - From ASSEMBLY 
Committee on JUDICIARY:  Do pass 
to Committee on APPROPRIATIONS. 

SB 409 
(Newman) 
 
 

Elections: Candidate's 
Statement 

 Provides that existing law authorizes a candidate for statewide 
elective office who accepts the voluntary expenditure limits to 
purchase the space to place a statement in a State voter 
information guide. Requires the Secretary of State to establish, on 
or before specified date, a pilot program that would allow a 

09/01/2023 - In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS.  
Held in committee and made a Two-
year bill. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-25 
 

candidate to include a QR code link to a video statement in the 
State voter information guide. 
 

SB 414 
(Allen) 
 
 

Climate Change: 
Applications Using 
Hydrogen: Assessment 

Watch Provides that existing law requires the State Air Resources Board 
to prepare and post an evaluation on its internet website related to 
the use of hydrogen in the State. Requires, on or before specified 
date, the Board, in consultation with the State Energy Resources 
Conservation and Development Commission and the Public 
Utilities Commission to complete an assessment of the use of 
hydrogen in certain applications. Requires the assessment to 
incorporate the findings of, and not duplicate, the evaluation. 
 

09/01/2023 - In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

SB 422 
(Portantino) 
 
 

California Environmental 
Quality Act 

 Requires specified public agencies, at the time of adoption of a 
rule or regulation requiring the reduction in emissions of 
greenhouse gases, criteria air pollutants, or toxic air contaminants, 
to perform an environmental analysis of the reasonably 
foreseeable methods of compliance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act. 
 

09/12/2023 - In ASSEMBLY.  To 
Inactive File. 

SB 477 
(Housing) 
 
 

Accessory Dwelling Units  Provides that existing law provides for the creation of junior 
accessory dwelling units by local ordinance, or, if a local agency 
has not adopted an ordinance, by ministerial approval, in 
accordance with specified standards and conditions. Makes 
nonsubstantive changes and reorganizes various provisions 
relating to the creation and regulation of accessory dwelling units 
and junior accessory dwelling units, and makes related 
nonsubstantive conforming changes. 
 

08/14/2023 - In ASSEMBLY.  Action 
rescinded whereby bill was read third 
time and passed.  To third 
reading.;08/14/2023 - In ASSEMBLY.  
To Inactive File. 

SB 504 
(Dodd) 
 
 

Wildfires: Defensible 
Space: Grant Programs 

 Provides that existing law requires fuels to be maintained and 
spaced in a condition so that a wildfire burning under average 
weather conditions would be unlikely to ignite the structure. 
Provides that a violation of these requirements is a crime. 
Requires fuels to be maintained and spaced in a condition so that 

05/11/2023 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on NATURAL 
RESOURCES. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-26 
 

a wildfire would be unlikely to ignite the structure. Makes a 
conforming change with respect to an area or land that is within a 
very high fire hazard severity zone designated by a local agency. 
 

SB 511 
(Blakespear) 
 
 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
Inventories 

 Provides that the California Global Warming Solutions Act 
requires the State Air Resources Board to prepare and approve a 
scoping plan for achieving the maximum technologically feasible 
and cost-effective reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and to 
update the scoping plan. Requires the Board to develop, and 
publish on its website, a report on greenhouse gas emissions 
inventories for the specified calendar year for each city, county, 
or city and county that requests inclusion in the report. 
 

09/01/2023 - In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

SB 518 
(Wilk) 
 
 

Elections: Certification of 
Results 

 Requires the elections official to submit the certified statement of 
the results of the election on the 30th calendar day following the 
election. 

06/08/2023 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on ELECTIONS. 

SB 537 
(Becker) 
 
 

Open Meetings: 
Multijurisdictional 

 Relates to the Ralph M. Brown Act. Expand the circumstances of 
just cause to apply to the situation in which an 
immunocompromised child, parent, grandparent, or other 
specified relative requires the member to participate remotely. 
Requires the legislative body to provide a record of attendance of 
the members of the legislative body, the number of community 
members in attendance in the teleconference meeting, and the 
number of public comments on its internet website after a 
teleconference meeting. 
 

09/14/2023 - In ASSEMBLY.  To 
Inactive File. 

SB 571 
(Allen) 
 
 

Fire Safety Regulations: 
Development Projects: 
Ingress 

 Requires the State Board of Forestry and Fire Protection to create, 
and provide to the Legislature, a report relating to standards for 
ingress and egress routes in new development. Requires the State 
Board to do certain things when creating the report, including 
provide opportunities for input from the public. Prohibits the 
State Board from adopting any regulations incorporating the 

01/29/2024 - In SENATE.  Read third 
time.  Passed SENATE.  *****To 
ASSEMBLY. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-27 
 

standards described in the report until after a specified number of 
months. 
 

SB 597 
(Glazer) 
 
 

Building Standards: 
Rainwater Catchment 
Systems 

 Requires the Department of Housing and Community 
Development to conduct research and develop recommendations 
regarding building standards for the installation of rainwater 
catchment systems in newly constructed residential dwellings and 
authorizes the department to propose related building standards to 
the California Building Standards Commission for consideration. 
Authorizes the department to expend moneys from the Building 
Standards Administration Special Revolving Fund. 
 

09/01/2023 - In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS.  
Held in committee and made a Two-
year bill. 

SB 611 
(Menjivar) 
 
 

Residential Rental 
Properties: Fees and 
Advertisements 

 Requires landlords or their agents who advertise or provide a 
quote for residential property for rent and who include a specific 
or range of monthly rent rates to include specified information in 
the monthly rate. Requires the additional amount of security 
deposit to be returned to the tenant after no more than a specified 
number of months of residency if the tenant is not in arrears for 
any rent due during that period and if the higher amount is not 
due to a prior history of residential property damage. 
 

06/08/2023 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on JUDICIARY. 

SB 632 
(Caballero) 
 
 

Candidate Statements  Provides that existing law allows certain candidates for State or 
federal elective office to purchase space to place a statement in 
the voter information portion of the sample ballot. Requires the 
Secretary of State or the Office of the Elections official to notify a 
candidate for statewide elective office, State Senate, or Assembly 
who files a statement with the Secretary or the elections official 
whether the statement was approved or rejected. 
 

09/11/2023 - In ASSEMBLY.  To 
Inactive File. 

SB 638 
(Eggman) 
 
 

Climate Resiliency and 
Flood Protection Bond Act 

Support Enacts the Climate Resiliency and Flood Protection Bond Act of 
2024 which, if approved by the voters, would authorize the 
issuance of bonds in the amount of a specified amount pursuant to 
the State General Obligation Bond Law, for flood protection and 

06/28/2023 - From ASSEMBLY 
Committee on WATER, PARKS AND 
WILDLIFE with author's 
amendments.;06/28/2023 - In 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-28 
 

climate resiliency projects. Provides that this bill is operative only 
if SB 867 of the 2023-24 Regular Session is enacted and takes 
effect on or before specified date. 
 

ASSEMBLY.  Read second time and 
amended. Re-referred to Committee on 
WATER, PARKS AND WILDLIFE. 

SB 651 
(Grove) 
 
 

California Environmental 
Quality Act: Groundwater 

 Relates to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act. 
Requires the Judicial Council to adopt a rule of court to establish 
procedures requiring actions or proceedings brought to attack, 
review, set aside, void, or annul the certification of an 
environmental impact report, or the granting of any project 
approvals, for groundwater recharge projects that implement a 
groundwater sustainability plan or an interim groundwater 
sustainability plan. 
 

06/22/2023 - In ASSEMBLY.  Read 
second time and amended. Re-referred 
to Committee on NATURAL 
RESOURCES. 

SB 718 
(Wilk) 
 
 

Elections: Official Canvass: 
Unprocessed Ballots 

 Relates to law that requires county elections officials during the 
official canvass period following an election to send reports to the 
Secretary of State regarding the number of unprocessed ballots. 
Requires the Secretary of State to make public the information 
contained in those reports. 

06/28/2023 - From ASSEMBLY 
Committee on ELECTIONS with 
author's amendments.;06/28/2023 - In 
ASSEMBLY.  Read second time and 
amended. Re-referred to Committee on 
ELECTIONS. 

SB 721 
(Becker) 
 
 

California Interagency AI 
Working Group 

 Creates the California Interagency AI Working Group to deliver a 
report to the Legislature regarding artificial intelligence. Requires 
require the working group members to be Californians with 
expertise in at least 2 of certain areas, including computer 
science, artificial intelligence, and data privacy. Requires the 
report to include a recommendation of a definition of artificial 
intelligence as it pertains to its use in technology for use in 
legislation. 
 

06/01/2023 - To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on PRIVACY AND 
CONSUMER PROTECTION. 

SB 724 
(Glazer) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Communications 

 Provides that the Political Reform Act of 1974 requires the 
disclosure of certain payments. Requires the disclosure of any 
payment of or promise to pay a specified amount or more for a 
communication that clearly identifies an elected State officer, and 
educates the public about the previous votes cast by the elected 

09/01/2023 - In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS.  
Held in committee and made a Two-
year bill. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-29 
 

officer or about the source of campaign donations received by the 
elected officer, and that is disseminated, broadcast, or otherwise 
published within a specified number of days of an election. 
 

SB 755 
(Becker) 
 
 

Energy Efficiency and 
Building Decarbonization 
Programs 

 Provides for the California's Layered Energy Applications for 
Residents (CLEAR) Act of 2023. Requires the State Energy 
Resources Conservation and Development Commission to 
develop and make publicly available an internet website for 
energy efficiency and building decarbonization programs 
administered by the Energy Commission, federal or local 
governmental agencies, and nonprofit organizations that are 
available in the State for residential buildings and residential 
electricity customers. 
 

09/01/2023 - In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

SB 769 
(Gonzalez) 
 
 

Local Government: Fiscal 
and Financial Training 

 Provides that existing law imposes ethics training and sexual 
harassment prevention training and education on specified local 
agency officials. Exempts a local agency official from the training 
requirements if they comply with specified criteria under existing 
law relating to eligibility for appointment or election to, and 
continuing education for, the office of county treasurer, county 
tax collector, or county treasurer-tax collector. 
 

09/01/2023 - In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

SB 778 
(Ochoa Bogh) 
 
 

Excavations: Subsurface 
Installations 

Watch Provides that existing law establishes the California Underground 
Facilities Safe Excavation Board for the enforcement and 
administration of the Safe Dig Act and requires the Governor to 
appoint a certain number of the board members. Revises the 
knowledge and experience requirements for a certain number of 
the members appointed by the Governor. Requires an operator to 
contact the excavator by electronic positive response if the area 
delineated by the excavator does not match the ticket description. 
 

06/15/2023 - From ASSEMBLY 
Committee on UTILITIES AND 
ENERGY with author's 
amendments.;06/15/2023 - In 
ASSEMBLY.  Read second time and 
amended. Re-referred to Committee on 
UTILITIES AND ENERGY. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-30 
 

SB 781 
(Stern) 
 
 

Methane Emissions: Natural 
Gas Producing Low 
Methane 

 Provides that existing law requires the State Air Resources Board 
to quantify and publish annually the amount of greenhouse gas 
emissions resulting from the loss or release of uncombusted 
natural gas to the atmosphere and emissions from natural gas 
flares during all processes associated with the production, 
processing, and transporting of natural gas imported into the State 
from out-of-state sources. Requires the board to request and 
incorporate certain information from utilities and other large gas 
users. 
 

09/01/2023 - In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

SB 830 
(Smallwood-
Cueva) 
 
 

Public Works  Requires a contractor engaging a third-party, permanent, and 
offsite fabrication facility to fabricate custom sheet metal ducts 
for a public works project to enter into a contract with the facility 
that requires compliance with specified public works laws. 
Requires certified copies of payroll records for the offsite, custom 
fabrication of sheet metal ducts to be accompanied by a written 
time record of that work certified by each employee performing 
the work. 
 

09/08/2023 - In ASSEMBLY.  To 
Inactive File. 

SB 863 
(Allen) 
 
 

Measures Proposed by the 
Legislature 

 Allows the Legislature to specify that a constitutional 
amendment, bond measure, or other legislative measure submitted 
to the people will appear on the ballot at an election other the first 
statewide election if the election specified in the proposal would 
occur at least a specified number of days after adoption of the 
proposal by the Legislature. 
 

01/30/2024 - In SENATE.  Read third 
time.  Passed SENATE.  *****To 
ASSEMBLY. 

SB 867 
(Allen) 
 
 

Drought, Flood, and Water 
Resilience 

Support if 
Amended 

Enacts the Drought, Flood, and Water Resilience, Wildfire and 
Forest Resilience, Coastal Resilience, Extreme Heat Mitigation, 
Biodiversity and Nature-Based Climate Solutions, Climate Smart 
Agriculture, Park Creation and Outdoor Access, and Clean 
Energy Bond Act of 2024, which would authorize the issuance of 
bonds to finance projects for, among other things, drought, flood, 
and water resilience. Provides for the submission of these 

06/22/2023 - In ASSEMBLY.  Read 
second time and amended. Re-referred 
to Committee on NATURAL 
RESOURCES. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-31 
 

provisions to the voters at the specified statewide primary 
election. 

SB 901 
(Umberg) 
 
 

Civil Actions: Time for 
Commencement: Unwritten 
Lease 

 Makes technical, nonsubstantive changes to existing law which 
prohibits an action for breach of an unwritten lease of real 
property from being brought more than 2 years after breach of the 
lease and abandonment of the property, or more than 2 years after 
termination of the right of the lessee to possession of the property, 
whichever is the earlier time. 
 

01/03/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

SB 903 
(Skinner) 
 
 

Environmental Health: 
Product Safety: 
Perfluoroalkyl 

 States the intent of the Legislature to enact subsequent legislation 
to phase out the sale of products with avoidable perfluoroalkyl 
and polyfluoroalkyl substances. 

01/04/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

SB 908 
(Cortese) 
 
 

Public Records: Legislative 
Records: Electronic 
Message 

 Prohibits an elected or appointed official or employee of a public 
agency from creating or sending a public record using a 
nonofficial electronic messaging system unless the official or 
employee sends a copy of the public record to an official 
electronic messaging system. 
 

01/08/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

SB 915 
(Cortese) 
 
 

Local Government: 
Autonomous Vehicles 

 Prohibits an autonomous vehicle service, which has received 
approval to conduct commercial passenger service or engage in 
commercial activity using driverless vehicles by the Department 
of Motor Vehicles, the Public Utilities Commission, or another 
state agency, from commencing operation within a local 
jurisdiction until authorized by a local ordinance enacted pursuant 
to the bill's provisions. 
 

01/09/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

SB 924 
(Bradford) 
 
 

Tenancy: Credit Reporting: 
Lower Income Households 

 Deletes the repeal date, thereby extending existing law relative to 
tenancy, credit reporting and lower income households, 
indefinitely. 

01/11/2024 - INTRODUCED. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-32 
 

SB 934 
(Gonzalez) 
 
 

Vehicles: Width  Makes technical, nonsubstantive changes to provisions of law 
prohibiting the total outside width of a vehicle or its load from 
exceeding 102 inches, except as specified. 

01/16/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

SB 937 
(Wiener) 
 
 

Development Projects: 
Permits and Other 
Entitlements 

 Extends, for a specified period of time, months the period for the 
expiration, effectuation, or utilization of a housing entitlement, as 
defined, that was issued before a specified date, and that will 
expire before a specified date, except as specified. 
 

01/17/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

SB 946 
(McGuire) 
 
 

Wildfires: Community 
Hardening 

 States the intent of the Legislature to enact subsequent legislation 
related to community hardening to address risks resulting from 
wildfires. 

01/18/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

SB 955 
(Seyarto) 
 
 

Office of Planning and 
Research: Infrastructure 
Program 

 Requires the Office of Planning and Research, upon appropriation 
by the Legislature, to establish the Infrastructure Gap-Fund 
Program to provide grants to assist local agencies in developing 
and constructing infrastructure projects. Requires the office to 
develop guidelines and criteria to implement the program. 
 

01/22/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

SB 958 
(Dodd) 
 
 

Surplus State Property: 
County of Napa 

 Relates to surplus state property and the County of Napa. Deletes 
the exemption for the property known as Camp Coombs, thereby 
authorizing the Director of General Services to sell or exchange 
that property by January 1, 2026. 
 

01/23/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

SB 961 
(Wiener) 
 
 

Vehicles: Safety Equipment  Requires certain trucks and trailers to also be equipped with side 
guards, as specified. Requires the Department of the California 
Highway Patrol to adopt rules and regulations requiring driver 
inspections of side guards and requiring the department to inspect 
side guards that have been involved in collisions. 
 

01/23/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

SB 964 
(Seyarto) 
 

Property Tax: Tax-
Defaulted Property Sales 

 Prohibits a property or property interest from being offered for 
sale under the provisions described above if that property or 

01/23/2024 - INTRODUCED. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-33 
 

 property interest has not been offered for sale under specified 
provisions. 
 

SB 984 
(Wahab) 
 
 

Public Agencies: Project 
Labor Agreements 

 Authorizes a state agency to undertake a major state construction 
project only if that project is governed by a project labor 
agreement and if that project labor agreement includes 
community benefit goals, as specified, and would define various 
terms for these purposes. Authorizes the Governor to waive this 
requirement if the state agency has attempted to comply with this 
requirement and the Governor makes a written determination that 
the application of this requirement would be impracticable. 
 

01/29/2024 - INTRODUCED. 

SCA 2 
(Stern) 
 
 

Elections: Voter 
Qualifications 

 Provides that the California Constitution allows a United States 
citizen who is at least 18 years of age and a resident of the State 
to vote. Reduces the minimum voting age to a specified age. 

09/01/2023 - From SENATE 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Be adopted.;09/01/2023 - In SENATE.  
Ordered to third reading. 

SCA 3 
(Niello) 
 
 

Elections: Initiatives and 
Referenda 

 Transfers from the Attorney General to the Legislative Analyst 
the duty of preparing the title and summary for a proposed 
initiative or referendum. Requires, for each measure that appears 
on a statewide ballot, the Legislative Analyst to prepare the ballot 
label and the ballot title and summary for the state voter 
information guide. 
 

09/01/2023 - In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

HR 1430 
(Valadao) 
 
 

National Environmental 
Policy Act Review 
Requirements 

Support Directs the Secretary of the Interior and the Secretary of 
Agriculture to use certain previously completed environmental 
assessments and environmental impact statements to satisfy the 
review requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act of 
1969. 
 

04/25/2023 - In HOUSE Committee on 
AGRICULTURE:  Referred to 
Subcommittee on FORESTRY. 

HR 2964 
(McClain) 
 
 

Do Not Flush Labeling 
Requirements 

Support Requires the Federal Trade Commission to issue regulations 
requiring certain products to have Do Not Flush labeling. 

12/06/2023 - In HOUSE Committee on 
ENERGY AND COMMERCE:  
Consideration and mark-up session 
held.;12/06/2023 - In HOUSE 



EXHIBIT “A” 
IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  

Updated: January 31, 2024 
 

Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-34 
 

Committee on ENERGY AND 
COMMERCE:  Ordered to be reported 
as amended. 

HR 3027 
(Porter) 
 
 

Reclamation Climate 
Change and Water Program 
Funding 

Support Reauthorizes funding for the Reclamation Climate Change and 
Water Program. 
 

06/09/2023 - In HOUSE Committee on 
NATURAL RESOURCES:  Referred 
to Subcmt on WATER, WILDLIFE 
AND FISHERIES. 

S 1350 
(Merkley) 
 
 

Do Not Flush Labeling 
Regulations 

Support Requires the Federal Trade Commission to issue regulations 
requiring certain products to have Do Not Flush labeling. 

04/27/2023 - 
INTRODUCED.;04/27/2023 - In 
SENATE.  Read second 
time.;04/27/2023 - To SENATE 
Committee on COMMERCE, 
SCIENCE, AND 
TRANSPORTATION. 

S 1429 
(Lummis) 
 
 

PFAS Substance Liability 
Exemptions 

Support Exempts certain entities from liability under the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 
specified year with respect to releases of perfluoroalkyl and 
polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS). 

05/03/2023 - 
INTRODUCED.;05/03/2023 - In 
SENATE.  Read second 
time.;05/03/2023 - To SENATE 
Committee on ENVIRONMENT AND 
PUBLIC WORKS. 

 



No. 7 WSA Tustin Legacy & MarketPlace 7 

February 12, 2024 
Prepared by: M. Lindsay / N. Palacio / 

K. Welch / E. Akiyoshi
Submitted by: F. Sanchez / P. Weghorst 
Approved by: Paul A. Cook 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENTS FOR 
TUSTIN LEGACY SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT AND 

TUSTIN MARKET PLACE PROJECT 

SUMMARY: 

In November 2023, IRWD received two requests from the City of Tustin (City) to complete 
Water Supply Assessments (WSAs) as required under SB 610 for the Tustin Legacy Specific 
Plan Amendment and the Tustin Market Place Project.  Staff has completed the WSAs for each 
of the proposed projects and recommends Board approval of the documents. 

BACKGROUND: 

The City of Tustin’s 2021-29 Housing Element identified several areas that could accommodate 
additional units to meet the City’s Regional House Needs Allocation as required by the State of 
California.  Two of these areas are the Tustin Legacy Specific Plan (TLSP) and the Tustin 
Market Place.  The City proposes to amend the TLSP to include an additional 4,780 units for a 
total of 11,963 units.  The TLSP is generally bounded by Red Hill Avenue on the west, Edinger 
Avenue on the north, Harvard Avenue on the east, and Barranca Parkway on the south.  The 
Tustin Market Place is an existing shopping center where the City proposes to add 900 dwelling 
units within the surface parking area.  The Tustin Market Place is located between Myford Road, 
Bryan Avenue, Jamboree Road, and Interstate 5.  A location map of TLSP is provided as Exhibit 
“A,” and a map of the Tustin Market Place is provided as Exhibit “B”. 

Separate WSAs have been completed for the TLSP Amendment and the Tustin Market Place 
Project, which are provided as Exhibit “C” and Exhibit “D”, respectively.  The WSAs for the 
proposed projects are based on information from IRWD’s most recent Water Resources Master 
Plan.  Estimates show an increase in IRWD potable water demands for the TLSP Amendment of 
601 acre-feet per year (AFY) and a decrease of 23 AFY of non-potable demands.  The Tustin 
Market Place Project includes an estimated increase of 102 AFY of potable demand and a 
decrease of 2 AFY of non-potable demand.  Each WSA concludes that the total water supplies 
available to IRWD during normal, single-dry, and multiple-dry years within a 20-year projection 
will meet the projected water demand of the project.  This demand is in addition to the existing 
and planned future uses including, but not limited to, agricultural and manufacturing. 

FISCAL IMPACTS: 

None. 



Consent Calendar:  Water Supply Assessments for Tustin Legacy Specific Plan Amendment and 
Tustin Market Place Project 
February 7, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 
 
Not applicable. 
 
COMMITTEE STATUS: 
 
This item was reviewed by the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee on 
February 7, 2024. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
THAT THE BOARD APPROVE THE WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT FOR THE TUSTIN 
LEGACY SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT AND THE WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT 
FOR THE TUSTIN MARKET PLACE PROJECT. 
 
LIST OF EXHIBITS: 
 
Exhibit “A” – Tustin Legacy Specific Plan Amendment Location Map 
Exhibit “B” – Tustin Market Place Project Location Map 
Exhibit “C” – Water Supply Assessment for The Tustin Legacy Specific Plan Amendment 
Exhibit “D” – Water Supply Assessment for Tustin Market Place Project 



Exhibit "A"

A - 1



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



City of Tustin Exhibit "B"

B-1



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



1

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 
ASSESSMENT OF WATER SUPPLY 

Water Code §10910 et seq. 

To: (Lead Agency) 

City of Tustin 
300 Centennial Way 
Tustin, CA 92780 

(Applicant) 
City of Tustin 
300 Centennial Way 
Tustin, CA 92780 

Project Information 

Project Title:   Tustin Legacy Specific Plan Amendment  (Exhibit A)    

Residential: No. of dwelling units:   4,780 dwelling units (See Exhibit B) 
Shopping center or business: No. of employees N/A   Sq. ft. of floor space 9,532,419 total 
(no change) 
Commercial office: No. of employees   Sq. ft. of floor space 
Hotel or motel: No. of rooms  
Industrial, manufacturing or processing:  No. of employees  No. of acres 
Sq. ft. of floor space  
Mixed use (check and complete all above that apply)  
Other:   

Assessment of Availability of Water Supply 

On ________________ the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) approved the 
within assessment and made the following determination regarding the above-described Project: 

The projected water demand for the Project   was  was not included in IRWD’s most 
recently adopted urban water management plan. 

A sufficient water supply is available for the Project. 

The total water supplies available to IRWD during normal, single-dry and multiple-dry 
years within a 20-year projection will meet the projected water demand of the Project in 
addition to the demand of existing and other planned future uses, including, but not 
limited to, agricultural and manufacturing uses. 

A sufficient water supply is not available for the Project. [Plan for acquiring and 

developing sufficient supply attached.  Water Code § 10911(a)] 

The foregoing determination is based on the following Water Supply Assessment Information and 
supporting information in the records of IRWD. 

Signature Date Title 

C -1

Exhibit "C"



2 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

Water Supply Assessment Information 
 
Purpose of Assessment 
 
 Irvine Ranch Water District (“IRWD”) has been identified by the City as a public water 
system that will supply water service (both potable and nonpotable) to the project identified on 
the cover page of this assessment (the “Project”).  As the public water system, IRWD is required 
by Section 10910 et seq. of the Water Code to provide the City with an assessment of water 
supply availability (“assessment”) for defined types of projects.  The Project has been found by 
the City to be a project requiring an assessment.  The City is required to include this 
assessment in the environmental document for the Project, and based on the record, make a 
determination whether projected water supplies are sufficient for the Project and existing and 
planned uses. 
 

Water Code Section 10910 et seq. (the “Assessment Law”) contains the requirements 
for the information to be set forth in the assessment. 
  
Prior Water Supply Assessments 
 

IRWD does not allocate particular supplies to any project but identifies total supplies for 
its service area.  Because of IRWD’s aggregation of demands and supplies, each assessment 
completed by IRWD is expected to be generally similar to the most recent assessment, with 
changes as needed to take into account changes, if any, in demands and supplies, and any 
updated and corrected information obtained by IRWD.  Previously assessed projects’ water 
demands will be included in the baseline.  A newly assessed project’s water demand will have 
been included in previous water supply assessments for other projects (as part of IRWD’s “full 
build-out” demand) to the extent of any land use planning or other water demand information for 
the project that was available to IRWD.   
 

The Project’s water demand was included (as part of IRWD’s “full build-out” demand) in 
previous water supply assessments performed by IRWD, based on land use planning 
information available to IRWD.  In this water supply assessment, the Project demand will be 
revised in accordance with updated information provided by the applicant and included in the 
“with project” demand.   
 
Supporting Documentation 
 

IRWD prepares two planning documents to guide water supply decision-making.  
IRWD’s principal planning document is IRWD’s “Water Resources Master Plan” (“WRMP”).  The 
WRMP is a comprehensive document compiling data and analyses that IRWD considers 
necessary for its planning needs.  IRWD also prepares an Urban Water Management Plan 
(“UWMP”), a document required by statute.  The UWMP is based on the WRMP, but contains 
defined elements as listed in the statute (Water Code Section 10631 et seq.), and, as a result, is 
more limited than the WRMP in the treatment of supply and demand issues.  Therefore, IRWD 
primarily relies on its most recent WRMP.  The UWMP is required to be updated in years ending 
with “five” and “zero,” and IRWD’s most recent update of that document (2020 UWMP) was 
adopted in June 2021.   

 
In addition to the WRMP and the 2020 UWMP mentioned above, other supporting 

documentation referenced herein is found in Section 6 of this assessment. 
 

C -2



3 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

   Due to the number of contracts, statutes and other documents comprising IRWD’s 
written proof of entitlement to its water supplies, in lieu of attachment of such items, they are 
identified by title and summarized in Section 2(b) of this assessment (written contracts/proof of 
entitlement).  Copies of the summarized items can be obtained from IRWD. 
 
Assessment Methodology 
 
 Water use factors; dry-year increases.  IRWD employs water use factors to enable it 
to assign water demands to the various land use types and aggregate the demands.  The water 
use factors are based on average water use and incorporate the effect of IRWD’s tiered-rate 
conservation pricing and its other water use efficiency programs.  The factors are derived from 
historical usage (billing data) and a detailed review of water use factors within the IRWD service 
areas conducted as a part of the WRMP.  System losses at a rate of approximately 5% are built 
into the water use factors.  Water demands also reflect normal hydrologic conditions 
(precipitation).  Lower levels of precipitation and higher temperatures will temporarily result in 
higher water demands, due primarily to the need for additional water for irrigation.  To reflect 
this, base (normal) WRMP water demands have been increased by 7% in the assessment 
during both “single-dry” and “multiple-dry” years.   This increase in estimated demands is 
considered conservative and is consistent with the Municipal Water District of Orange County’s 
(“MWDOC”) 2020 UWMP which assumes increased demands in single-dry and multiple dry 
years of 6% based on MWDOC’s Orange County Reliability Study (MWDOC 2020 UWMP, pg. 
7-2).  The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (“MWD”) also considers these 
weather variables in their climate adjustment factors when forecasting demands, as 
documented in MWD’s 2020 UWMP which shows an average increase of 8% for single dry year 
demands (MWD 2020 UWMP Tables 2-4, 2-5, 2-6) and also documented in their 2020 
Integrated Resources Plan - Regional Needs Assessment (2022).    

 
Planning horizon.  In accordance with Water Code Section 10910, this assessment 

reviews demands and supplies covering a 20-year planning horizon.  For consistency with 
IRWD’s WRMP, the assessment reviews demands and supplies through the year 2044, which is 
considered to include build-out or “ultimate development”.   

 
 Assessment of demands.  Water demands are reviewed in this assessment for three 
development projections (to 2044): 
 

• Existing and committed demand (without the Project) (“baseline”). This provides a 
baseline condition as of the date of this assessment, consisting of demand from existing 
development, plus demand from development that has both approved zoning and (if 
required by the Assessment Law) an adopted water supply assessment.  

 

• Existing and committed demand, plus the Project (“with-project”). This projection adds 
the Project water demands to the baseline demands. 

 

• Full WRMP build-out (“full build-out”).  In addition to the Project, this projection adds 
potential demands for all presently undeveloped areas of IRWD based on current 
general plan information, modified by more specific information available to IRWD, as 
more fully described in Chapter 2 of the WRMP. 

 
 Assessment of supplies.  For comparison with demands, water supplies are classified 
as currently available or under development: 
 

C -3



4 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

• Currently available supplies include those that are presently operational, and those that 
will be operational within the next several years.  Supplies expected to be operational in 
the next several years are those having completed or substantially completed the 
environmental and regulatory review process, as well as having necessary contracts (if 
any) in place to move forward.  These supplies are in various stages of planning, design, 
or construction. 

 

• In general, supplies under development may necessitate the preparation and 
completion of environmental documents, regulatory approvals, and/or contracts prior to 
full construction and implementation. 

 
IRWD is also evaluating the development of additional supplies that are not included in either 
currently available or under-development supplies for purposes of this assessment.  As outlined 
in the WRMP, prudent water supply and financial planning dictates that development of supplies 
be phased in over time consistent with the growth in demand. 
 
 Water supplies available to IRWD include several sources: groundwater pumped from 
the Orange County groundwater basin (including the Irvine Subbasin); captured local (native) 
surface water; recycled sewage; and supplemental imported water supplied by MWD through 
the MWDOC.  The supply-demand comparisons in this assessment are broken down among the 
various sources and are further separated into potable and nonpotable water sources. 
 
 Comparison of demand and supply.  The three demand projections noted above 
(baseline, with-project and full build-out) are compared with supplies in the following ways: 
 

• On a total annual quantity basis (stated in acre-feet per year (“AFY”)). 
 

• On a peak-flow (maximum day) basis (stated in cubic feet per second (“cfs”)). 
 

• Under three climate conditions: base (normal) conditions and single-dry and multiple-
dry year conditions.  (Note: These conditions are compared for annual demands and not 
for peak-flow demands.  Peak-flow is a measure of a water delivery system’s ability to 
meet the highest day’s demand of the fluctuating demands that will be experienced in a 
year’s time.  Peak demands occur during the hot, dry season and as a result are not 
appreciably changed by dry-year conditions; dry-year conditions do affect annual 
demand by increasing the quantity of water needed to supplement normal wet-season 
precipitation.) 

 
Summary of Results of Demand-Supply Comparisons 
 
 Listed below are Figures provided in this assessment, comparing projected potable and 
nonpotable water supplies and demands under the three development projections: 
 
 Figure 1:   Normal Year Supply and Demand – Potable Water 
 Figure 2:   Single Dry-Year Supply and Demand – Potable Water  
 Figure 3:   Multiple Dry-Year Supply and Demand – Potable Water  
 Figure 4:   Maximum-Day Supply and Demand – Potable Water 
 Figure 5:   Normal Year Supply and Demand – Nonpotable Water 
 Figure 6:   Single Dry-Year Supply and Demand – Nonpotable Water  
 Figure 7:   Multiple Dry-Year Supply and Demand – Nonpotable Water 
 Figure 8:   Maximum-Day Supply and Demand – Nonpotable Water 

C -4



5 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

 
 It can be observed in the Figures that IRWD's supplies remain essentially constant 
between normal, single-dry, and multiple-dry years.  This result is due to the fact that 
groundwater and MWD imported water account for the majority of all of IRWD's potable supply, 
and recycled water, groundwater and imported water comprise all of IRWD’s nonpotable supply.  
Groundwater production typically remains constant or may increase in cycles of dry years, even 
if overdraft of the basin temporarily increases, as groundwater producers reduce their demand 
on imported supplies to secure reliability.  (See Section 4 herein.)  As to imported water, MWD’s 
2020 Urban Water Management Plan (MWD 2020 UWMP) concludes that MWD has supply 
capabilities sufficient to meet expected demands from 2025 through 2045 under a single dry 
year condition and a period of drought lasting five consecutive water years, as well as in a 
normal water year hydrologic condition.  (See also Section 2(b) (1) “IMPORTED SUPPLY - 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION,” below.)   Recycled water production also remains constant and 
is considered "drought-proof" as a result of the fact that sewage flows remain virtually 
unaffected by dry years.  Only a small portion of IRWD's supply, native water captured in Irvine 
Lake, is reduced in single-dry and multiple-dry years.   The foregoing factors also serve to 
explain why there is no difference in IRWD's supplies between single-dry and multiple-dry years. 
 
A review of the Figures indicates the following: 

 

• Currently available supplies of potable water are adequate to meet annual demands for 
the baseline, with-project and full build-out scenarios projected under the normal year, 
and the single- and multiple-dry year conditions through the year 2044.  (Figures 1, 2 
and 3.)  IRWD plans to proceed with the implementation of future potable supplies 
(under development), as shown in the Figures, to improve local reliability during dry-year 
conditions.  
 

• Adequate currently available potable water supply capacity is available to meet peak-
flow (maximum day) demands for all demand projections through the year 2044. (Figure 
4.) 

 

• With respect to nonpotable water, currently available supplies are adequate to meet 
projected annual demands for both the baseline and with-project demand projections 
under both dry-year conditions through the year 2044. (Figures 5, 6, 7 and 8.)  IRWD 
has implemented all planned nonpotable supplies, as shown in the Figures, to improve 
local reliability during dry-year conditions.   

 
The foregoing Figures provide an overview of IRWD potable and nonpotable water supply 
capabilities.  More detailed information on the anticipated development and use of supplies, 
which incorporates source costs and reliability issues, is provided in the WRMP. 
 
 Margins of safety.  The Figures and other information described in this assessment 
show that IRWD’s assessment of supply availability contains several margins of safety or 
buffers: 
 

• “Reserve” water supplies (excess of supplies over demands) will be available to serve 
as a buffer against inaccuracies in demand projections, future changes in land use, or 
alterations in supply availability. 

 

• Conservative estimates of annual potable and nonpotable imported supplies have 
been made based on connected delivery capacity (by application of peaking factors as 

C -5



6 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

described below in Section 2, footnote 1); additional supplies are expected to be 
available from these sources, based on legal entitlements, historical uses and 
information provided by MWD.  In addition to MWD’s existing regional supply 
assessments, this assessment has considered MWD information concerning operational 
limits on Delta pumping.  See “Actions on Delta Pumping,” below. 
 

• Information provided by MWD, as the imported water supplier, concerning the 
adequacy of its regional supplies, summarized herein, demonstrates MWD’s inclusion of 
reserves in its regional supply assessments.  In addition to MWD’s existing regional 
supply assessments, this assessment has considered MWD’s information concerning 
operational limits on Delta pumping.  See “Actions on Delta Pumping,” below. 

 

• Although groundwater supply amounts shown in this assessment assume production 
levels within applicable basin production percentages described herein, production of 
groundwater can exceed applicable basin production percentages on a short-term basis, 
which can provide additional reliability during dry years or emergencies.  See “IRWD’s 
Evaluation of Effect of Reduced MWD Supplies to IRWD,” below. 
 
Actions on Delta Pumping. The Sacramento/San Joaquin Delta (“Delta”) is a 

vulnerable component in both the State and Federal systems to convey water from northern 
portions of California to areas south of the Delta.  Issues associated with the Delta have 
generally been known for years; however, the continuing decline in the number of endangered 
Delta smelt resulted in the filing of litigation challenging permits for the operation of the Delta 
pumping facilities.  On August 31, 2007, a Federal court ordered interim protective measures for 
the endangered Delta smelt, including operational limits on Delta pumping, which have an effect 
on State Water Project (“SWP”) operations and supplies.  On June 4, 2009, a federal biological 
opinion imposed rules that further restrict water diversions from the Delta to protect endangered 
salmon and other endangered fish species.  Several proceedings concerning Delta operations 
were initiated to evaluate options to address Delta smelt impacts and other environmental 
concerns.  In addition to the regulatory and judicial proceedings to address immediate 
environmental concerns, the Delta Vision process and Bay-Delta Conservation Plan (“BDCP”) 
process were established to identify long-term solutions for the Delta.  In addition, State and 
federal agencies and water user entities are currently engaged in the development of the Delta 
Conveyance Project (previously California WaterFix), which is aimed at making physical and 
operational improvements in the Delta necessary to improve south of the Delta SWP water 
supplies and water quality and protect ecosystem health in the Delta (MWD 2020 UWMP).  Prior 
to the 2007 court decision, MWD’s Board approved a Delta Action Plan in May 2007, that 
described short, mid and long-term conditions and the actions to mitigate potential supply 
shortages and to develop and implement long-term solutions.  To address uncertainties in 
expected SWP supplies, in October 2007, MWD prepared its 2007 Integrated Resources Plan 
(“IRP”) Implementation Report, in which MWD estimated that it could see as much as up to a 
22% reduction on average of its SWP supplies based on the court order. As part of its ongoing 
long term planning, in its 2010 IRP Update, MWD identified changes to the long-term plan and 
established direction to address the range of potential changes in water supply planning.  The 
2010 IRP also discusses dealing with uncertainties related to impacts of climate change (see 
additional discussion of this below), as well as actions to protect endangered fisheries.  The 
2010 IRP Update emphasizes an evolving approach and suite of actions to address the water 
supply challenges that are posed by uncertain weather patterns, regulatory and environmental 
restrictions, water quality impacts and changes in the state and the region.  The 2010 IRP 
Update includes MWD’s Adaptive Resource Management Strategy three components:  Core 
Resources Strategy, Supply Buffer Implementation and Foundational Actions, which together 

C -6



7 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

provides the basis for the 2010 IRP Update.  The 2010 IRP Update expands the concept of 
developing a planning buffer from the 2004 IRP Update by implementing a supply buffer equal 
to 10 percent of the total retail demand.   

 
In January 2016, MWD adopted its 2015 IRP Update. In the 2015 IRP Update, MWD 

continued its Adaptive Resource Management Strategy and integrated future supply actions to 
improve the viability of potential contingency resources as needed, and to position the region to 
effectively implement these resources in a timely manner. The 2015 IRP finds that additional 
actions are needed in investments in conservation, local supplies, the Delta Conveyance Project 
(previously California WaterFix), and stabilizing Colorado River supplies. Among the supply 
actions, MWD will continue to work collaboratively with state and federal agencies on the 
California WaterFix, maximize its storage and transfer approach, and continue to develop and 
protect local supplies and conservation.   

 
MWD is currently developing its 2020 IRP Update and has completed and adopted a 

2020 IRP Regional Needs Assessment which is considered Phase 1 of the 2020 IRP.  A One 
Water Implementation phase will be Phase 2 of the 2020 IRP.  The One Water Implementation 
will take the results and findings of Phase 1 to identify integrated regional solutions.  It will 
include an updated Adaptive Management Strategy, policies, programs and projects to address 
the findings and mitigate any potential shortages.   

  
IRWD’s Evaluation of Effect of Reduced MWD Supplies to IRWD:   In the MWD 2020 

UWMP, MWD states it has supply capability that would be sufficient to meet expected demands 
from 2025 to 2045 under single dry year and multiple dry year conditions. 1   

 
Based on the prior MWD 2007 IRP Implementation Report and also reported in the 

MWD 2015 IRP, MWD estimated that it could receive reduction of SWP supplies of up to 22% 
on average until a long-term solution was implemented.  For purposes of ensuring a 
conservative analysis, IRWD made an evaluation of the effect of the 22% estimated reduction of 
MWD’s SWP supplies on its overall imported supplies.  IRWD estimates that 22% reduction of 
SWP supplies conservatively translates to approximately 16% reduction in all of MWD’s 
imported supplies over the years 2025 through 2045.  For this purpose, it is assumed that 
MWD’s total supplies consist only of imported SWP and Colorado deliveries.  Based on this 
estimate, this assessment uses a 16% reduction in MWD supplies available to IRWD for the 
years 2025 through 2045, using IRWD’s connected capacity without any water supply allocation 
imposed by MWD.  This reduction in MWD supplies is reflected in Figures 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, and 7. 
(See also the footnote 1).   

 
Per the MWD 2020 UWMP, MWD performs water shortage planning in its Water Surplus 

and Drought Management (“WSDM”) Plan (1988) which guides MWD’s planning and operations 
during both shortage and surplus conditions.  Furthermore, MWD developed the Water Supply 
Allocation Plan (“WSAP”) (dated February 2009, updated December 2014) which provides 
standardized methodology for allocation of MWD’s supplies during times of shortage.  The 
WSDM Plan distinguishes between shortages, severe shortages, and extreme shortages.  

 
1 The MWD 2020 UWMP utilized DWR’s 2019 SWP Delivery Capability Report to estimate future SWP supplies for 

2025 through 2045.  These estimates incorporate the effect of regulatory requirements in accordance with biological 
opinions and also reflect potential impacts of climate change on SWP operations. Tables A.3-7 of the MWD 2020 
UWMP reflect 58% or 1.1 MAF in MWD’s expected average year SWP entitlement supplies.  This amount is a higher 
expected average than MWD’s 2015 estimate of 984,000 AF.  For purposes of a conservative analysis, IRWD has 
used the 22% reduction in its supplies from MWD as the basis of IRWD’s analysis.    

 

C -7



8 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

These terms have specific meanings relating to MWD’s ability to deliver water and the actions it 
takes.  In June 2008, MWD’s Board adopted a Water Supply Condition Framework to 
communicate the urgency of the region’s water supply situation and the need for further water 
conservation to reduce regional demands, MWD uses the WSDM Plan and Framework to 
determine if a WSAP is recommended.    

 
As an alternative means of analyzing the effect of reduced MWD supplies on IRWD, 

listed below are Figures provided comparing projected potable water supplies and demands in 
all of the five year increments, under a temporary MWD allocation scenario: 
 
 Figure 1a: Normal Year Supply and Demand (MWD Allocated) – Potable Water  
 Figure 2a: Single Dry-Year Supply and Demand (MWD Allocated) – Potable Water 
 Figure 3a:  Multiple Dry-Year Supply and Demand (MWD Allocated) – Potable Water 

 
Figures 1a, 2a, and 3a show IRWD’s estimated supplies (average and single and 

multiple dry years) under a short-term MWD water supply allocation scenario whereby MWD 
declares a shortage stage under its WSAP, and a cutback is applied to IRWD’s actual usage 
rather than its connected capacity.  IRWD’s evaluation of reduced MWD supplies to IRWD as 
shown in Figures 1a, 2a and 3a conservatively analyzes the effect of up to a MWD level 5 
Regional Shortage Level.  In addition, these Figures do not reflect a reduction in demands, thus 
representing a more conservative view of IRWD’s supply capability.  (see “Recent Actions 
Related to Drought Conditions” below)   

 
On April 14, 2015, MWD approved the implementation of its WSAP at a level 3 Regional 

Shortage Level and an effective 15% reduction in regional deliveries effective July 1, 2015, 
through June 30, 2016.  As a result of IRWD’s diversified water supplies, IRWD is reliant on 
MWD for only 20% of its total supplies.  IRWD’s evaluation of reduced MWD supplies to IRWD 
as shown in Figures 1a, 2a and 3a includes MWD’s 2015 actions to implement a level 3 
Regional Shortage Level and 15% reduction.    
 
 Under shortage scenarios, IRWD may need to supplement supplies with production of 
groundwater, which can exceed the applicable basin production percentage on a short-term 
basis, providing additional reliability during dry years or emergencies.2   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2 In these scenarios, it is anticipated that other water suppliers who produce water from the Orange County Basin will 

also experience cutbacks of imported supplies and will increase groundwater production and that Orange County 
Water District (“OCWD”) imported replenishment water may also be cutback.  The OCWD’s “2021-2022 Engineer’s 
Report on the Groundwater Conditions, Water Supply and Basin Utilization” references a report (OCWD Report on 
Evaluation of Orange County Groundwater Basin Storage and Operational Strategy, 2007) which recommends a 
basin management strategy that provides general guidelines for annual basin refill or storage decrease based on the 
level of accumulated overdraft.  It states: “Although it is considered to be generally acceptable to allow the basin to 
decline to 500,000 AF overdraft for brief periods due to severe drought conditions and lack of supplemental 
water…an accumulated overdraft of 100,000 AF best represents an optimal basin management target.  This optimal 
target level provides sufficient storage space to accommodate anticipated recharge from a single wet year while also 
providing water in storage for at least 2 or 3 consecutive years of drought.”  MWD replenishment water is a 
supplemental source of recharge water and OCWD estimates other main supply sources for recharge are available.   

 

C -8



9 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

In addition, IRWD has developed water banking projects in Kern County, California 
which may be called upon for delivery of supplemental banked water to IRWD under a MWD 
WSAP.3  IRWD may also convert non-potable water uses to recycled water as a way to 
conserve potable water.  In addition, if needed, resultant net shortage levels can be addressed 
by demand reduction programs as described in IRWD’s updated Water Shortage Contingency 
Plan adopted in 2021.  IRWD’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan provides procedures for 
responding to various levels of supply shortages through a combination of supply augmentation 
and demand management measures.  As stated in IRWD’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan, 
use of local supplies, storage and other supply augmentation measures can mitigate shortages, 
and are used as necessary and appropriate during declared shortage levels.   
 
 It can be noted that IRWD’s above approach is conservative, in that IRWD evaluates the 
effect of the 16% reduction through 2044 and shows the effect of current allocation scenarios in 
all of the five-year increments.  However, MWD reports that it has made significant progress in 
other water resource categories such as transfers, groundwater storage and developing other 
local resources, and supplies will be available from these resources over the long-term.   
 
 Climate Change.  The California Department of Water Resources (“DWR”) released a 
report “Progress on Incorporating Climate Change into Management of California’s Water 
Resources” (July 2006), considering the impacts of climate change on the State’s water supply. 
In 2012, DWR adopted phase 1 of its Climate Action Plan, its department-wide plan for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions (GHG).  In September 2018, the DWR released phase 2 of its 
Climate Action Plan, which is DWR’s guide to addressing climate change in the programs, 
projects, and activities over which it has authority.  Per this guidance, California’s climate policy 
focuses on reducing GHG emissions, preparing for climate change impacts, and supporting 
climate-related research to inform policy responses and decision-making processes.       
 

In MWD’s 2015 IRP Update, MWD recognizes there is additional risk and uncertainty 
associated with climate change that may affect future supply and demands.  In the 2015 IRP 
Update, MWD states that it plans to hedge against supply and demand uncertainties by 
implementing a long-term plan that recognizes the risk and provides resource development to 
offset the risk.  Per the MWD 2020 UWMP, for longer term risks, like climate change, MWD 
established a Robust Decision Making (“RDM”) approach that can show how vulnerable the 
region’s reliability is to the longer-term risks such as climate change and can also establish 
“signposts” that can be monitored to see when crucial changes may be happening.  MWD states 
in its 2020 UWMP that the RDM analysis was valuable in identifying vulnerabilities to its 2015 
IRP approach to long-term reliability and in understanding how climate change would best be 
incorporated into the 2020 IRP. 

 
Per the MWD 2020 UWMP, MWD continues to incorporate current climate change 

science into its planning efforts and MWD has made great efforts to implement GHG mitigation 
programs and policies for its facilities and operations. In 2022, MWD released a Climate Action 
Plan which complements MWD’s IRP planning process and set reduction targets and outlined 
strategies to reduce emission levels by 2045.  In MWD’s 2020 IRP Regional Needs 
Assessment, MWD finds that SWP supplies are highly susceptible to varying hydrologic 
conditions, climate change, and regulatory restrictions.  In this report, MWD assesses climate 

 
3 IRWD has developed water banking projects (“Water Bank”) in Kern County, California and has entered into a 30-

year water banking partnership with Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District to operate IRWD’s Strand Ranch and 
Stockdale West portions of the Water Bank.  The Water Bank can improve IRWD’s water supply reliability by 
capturing lower cost water available during wet hydrologic periods for use during dry periods.  The Water Bank can 
enhance IRWD’s ability to respond to drought conditions and potential water supply interruptions. 

C -9



10 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

vulnerabilities and the need for future projects such as indirect potable reuse, stormwater 
capture, and expanded storage capacity to mitigate and adapt to these vulnerabilities and 
ensure future resilience.  Specific climate change impacts on regional and local water supplies 
and relevant information for the Orange County hydrologic basin and Santa Ana Watershed 
have not been sufficiently developed at this time to permit IRWD to assess and quantify the 
effect of any such impact on its conclusions in the Assessment.   

 
Catastrophic Supply Interruption Planning.  MWD has developed Emergency 

Storage Requirements (MWD 2020 UWMP) to safeguard the region from catastrophic loss of 
water supply.  MWD has made substantial investments in emergency storage and has based its 
planning on a 100% reduction in its supplies for a period of six months.  The emergency plan 
outlines that under such a catastrophe, non-firm service deliveries would be suspended, and 
firm supplies would be restricted by a mandatory cutback of 25 percent from normal year 
demand deliveries.  In addition, MWD discusses DWR’s investments in improvements on the 
SWP and the long term Delta plan in the MWD 2020 UWMP (pages 3-19 to 3-23).  IRWD has 
also addressed supply interruption planning in its WRMP and 2020 UWMP.    

 
Recent Actions Related to Drought Conditions.  In response to historically dry 

conditions throughout the state of California, on April 1, 2015, Governor Brown issued an 
Executive Order directing the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) to impose 
restrictions to achieve an aggregate statewide 25 percent reduction in potable water use 
through February 2016.  The Governor’s Order also included mandatory actions aimed at 
reducing water demands, with a particular focus on outdoor water use.  On May 5, 2015, the 
SWRCB adopted regulations which required that IRWD achieve a 16% reduction in potable 
water use from its 2013 potable water use levels.  On November 13, 2015, Governor Brown 
issued an Executive Order directing the SWRCB to extend the 2015 Emergency Regulation 
through October 31, 2016, if drought conditions continued. On February 2, 2016, the SWRCB 
adopted an extended and modified Emergency Regulation. As a result of the modification, 
IRWD's mandated reduction was changed from 16% to 9% effective March 1, 2016. On April 14, 
2015, MWD approved actions to implement its WSAP at a level 3 Regional Shortage Level and 
a 15% reduction in regional deliveries effective July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016. During this 
period, IRWD continued to implement actions to reduce potable water demands during the 
drought; however, this did not affect IRWD’s long-term supply capability to meet the demands.  
On April 7, 2017, Governor Brown rescinded the Executive Order.    

 
In California’s most recent drought (2021-2023), in July 2021, Governor Newsom called 

for voluntary 15 percent reduction in potable water use from all urban suppliers.  Consistent with 
the Governor’s Executive Order, IRWD implemented Level 2 of its Water Shortage Contingency 
Plan, although IRWD had no projected shortages in supplies.  In March 2023, Governor 
Newsom rescinded the Executive Order.  

 
As discussed under “IRWD’s Evaluation of Effect of Reduced MWD Supplies to IRWD” 

(see above), IRWD has effectively analyzed an imported water supply reduction up to a level 5 
Regional Shortage Stage in Figures 1a, 2a, 3a.  These Figures, however, do not reflect a 
reduction in demands, thus representing a more conservative view of IRWD’s supply capability.  
In particular, the reduction in demand mandated by Senate Bill 7 in 2010, requiring urban retail 
water suppliers to establish water use targets to achieve a 20% reduction in daily per capita 
water use by 2020, has not been factored into the demands in this analysis.   Similarly, 
notwithstanding the Governors’ 2015 and 2021 orders, IRWD’s conservative supply-sufficiency 
analysis in Figures 1a, 2a and 3a does not include the ordered reduction in potable demands.   
  

C -10



11 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

 

Detailed Assessment 
 

1. Supply and demand comparison 
 

Comparisons of IRWD’s average annual and peak (maximum day) demands and 
supplies, under baseline (existing and committed demand, without the Project), with-
project (baseline plus Project), and full build-out development projections, are shown in 
the following Figures 1-4 (potable water), Figures 5-8 (nonpotable water) and Figures 
1a, 2a, and 3a (short term MWD allocation potable water). See also the “Actions on 
Delta Pumping” above.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C -11



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

Current Potable Supplies
MWD Imported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF, Baker) 51,027     51,027     51,027     51,027     51,027     
DRWF/DATS/OPA 39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     
Irvine Desalter 5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       
Wells 21 & 22 2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       
Baker Water Treatment Plant (native portion) 3,048       3,048       3,048       3,048       3,048       
Supplies Under Development
Future Potable - 2,800 2,800       2,800       2,800       
Maximum Supply Capability 101,911  104,711  104,711  104,711  104,711   
Baseline Demand 76,540     80,802     83,150     83,359     83,525     
Demand with Project 76,467     80,981     83,748     83,958     84,126     
WRMP Build-out Demand 76,467     80,981     83,748     83,958     84,126     
Reserve Supply with Project 25,444     23,730     20,963     20,753     20,585     

 Notes: By agreement, IRWD is required to count the production from the Irvine Subbasin in calculating available 
 supplies for TIC developments (see Potable Supply-Groundwater). 

MWD Imported Supplies are shown at 16% reduction off of average connected capacity.
Baker Water Treatment Plant is supplied untreated imported water and native water from Irvine Lake.

12

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
cr

e-
F

ee
t 

p
er

 Y
ea

r

Figure 1   
IRWD Normal-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

Future Potable

MWD Imported

Irvine Desalter

Baker Water Treatment
Plant (native portion)

DRWF/DATS/OPA

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) C -12



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

Current Potable Supplies
MWD Imported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF, Baker) 51,027     51,027     51,027     51,027     51,027     
DRWF/DATS/OPA 39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     
Irvine Desalter 5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       
Wells 21 & 22 2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       
Baker Water Treatment Plant (native portion) 1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       
Supplies Under Development
Future Potable - 2,800 2,800       2,800       2,800       
Maximum Supply Capability 99,863     102,663  102,663  102,663  102,663   
Baseline Demand 81,898     86,458     88,971     89,194     89,372     
Demand with Project 81,820     86,649     89,611     89,835     90,015     
WRMP Build-out Demand 81,820     86,649     89,611     89,835     90,015     
Reserve Supply with Project 18,043     16,013     13,052     12,828     12,648     

Notes:  Supplies identical to Normal-Year based on Metropolitan's Urban Water Management Plan and usage of groundwater under
drought conditions (OCWD Master Plan).  Demands increased 7% from Normal-Year.  By agreement, IRWD is required to count the 
production from the Irvine Subbasin in calculating available supplies for TIC developments (see Potable Supply-Groundwater).

MWD Imported Supplies are shown at 16% reduction off of average connected capacity.
Baker Water Treatment Plant is supplied untreated imported water and native water from Irvine Lake.

13

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
cr

e-
F

ee
t 

p
er

 Y
ea

r

Figure 2   
IRWD Single Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

Future Potable

MWD Imported

Irvine Desalter

Baker Water Treatment
Plant (native portion)

DRWF/DATS/OPA

Demand with Project

Baseline Demand

WRMP Build-out Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) C -13



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

Current Potable Supplies
MWD Imported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF, Baker 51,027     51,027     51,027     51,027     51,027     
DRWF/DATS/OPA 39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     
Irvine Desalter 5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       
Wells 21 & 22 2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       
Baker Water Treatment Plant (native portion) 1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       
Supplies Under Development
Future Potable - 2,800 2,800       2,800       2,800       
Maximum Supply Capability 99,863     102,663  102,663  102,663  102,663   
Baseline Demand 81,898     86,458     88,971     89,194     89,372     
Demand with Project 81,820     86,649     89,611     89,835     90,015     
WRMP Build-out Demand 81,820     86,649     89,611     89,835     90,015     
Reserve Supply with Project 18,043     16,013     13,052     12,828     12,648     

Notes:  Supplies identical to Normal-Year based on Metropolitan's Urban Water Management Plan and usage of groundwater under
drought conditions (OCWD Master Plan).  Demands increased 7% from Normal-Year.  By agreement, IRWD is required to count the 
production from the Irvine Subbasin in calculating available supplies for TIC developments (see Potable Supply-Groundwater).

MWD Imported Supplies are shown at 16% reduction off of average connected capacity.
Baker Water Treatment Plant is supplied untreated imported water and native water from Irvine Lake.

14

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
cr

e-
F

ee
t 

p
er

 Y
ea

r

Figure 3   
IRWD Multiple Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

Future Potable

MWD Imported

Irvine Desalter

Baker Water Treatment
Plant (native portion)

DRWF/DATS/OPA

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) C -14



(in cfs) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

Current Potable Supplies
MWD Imported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF, Baker) 130.4       130.4       130.4       130.4       130.4       
DRWF/DATS/OPA 96.7         96.7         96.7         96.7         96.7         
Irvine Desalter 9.7           9.7           9.7           9.7           9.7           
Wells 21 & 22 8.6           8.6           8.6           8.6           8.6           
Baker Water Treatment Plant (native portion) 4.2           4.2           4.2           4.2           4.2           
Supplies Under Development
Future Potable - 3.9 3.9           3.9           3.9           
Maximum Supply Capability 249.6       253.4 253.4       253.4       253.4       
Baseline Demand 190.3       200.9       206.7       207.2       207.7       
Demand with Project 190.1       201.3       208.2       208.7       209.2       
WRMP Build-out Demand 190.1       201.3       208.2       208.7       209.2       
Reserve Supply with Project 59.5         52.1         45.2         44.7         44.3         

15

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

c
u

b
ic

 f
e

e
t 

p
e

r 
s

e
c

o
n

d
 (

c
fs

)

Figure 4
IRWD Maximum-Day Supply & Demand - Potable Water

Future Potable

MWD Imported

Irvine Desalter

Baker Water Treatment
Plant (native portion)

DRWF/DATS/OPA

Demand with Project

Baseline Demand

WRMP Build-out
Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24)

  

C -15



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

Current Nonpotable Supplies
Existing MWRP&LAWRP 34,389     34,389     34,389     34,389     34,389     
Future MWRP&LAWRP - 7,623 7,623       7,623       7,623       
MWD Imported (Baker, ILP) 17,347     17,347 17,347     17,347     17,347     
Irvine Desalter 3,461       3,461       3,461       3,461       3,461       
Native Water -           -           -           -           -           
Maximum Supply Capability 55,197     62,820     62,820     62,820     62,820     
Baseline Demand 30,058     29,639     29,202     29,275     29,333     
Demand with Project 30,020     29,606     29,179     29,252     29,310     
WRMP Build-out Demand 30,020     29,606     29,179     29,252     29,310     
Reserve Supply with Project 25,177     33,215     33,641     33,568     33,510     

Note:  Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time.
MWD Imported Supplies are shown at 16% reduction off of average connected capacity.

16

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 
p

e
r 

Y
e

a
r

Figure 5
IRWD Normal-Year Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

Future MWRP&LAWRP

MWD Imported (Baker,
ILP)

Native Water

Irvine Desalter

Existing MWRP&LAWRP

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out
Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) C -16



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

Current Nonpotable Supplies
Existing MWRP&LAWRP 34,389     34,389     34,389     34,389     34,389     
Future MWRP&LAWRP - 7,623 7,623       7,623       7,623       
MWD Imported (Baker, ILP) 17,347     17,347 17,347     17,347     17,347     
Irvine Desalter 3,461       3,461       3,461       3,461       3,461       
Native Water -           -           -           -           -           
Maximum Supply Capability 55,197     62,820     62,820     62,820     62,820     
Baseline Demand 32,162     31,714     31,246     31,324     31,387     
Demand with Project 32,121     31,678     31,221     31,299     31,362     
WRMP Build-out Demand 32,121     31,678     31,221     31,299     31,362     
Reserve Supply with Project 23,076     31,142     31,599     31,521     31,458     

Note:  Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time.
MWD Imported Supplies are shown at 16% reduction off of average connected capacity.

17

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 
p

e
r 

Y
e

a
r

Figure 6
IRWD Single Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

Future MWRP&LAWRP

MWD Imported (Baker,
ILP)

Native Water

Irvine Desalter

Existing
MWRP&LAWRP

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out
Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) C -17



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

Current Nonpotable Supplies
Existing MWRP&LAWRP 34,389     34,389     34,389     34,389     34,389     
Future MWRP&LAWRP - 7,623 7,623       7,623       7,623       
MWD Imported (Baker, ILP) 17,347     17,347 17,347     17,347     17,347     
Irvine Desalter 3,461       3,461       3,461       3,461       3,461       
Native Water -           -           -           -           -           
Maximum Supply Capability 55,197     62,820     62,820     62,820     62,820     
Baseline Demand 32,162     31,714     31,246     31,324     31,387     
Demand with Project 32,121     31,678     31,221     31,299     31,362     
WRMP Build-out Demand 32,121     31,678     31,221     31,299     31,362     
Reserve Supply with Project 23,076     31,142     31,599     31,521     31,458     

Note:  Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time.
MWD Imported Supplies are shown at 16% reduction off of average connected capacity.

18

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 
p

e
r 

Y
e

a
r 

Future MWRP&LAWRP

MWD Imported (Baker,
ILP)

Native Water

Irvine Desalter

Existing MWRP&LAWRP

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out
Demand

Figure 7
IRWD Multiple Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) C -18



(in cfs) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

Current Nonpotable Supplies
Existing MWRP&LAWRP 47.6         47.6         47.6         47.6         47.6         
Future MWRP&LAWRP - 10.5 10.5         10.5         10.5         
MWD Imported (Baker, ILP) 111.5       111.5 111.5       111.5       111.5       
Irvine Desalter 6.2           6.2           6.2           6.2           6.2           
Native Water -           -           -           -           -           
Maximum Supply Capability 165.3       175.8       175.8       175.8       175.8       
Baseline Demand 103.8       102.3       100.8       101.1       101.3       
Demand with Project 103.7       102.2       100.8       101.0       101.2       
WRMP Build-out Demand 103.7       102.2       100.8       101.0       101.2       
Reserve Supply with Project 61.6         73.6         75.1         74.8         74.6         

Note:  Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time.

19

0

30

60

90

120

150

180

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

c
u

b
ic

 f
e

e
t 

p
e

r 
s

e
c

o
n

d
 (

c
fs

)

Future MWRP&LAWRP

MWD Imported (Baker,
ILP)

Native Water

Irvine Desalter

Existing
MWRP&LAWRP

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out
Demand

Figure 8
IRWD Maximum-Dry Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) C -19



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

Current Potable Supplies
MWD Imported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF, Baker) 38,270     40,222     42,274     44,430     45,323     
DRWF/DATS/OPA 39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     
Irvine Desalter 5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       
Wells 21 & 22 2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       
Baker Water Treatment Plant (native portion) 3,048       3,048       3,048       3,048       3,048       
Supplies Under Development
Future Potable - 2,800 2,800       2,800       2,800       
Maximum Supply Capability 89,154     93,906 95,958     98,114     99,007     
Baseline Demand 76,540     80,802     83,150     83,359     83,525     
Demand with Project 76,467     80,981     83,748     83,958     84,126     
WRMP Build-out Demand 76,467     80,981     83,748     83,958     84,126     
Reserve Supply with Project 12,687     12,926     12,210     14,157     14,882     
*For illustration purposes, IRWD has shown MWD Imported Supplies as estimated under a MWD short-term allocation up to a level 5
in all of the 5-year increments. This does not reflect a reduction in demands, thus representing a conservative view of supply capability.
Under a MWD Allocation, IRWD could supplement supplies with groundwater production which can exceed applicable basin percentages
on a short-term basis or transfer water from IRWD's water bank.  IRWD may also reduce demands by implementing shortage contingency

measures as described in the 2020 UWMP.  Under a MWD Allocation, the Baker WTP would be limited to available MWD and native water.

20

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
cr

e-
F

ee
t 

p
er

 Y
ea

r

Figure 1a   
IRWD Normal-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

Under Temporary MWD Allocation*

Future Potable

MWD Imported

Irvine Desalter

Baker Water Treatment
Plant (native portion)

DRWF/DATS/OPA

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) C -20



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044 
Current Potable Supplies
MWD Imported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF, Baker) 38,270     40,222     42,274     44,430     45,323     
DRWF/DATS/OPA 39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     
Irvine Desalter 5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       
Wells 21 & 22 2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       
Baker Water Treatment Plant (native portion) 1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       
Supplies Under Development
Future Potable - 2,800 2,800       2,800       2,800       
Maximum Supply Capability 87,106     91,858 93,910     96,066     96,959     
Baseline Demand 81,898     86,458     88,971     89,194     89,372     
Demand with Project 81,820     86,649     89,611     89,835     90,015     
WRMP Build-out Demand 81,820     86,649     89,611     89,835     90,016     
Reserve Supply with Project 5,286       5,209       4,299       6,231       6,945       
*For illustration purposes, IRWD has shown MWD Imported Supplies as estimated under a MWD short-term allocation up to a level 5
in all of the 5-year increments. This does not reflect a reduction in demands, thus representing a conservative view of supply capability.
Under a MWD Allocation, IRWD could supplement supplies with groundwater production which can exceed applicable basin percentages
on a short-term basis or transfer water from IRWD's water bank.  IRWD may also reduce demands by implementing shortage contingency

measures as described in the 2020 UWMP.  Under a MWD Allocation, the Baker WTP would be limited to available MWD and native water.

21

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
cr

e-
F

ee
t 

p
er

 Y
ea

r
Figure 2a   

IRWD Single Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water
Under Temporary MWD Allocation*

Future Potable

MWD Imported

Irvine Desalter

Baker Water Treatment
Plant (native portion)

DRWF/DATS/OPA

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) C -21



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044 
Current Potable Supplies
MWD Imported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF, Baker) 38,270     40,222     42,274     44,430     45,323     
DRWF/DATS/OPA 39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     
Irvine Desalter 5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       
Wells 21 & 22 2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       
Baker Water Treatment Plant (native portion) 1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       
Supplies Under Development
Future Potable - 2,800 2,800       2,800       2,800       
Maximum Supply Capability 87,106     91,858 93,910     96,066     96,959     
Baseline Demand 81,898     86,458     88,971     89,194     89,372     
Demand with Project 81,820     86,649     89,611     89,835     90,015     
WRMP Build-out Demand 81,820     86,649     89,611     89,835     90,015     
Reserve Supply with Project 5,286       5,209       4,299       6,231       6,945       

*For illustration purposes, IRWD has shown MWD Imported Supplies as estimated under a MWD short-term allocation up to a level 5
in all of the 5-year increments. This does not reflect a reduction in demands, thus representing a conservative view of supply capability.
Under a MWD Allocation, IRWD could supplement supplies with groundwater production which can exceed applicable basin percentages
on a short-term basis or transfer water from IRWD's water bank.  IRWD may also reduce demands by implementing shortage contingency

measures as described in the 2020 UWMP.  Under a MWD Allocation, the Baker WTP would be limited to available MWD and native water.

22

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
cr

e-
F

ee
t 

p
er

 Y
ea

r
Figure 3a   

IRWD Multiple Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water
Under Temporary MWD Allocation*

Future Potable

MWD Imported

Irvine Desalter

Baker Water Treatment
Plant (native portion)

DRWF/DATS/OPA

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) C -22



Existing sources of identified water supply for the proposed project:  IRWD does not allocate particular
supplies to any project, but identifies total supplies for its service area, as updated in the following table:

Max Day (cfs)
Avg. Annual 

(AFY)
 Annual by Category 

(AFY) 

     Current Supplies 

Potable - Imported 10

 East Orange County Feeder No. 2 41.4  18,746  1  

 Allen-McColloch Pipeline* 64.7  29,296  1  

 Orange County Feeder 18.0  8,150  1  

124.1  56,192  56,192  

Potable - Treated Surface 

 Baker Treatment Plant (Imported) 10 6.3  4,554  6  4,554  
     Baker Treatment Plant (Native) 4.2  3,048  6  3,048  
Potable - Groundwater

 Dyer Road Wellfield 80.0  28,000  2  

 OPA Well 4.4  3,200  11  

 Deep Aquifer Treatment System-DATS 12.3  8,618  2  

 Wells 21 & 22 8.6  2,400  2  

 Irvine Desalter 9.7  5,618  3  49,479  

 Total Potable Current Supplies 249.6  113,273  

Nonpotable - Recycled Water

 MWRP (25.2 mgd) 39.1  28,228  4  

 LAWRP (5.5 mgd) 8.5  6,161  4  

 Future MWRP & LAWRP 10.6  7,623  5  42,012  

Nonpotable - Imported 10

 Baker Aqueduct 40.2  11,651  6  

 Irvine Lake Pipeline 65.0  9,000  7  

105.2  20,651  20,651  

Nonpotable - Groundwater

      Irvine Desalter-Nonpotable 6.2  3,461  8  3,461  

Nonpotable Native

 Irvine Lake (see Baker Treatment Plant above) 4.2  3,048  6,9

 Total Nonpotable Current Supplies (Excludes Native) 169.6  66,124  

 Total Combined Current Supplies 419.2  179,397  

   Supplies Under Development

Potable Supplies

      Future Groundwater Production Facilities 3.9  2,800  2,800  

 Total Under Development 3.9  2,800  2,800  

 Total Supplies
 Potable Supplies 253.4  116,073  

 Nonpotable Supplies 169.6  66,124  

 Total Supplies (Current and Under Development) 423.0  182,197  

2    Contract amount - See Assessment Potable Supply-Groundwater(iii). Due to groundwater limitations, value changed from 6,329 AF to 2,400 AF

3    Contract amount - See Assessment Potable Supply-Groundwater (iv) and (v).  Maximum day well capacity is compatible with contract amount.

5    Future estimated MWRP & LAWRP recycled water production. Includes biosolids and expansion to 33 mgd

8    Contract amount - See Assessment Nonpotable Supply-Groundwater (i) and (ii).  Maximum day well capacity (cfs) is compatible with contract amount.

9    Based on 70+ years historical average of Santiago Creek Inflow into Irvine Lake. Since 2020, native water is treated through Baker WTP.

10   Supplies in this table are total and are not adjusted to account for any reductions in imported water.

11  Per Agreement with the City of Orange, average annual capacity increased to 3,200 acre-feet

*64.7 cfs is current assigned capacity; based on increased peak flow, IRWD can purchase 10 cfs more (see page 25 (b)(1)(iii))

23

6    Since 2017, Baker Water Treatment Plant (WTP) treats imported and native water.  Baker Aqueduct capacity has been allocated to Baker WTP participants and 
IRWD owns 46.50 cfs in Baker Aqueduct, of which, 10.5 cfs is for for potable treatment.  IRWD has 36 cfs remaining capacity for non-potable uses.  The nonpotable 
average use is based on converting maximum day capacity to average by dividing the capacity by a peaking factor of 2.5 (see Assessment Footnote 8, page 27).  In 
2023, IRWD executed an Agreement that sells 3 cfs to South County agencies, leaving 7.5 cfs for daily use for IRWD.  However, should an emergency arise, IRWD 
retains the right to use the 3 cfs sold.  The amount shown in the table remains 10.5 cfs

1    Based on converting maximum day capacity to average by dividing the capacity by a peaking factor of 1.6. Max Day is equivalent to Treatment Plant Production

4    MWRP 28.0 mgd treatment capacity (28,228 AFY RW production) with 90% plant efficiency (25.2 mgd) and LAWRP permitted 5.5 mgd 
tertiary treatment capacity (6,161 AFY) 

7    Based on IRWD's proportion of Irvine Lake imported water storage; Actual ILP capacity would allow the use of additional imported water from MWD through the 
Santiago Lateral.

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24)  C -23



24 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

2. Information concerning supplies 
 
 (a)(1) Existing sources of identified water supply for the proposed Project. 
 
  IRWD does not allocate particular supplies to any project, but identifies total 

supplies for its service area, as shown in the following table: 
(b)  Required information concerning currently available and under-development water 
supply entitlements, water rights and water service contracts: 

 
    (1) Written contracts or other proof of entitlement.4 5  
 

          •POTABLE SUPPLY - IMPORTED6 
 
  Potable imported water service connections (currently available). 
 
  (i)  Potable imported water is delivered to IRWD at various service connections to 

the imported water delivery system of The Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California (“MWD”):   service connections CM-01A and OC-7 (Orange 
County Feeder); CM-10, CM-12, OC-38, OC-39, OC-57, OC-58, OC-63 (East 
Orange County Feeder No. 2); and OC-68, OC-71, OC-72, OC-73/73A, OC-74, 
OC-75, OC-83, OC-84, OC-87 (Allen-McColloch Pipeline).  IRWD’s entitlements 
regarding service from the MWD delivery system facilities are described in the 
following paragraphs and summarized in the above Table ((2)(a)(1)).  IRWD 
receives imported water service through Municipal Water District of Orange 
County (“MWDOC”), a member agency of MWD. 

 
  Allen-McColloch Pipeline (“AMP”) (currently available).   
 
  (ii) Agreement For Sale and Purchase of Allen-McColloch Pipeline, dated as of 

July 1, 1994 (Metropolitan Water District Agreement No. 4623) (“AMP Sale 
Agreement”).  Under the AMP Sale Agreement, MWD purchased the Allen-
McColloch Pipeline (formerly known as the “Diemer Intertie”) from MWDOC, the 
MWDOC Water Facilities Corporation and certain agencies, including IRWD and 
Los Alisos Water District (“LAWD”),7 identified as “Participants” therein.  Section 

 
4 In some instances, the contractual and other legal entitlements referred to in the following descriptions are 

stated in terms of flow capacities, in cubic feet per second (cfs).  In such instances, the cfs flows are converted to 
volumes of AFY for purposes of analyzing supply sufficiency in this assessment, by dividing the capacity by a peaking 
factor of 1.8 (potable) or 2.5 (nonpotable), consistent with maximum day peaking factors used in the WRMP.  The 
resulting reduction in assumed available annual AFY volumes through the application of these factors recognizes that 
connected capacity is provided to meet peak demands and that seasonal variation in demand and limitations in local 
storage prevent these capacities from being utilized at peak capacity on a year-round basis.  However, the 
application of these factors produces a conservatively low estimate of annual AFY volumes from these connections; 
additional volumes of water are expected to be available from these sources. 

5 In the following discussion, contractual and other legal entitlements are characterized as either potable or 

nonpotable, according to the characterization of the source of supply.  Some of the nonpotable supplies surplus to 
nonpotable demand could potentially be rendered potable by the addition of treatment facilities; however, except 
where otherwise noted, IRWD has no current plans to do so. 

 
6 See Imported Supply - Additional Information, below, concerning the availability of the MWD supply. 

7 IRWD has succeeded to LAWD’s interests in the AMP and other LAWD water supply facilities and rights 

C -24



25 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

5.02 of the AMP Sale Agreement obligates MWD to meet IRWD’s and the other 
Participants’ requests for deliveries and specified minimum hydraulic grade lines 
at each connection serving a Participant, subject to availability of water.  MWD 
agrees to operate the AMP as any other MWD pipeline. MWD has the right to 
operate the AMP on a “utility basis,” meaning that MWD need not observe 
capacity allocations of the Participants but may use available capacity to meet 
demand at any service connection. 

 
  The AMP Sale Agreement obligates MWD to monitor and project AMP demands 

and to construct specified pump facilities or make other provision for augmenting 
MWD’s capacity along the AMP, at MWD’s expense, should that be necessary to 
meet demands of all of the Participants (Section 5.08). 

 
  (iii) Agreement For Allocation of Proceeds of Sale of Allen-McColloch Pipeline, 

dated as of July 1, 1994 (“AMP Allocation Agreement”).  This agreement, entered 
into concurrently with the AMP Sale Agreement, provided each Participant, 
including IRWD, with a capacity allocation in the AMP, for the purpose of 
allocating the sale proceeds among the Participants in accordance with their prior 
contractual capacities adjusted to conform to their respective future demands.  
IRWD’s capacity under the AMP Allocation Agreement (including its capacity as 
legal successor agency to LAWD) is 64.69 cfs at IRWD’s first four AMP 
connections, 49.69 cfs at IRWD’s next five downstream AMP connections and 
35.01 and 10.00 cfs, respectively at IRWD’s remaining two downstream 
connections. The AMP Allocation Agreement further provides that if a 
Participant’s peak flow exceeds its capacity, the Participant shall “purchase” 
additional capacity from the other Participants who are using less than their 
capacity, until such time as MWD augments the capacity of the AMP.  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, as mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the 
allocated capacities do not alter MWD’s obligation under the AMP Sale 
Agreement to meet all Participants’ demands along the AMP, and to augment the 
capacity of the AMP if necessary.  Accordingly, under these agreements, IRWD 
can legally increase its use of the AMP beyond the above-stated capacities but 
would be required to reimburse other Participants from a portion of the proceeds 
IRWD received from the sale of the AMP. 

 
  (iv) Improvement Subleases (or “FAP” Subleases) [MWDOC and LAWD; 

MWDOC and IRWD], dated August 1, 1989; 1996 Amended and Restated Allen-
McColloch Pipeline Subleases [MWDOC and LAWD; MWDOC and IRWD], dated 
March 1, 1996. IRWD subleases its AMP capacity, including the capacity it 
acquired as successor to LAWD.  To facilitate bond financing for the construction 
of the AMP, it was provided that the MWDOC Water Facilities Corporation, and 
subsequently MWDOC, would have ownership of the pipeline, and the 
Participants would be sublessees.  As is the case with the AMP Sale Agreement, 
the subleases similarly provide that water is subject to availability. 

 
  East Orange County Feeder No. 2 (“EOCF#2”) (currently available). 
 
  (v) Agreement For Joint Exercise of Powers For Construction, Operation and 

 
mentioned in this assessment, by virtue of the consolidation of IRWD and LAWD on December 31, 2000. 

C -25



26 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

Maintenance of East Orange County Feeder No. 2, dated July 11, 1961, as 
amended on July 25, 1962, and April 26, 1965; Agreement Re Capacity Rights In 
Proposed Water Line, dated September 11, 1961 (“IRWD MWDOC Assignment 
Agreement”); Agreement Regarding Capacity Rights In the East Orange County 
Feeder No. 2, dated August 28, 2000 (“IRWD Coastal Assignment Agreement”).  
East Orange County Feeder No. 2 (“EOCF#2”), a feeder linking Orange County 
with MWD’s feeder system, was constructed pursuant to a joint powers 
agreement among MWDOC (then called Orange County Municipal Water 
District), MWD, Coastal Municipal Water District (“Coastal”), Anaheim and Santa 
Ana.  A portion of IRWD’s territory is within MWDOC and the remainder is within 
the former Coastal (which was consolidated with MWDOC in 2001).  Under the 
IRWD MWDOC Assignment Agreement, MWDOC assigned 41 cfs of capacity to 
IRWD in the reaches of EOCF#2 upstream of the point known as Coastal 
Junction (reaches 1 through 3), and 27 cfs in reach 4, downstream of Coastal 
Junction.  Similarly, under the IRWD Coastal Assignment Agreement, prior to 
Coastal’s consolidation with MWDOC, Coastal assigned to IRWD 0.4 cfs of 
capacity in reaches 1 through 3 and 0.6 cfs in reach 4 of EOCF#2.  Delivery of 
water through EOCF#2 is subject to the rules and regulations of MWD and 
MWDOC and is further subject to application and agreement of IRWD respecting 
turnouts. 

 
  Orange County Feeder (currently available) 
 
  (vi)  Agreement, dated March 13, 1956.  This 1956 Agreement between 

MWDOC’s predecessor district and the Santa Ana Heights Water Company 
(“SAHWC”) provides for delivery of MWD imported supply to the former SAHWC 
service area.  SAHWC’s interests were acquired on behalf of IRWD through a 
stock purchase and IRWD annexation of the SAHWC service area in 1997.  The 
supply is delivered through a connection to MWD’s Orange County Feeder 
designated as OC-7. 

 
  (vii) Agreement For Transfer of Interest In Pacific Coast Highway Water 

Transmission and Storage Facilities From The Irvine Company To the Irvine 
Ranch Water District, dated April 23, 1984; Joint Powers Agreement For the 
Construction, Operation and Maintenance of Sections 1a, 1b and 2 of the Coast 
Supply Line, dated June 9, 1989; Agreement, dated January 13, 1955 (“1955 
Agreement”).  The jointly constructed facility known as the Coast Supply Line 
(“CSL”), extending southward from a connection with MWD’s Orange County 
Feeder at Fernleaf Street in Newport Beach, was originally constructed pursuant 
to a 1952 agreement among Laguna Beach County Water District (“LBCWD”), 
The Irvine Company (TIC) and South Coast County Water District.  Portions were 
later reconstructed.  Under the above-referenced transfer agreement in 1984, 
IRWD succeeded to TIC’s interests in the CSL.  The CSL is presently operated 
under the above-referenced 1989 joint powers agreement, which reflects IRWD’s 
ownership of 10 cfs of capacity.  The 1989 agreement obligates LBCWD, as the 
managing agent and trustee for the CSL, to purchase water and deliver it into the 
CSL for IRWD.  LBCWD purchases such supply, delivered by MWD to the 
Fernleaf connection, pursuant to the 1955 Agreement with Coastal (now 
MWDOC). 

 
 

C -26



27 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

  Baker Water Treatment Plant (currently available) 
 
IRWD recently constructed the Baker Water Treatment Plant (Baker WTP) in 
partnership with El Toro Water District, Moulton-Niguel Water District, Santa 
Margarita Water District and Trabuco Canyon Water District.  The Baker WTP is 
supplied with untreated imported water from MWD and native Irvine Lake water 
supply. IRWD owns 10.5 cfs of treatment capacity rights in the Baker WTP.8 
 

          •POTABLE SUPPLY - GROUNDWATER 
 
  (i)  Orange County Water District Act (“OCWD”), Water Code App., Ch. 40 

(“Act”).  IRWD is an operator of groundwater-producing facilities in the Orange 
County Groundwater Basin (the “Basin”).  Although the rights of the producers 
within the Basin vis a vis one another have not been adjudicated, they 
nevertheless exist and have not been abrogated by the Act (§40-77).  The rights 
consist of municipal appropriators’ rights and may include overlying and riparian 
rights.  The Basin is managed by OCWD under the Act, which functions as a 
statutorily-imposed physical solution.  The Act empowers OCWD to impose 
replenishment assessments and basin equity assessments on production and to 
require registration of water-producing facilities and the filing of certain reports; 
however, OCWD is expressly prohibited from limiting extraction unless a 
producer agrees to such limitation (§ 40-2(6) (c)) and from impairing vested rights 
to the use of water (§ 40-77).  Thus, producers may install and operate 
production facilities under the Act; OCWD approval is not required.  OCWD is 
required to annually investigate the condition of the Basin, assess overdraft and 
accumulated overdraft, and determine the amount of water necessary for 
replenishment (§40-26).  OCWD has studied the Basin replenishment needs and 
potential projects to address growth in demand through 2035 in its Final Draft 
Long-Term Facilities Plan (January 2006), last updated November 19, 2014.  The 
Long-Term Facilities Plan is updated approximately every five years. 

 
  (ii)  Irvine Ranch Water District v. Orange County Water District, Orange County 

Superior Court Case No. 795827.  A portion of IRWD is outside the jurisdictional 
boundary of OCWD.  IRWD is eligible to annex the Santa Ana River Watershed 
portion of this territory to OCWD, under OCWD’s current annexation policy 
(OCWD Resolution No. 86-2-15, adopted on February 19, 1986, and reaffirmed 
on June 2, 1999). This September 29, 1998, Superior Court ruling indicates that 
IRWD is entitled to deliver groundwater from the Basin to the IRWD service area 
irrespective of whether such area is also within OCWD. 

 
  Dyer Road Wellfield (“DWRF”) / Deep Aquifer Treatment System (“DATS”) 

(currently available) 
 
  (iii) Agreement For Water Production and Transmission Facilities, dated March 

18, 1981, as amended May 2, 1984, September 19, 1990, and November 3, 

 
8 The Baker WTP is supplied nonpotable imported water through the existing Baker Pipeline.  IRWD’s existing Baker 

Pipeline capacity (see Section 2(b)(1) NONPOTABLE SUPPLY – IMPORTED) has been apportioned to the Baker 
WTP participants based on Baker WTP capacity ownership, and IRWD retains 10.5 cfs of pipeline capacity through 
the Baker WTP for potable supply and retains 36 cfs in Reach 1U of the Baker Pipeline capacity for nonpotable 
supply. In 2023, IRWD executed an agreement that sells 3 cfs to South County agencies, leaving 7.5 cfs for daily use 
for IRWD.  However, should an emergency arise, IRWD retains the right to the use of the 3 cfs sold. 

C -27



28 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

1999 (the “DRWF Agreement”).  The DRWF Agreement, among IRWD, OCWD 
and Santa Ana, concerns the development of IRWD’s Dyer Road Wellfield 
(DRWF), within the Basin.  The DRWF consists of 16 wells pumping from the 
non-colored water zone of the Basin and 2 wells (with colored-water treatment 
facilities) pumping from the deep, colored-water zone of the Basin (the colored-
water portion of the DRWF is sometimes referred to as the Deep Aquifer 
Treatment System or DATS.)  Under the DRWF Agreement, an “equivalent” 
basin production percentage (“BPP”) has been established for the DRWF, 
currently 28,000 AFY of non-colored water and 8,000 AFY of colored water, 
provided any amount of the latter 8,000 AFY not produced results in a matching 
reduction of the 28,000 AFY BPP.  Although typically IRWD production from the 
DRWF does not materially exceed the equivalent BPP, the equivalent BPP is not 
an extraction limitation; it results in imposition of monetary assessments on the 
excess production.  The DRWF Agreement also establishes monthly pumping 
amounts for the DRWF.  With the addition of the Concentrated Treatment 
System (“CATS”), IRWD has increased the yield of DATS. 

 
  Irvine Subbasin / Irvine Desalter (currently available) 
 
  (iv) First Amended and Restated Agreement, dated March 11, 2002, as 

amended June 15, 2006, restating May 5, 1988 agreement (“Irvine Subbasin 
Agreement”).  TIC has historically pumped agricultural water from the Irvine 
Subbasin. (As in the rest of the Basin of which this subbasin is a part, the 
groundwater rights have not been adjudicated and OCWD provides governance 
and management under the Act.)  The 1988 agreement between IRWD and TIC 
provided for the joint use and management of the Irvine Subbasin. The 1988 
agreement further provided that the 13,000 AFY annual yield of the Irvine 
Subbasin (“Subbasin”) would be allocated 1,000 AFY to IRWD and 12,000 AFY 
to TIC.  Under the restated Irvine Subbasin Agreement, the foregoing allocations 
were superseded as a result of TIC’s commencement of the building its Northern 
Sphere Area project, with the effect that the Subbasin production capability, wells 
and other facilities, and associated rights have been transferred from TIC to 
IRWD, and IRWD has assumed the production from the Subbasin.  In 
consideration of the transfer, IRWD is required to count the supplies attributable 
to the transferred Subbasin production in calculating available supplies for the 
Northern Sphere Area project and other TIC development and has agreed that 
they will not be counted toward non-TIC development. 

 
  A portion of the existing Subbasin water production facilities produce water which 

is of potable quality.  IRWD could treat some of the water produced from the 
Subbasin for potable use, by means of the Desalter and other projects.   
Although, as noted above, the Subbasin has not been adjudicated and is 
managed by OCWD, TIC reserved water rights from conveyances of its lands as 
development over the Subbasin has occurred, and under the Irvine Subbasin 
Agreement TIC has transferred its rights to IRWD.  

 
  (v) Second Amended and Restated Agreement Between Orange County Water 

District and Irvine Ranch Water District Regarding the Irvine Desalter Project, 
dated June 11, 2001, and other agreements referenced therein.  This agreement 
provides for the extraction and treatment of subpotable groundwater from the 
Irvine Subbasin, a portion of the Basin.  As is the case with the remainder of the 

C -28



29 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

Basin, IRWD’s entitlement to extract this water is not adjudicated, but the use of 
the entitlement is governed by the OCWD Act.  (See also, discussion of Irvine 
Subbasin in the preceding paragraph.)  A portion of the product water has been 
delivered into the IRWD potable system, and the remainder has been delivered 
into the IRWD nonpotable system. 
 
Orange Park Acres (currently available) 

 

On June 1, 2008, through annexation and merger, IRWD acquired the water 
system of the former Orange Park Acres Mutual Water company, including its 
well (“OPA Well”).  The well is operated within the Basin.   
 
Wells 21 and 22 (currently available) 

 

  In early 2013, IRWD completed construction of treatment facilities, pipelines, and 
wellhead facilities for Wells 21 and 22.  Water supplied through this project 
became available in 2013.  The wells are operated within the Basin. 

 
  Irvine Wells (under development)  
 
  (vi) IRWD is pursuing the installation of production facilities in the west Irvine, 

Tustin Legacy and Tustin Ranch portions of the Basin. These groundwater 
supplies are considered to be under development; however, four wells have been 
drilled and have previously produced groundwater, three wells have been drilled 
but have not been used as production wells to date, and a site for an additional 
well and treatment facility has been acquired by IRWD.   These production 
facilities can be constructed and operated under the Act; no statutory or 
contractual approval is required to do so.  Appropriate environmental review has 
or will be conducted for each facility.   See discussion of the Act under Potable 
Supply - Groundwater, paragraph (i), above.  

 

          •NONPOTABLE SUPPLY - RECYCLED 
 
  Water Recycling Plants (currently available) 
 

Water Code Section 1210. IRWD supplies its own recycled water from sewage 
collected by IRWD and delivered to IRWD’s Michelson Water Recycling Plant 
(“MWRP”) and Los Alisos Water Recycling Plant (“LAWRP”).  Under the recently 
completed MWRP Phase II Capacity Expansion Project, IRWD increased its 
tertiary treatment capacity on the existing MWRP site to produce sufficient 
recycled water to meet the projected demand through the year 2044. MWRP 
currently has a permitted tertiary capacity of 28 million gallons per day (“MGD”) 
and LAWRP currently has a permitted tertiary capacity of 5.5 MGD.  Water Code 
Section 1210 provides that the owner of a sewage treatment plant operated for 
the purposes of treating wastes from a sanitary sewer system holds the exclusive 
right to the treated effluent as against anyone who has supplied the water 
discharged into the sewer system.  IRWD’s permits for the operation of MWRP 
and LAWRP allow only irrigation and other customer uses of recycled water, and 
do not permit stream discharge of recycled water under normal conditions; thus, 
no issue of downstream appropriation arises, and IRWD is entitled to deliver all 
of the effluent to meet contractual and customer demands.  Additional 

C -29



30 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

reclamation capacity will augment local nonpotable supplies and improve 
reliability. 

 

          •NONPOTABLE SUPPLY - IMPORTED9 
 
  Baker Pipeline (currently available) 
 

Santiago Aqueduct Commission (“SAC”) Joint Powers Agreement, dated 
September 11, 1961, as amended December 20, 1974, January 13, 1978, 
November 1, 1978, September 1, 1981, October 22, 1986, and July 8, 1999 (the 
“SAC Agreement”); Agreement Between Irvine Ranch Water District and Carma-
Whiting Joint Venture Relative to Proposed Annexation of Certain Property to 
Irvine Ranch Water District, dated May 26, 1981 (the “Whiting Annexation 
Agreement”);  service connections OC-13/13A, OC-33/33A.  The imported 
untreated water pipeline initially known as the Santiago Aqueduct and now 
known as the Baker Pipeline was constructed under the SAC Agreement, a joint 
powers agreement. The Baker Pipeline is connected to MWD’s Santiago Lateral.  
IRWD’s capacity in the Baker Pipeline includes the capacity it subleases as 
successor to LAWD, as well as capacity rights IRWD acquired through the 
Whiting Annexation Agreement.  (To finance the construction of AMP parallel 
untreated reaches which were incorporated into the Baker Pipeline, replacing 
original SAC untreated reaches that were made a part of the AMP potable 
system, it was provided that the MWDOC Water Facilities Corporation, and 
subsequently MWDOC, would have ownership, and the participants would be 
sublessees.)  IRWD’s original capacities in the Baker Pipeline include 52.70 cfs 
in the first reach, 12.50 cfs in each of the second, third and fourth reaches and 
7.51 cfs in the fifth reach of the Baker Pipeline.  These existing Baker Pipeline 
capacities have been apportioned to the Baker WTP participants based on Baker 
WTP capacity ownership.  IRWD retains 10.5 cfs of the pipeline capacity for 
potable supply through the Baker WTP and retains 36 cfs in Reach 1U of the 
Baker Pipeline capacity for nonpotable supply (See also footnote 8, page 27).  In 
2023, IRWD executed an Agreement that sells 3 cfs to South County agencies, 
leaving 7.5 cfs for daily use for IRWD.  However, should an emergency arise, 
IRWD retains the right to use the 3 cfs sold. Water is subject to availability from 
MWD.           
 

•NONPOTABLE SUPPLY - NATIVE 
 
  Irvine Lake (currently available) 
 
  (i) Permit For Diversion and Use of Water (“Permit No. 19306”) issued pursuant 

to Application No. 27503; License For Diversion and Use of Water (“License 
2347”) resulting from Application No. 4302 and Permit No. 3238;  License For 
Diversion and Use of Water (“License 2348”) resulting from Application No. 9005 
and Permit No. 5202. The foregoing permit and licenses, jointly held by IRWD 
(as successor to The Irvine Company (“TIC”) and Carpenter Irrigation District 
(“CID”)) and Serrano Water District (“SWD”), secure appropriative rights to the 

 
9 See Imported Supply - Additional Information, below, for information concerning the availability of the MWD 

supply. 

C -30



31 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

flows of Santiago Creek.  Under Licenses 2347 and 2348, IRWD and SWD have 
the right to diversion by storage at Santiago Dam (Irvine Lake) and a submerged 
dam, of a total of 25,000 AFY.  Under Permit No. 19306, IRWD and SWD have 
the right to diversion by storage of an additional 3,000 AFY by flashboards at 
Santiago Dam (Irvine Lake). (Rights under Permit No. 19306 may be junior to an 
OCWD permit to divert up to 35,000 AFY of Santiago Creek flows to spreading 
pits downstream of Santiago Dam.)  The combined total of native water that may 
be diverted to storage under these licenses and permit is 28,000 AFY. A 1996 
amendment to License Nos. 2347, 2348 and 2349 [replaced by Permit No. 19306 
in 1984] limits the withdrawal of water from the Lake to 15,483 AFY under the 
licenses.  This limitation specifically references the licenses and doesn’t 
reference water stored pursuant to other legal entitlements.  The use and 
allocation of the native water is governed by the agreements described in the 
next paragraph. 

 
  (ii) Agreement, dated February 6, 1928 (“1928 Agreement”); Agreement, dated 

May 15, 1956, as amended November 12, 1973 (“1956 Agreement”); Agreement, 
dated as of December 21, 1970 (“1970 Agreement”); Agreement Between Irvine 
Ranch Water District and The Irvine Company Relative to Irvine Lake and the 
Acquisition of Water Rights In and To Santiago Creek, As Well As Additional 
Storage Capacity in Irvine Lake, dated as of May 31, 1974 (“1974 Agreement”). 
The 1928 Agreement was entered into among SWD, CID and TIC, providing for 
the use and allocation of native water in Irvine Lake. Through the 1970 
Agreement and the 1974 Agreement, IRWD acquired the interests of CID and 
TIC, leaving IRWD and SWD as the two co-owners. TIC retains certain reserved 
rights.  The 1928 Agreement divides the stored native water by a formula which 
allocates to IRWD one-half of the first 1,000 AF, plus increments that generally 
yield three-fourths of the amount over 1,000 AF.10   The agreements also provide 
for evaporation and spill losses and carryover water remaining in the Lake at the 
annual allocation dates.  Given the dependence of native water on rainfall, for 
purposes of this assessment only a small portion of IRWD’s share of the 28,000 
AFY of native water rights (3,048 AFY in normal years and 1,000 AFY in single 
and multiple-dry years) is shown in currently available supplies, based on 
averaging of historical data.  However, IRWD’s ability to supplement Irvine Lake 
storage with its imported untreated water supplies, described herein, offsets the 
uncertainty associated with the native water supply. 

 

          •NONPOTABLE SUPPLY - GROUNDWATER 
 
  Irvine Subbasin / Irvine Desalter (currently available) 
 
  (i) IRWD’s entitlement to produce nonpotable water from the Irvine Subbasin is 

included within the Irvine Subbasin Agreement.  See discussion of the Irvine 
Subbasin Agreement under Potable Supply - Groundwater; paragraph (iv), 
above. 

 

 
10 The 1956 Agreement provides for facilities to deliver MWD imported water into Irvine Lake, and grants 

storage capacity for the imported water.  By succession, IRWD owns 9,000 AFY of this 12,000 AFY imported water 
storage capacity.  This storage capacity does not affect availability of the imported supply, which can be either stored 
or delivered for direct use by customers. 

C -31



32 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

  (ii) See discussion of the Irvine Desalter project under Potable Supply - 
Groundwater, paragraph (v), above.  The Irvine Desalter project will produce 
nonpotable as well as potable water. 
 

          •IMPORTED SUPPLY - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

  As described above, the imported supply from MWD is contractually subject to 
availability.  To assist local water providers in assessing the adequacy of local 
water supplies that are reliant in whole or in part on MWD’s imported supply, 
MWD has provided information concerning the availability of the supplies to its 
entire service area.  In the MWD 2020 UWMP, MWD has extended its planning 
timeframe out through 2045 to ensure that the MWD 2020 UWMP may be used 
as a source document for meeting requirements for sufficient supplies.   In 
addition, the MWD 2020 UWMP includes “Justifications for Supply Projections” 
(Appendix A-3) that details the planning, legal, financial, and regulatory basis for 
including each source of supply in the plan.  The MWD 2020 UWMP summarizes 
MWD’s planning initiatives over the past 15 years, which includes the Integrated 
Resources Plan (IRP), the IRP 2015 Update, the WSDM Plan, Strategic Plan and 
Rate Structure.   The reliability analysis in MWD’s 2015 IRP Update shows that 
MWD can maintain reliable supplies under the conditions that have existed in 
past dry periods throughout the period through 2040.  The MWD 2020 UWMP 
includes tables that show the region can provide reliable supplies under both the 
single driest year (1977) and multiple dry years (1990-92) through 2045.  MWD 
has also identified buffer supplies, including additional State Water Project 
groundwater storage and transfers that could serve to supply the additional water 
needed.   

   
  It is anticipated that MWD will revise its regional supply availability analysis 

periodically, if needed, to supplement the MWD 2020 UWMP in years when the 
MWD UWMP is not being updated. 

 
  IRWD is permitted by the statute (Wat. Code, § 10610 et seq.) to rely upon the 

water supply information provided by the wholesaler concerning a wholesale 
water supply source, for use in preparing its UWMPs.  In turn, the statute 
provides for the use of UWMP information to support water supply assessments 
and verifications. In accordance with these provisions, IRWD is entitled to rely 
upon the conclusions of the MWD UWMP.  As referenced above under Summary 
of Results of Demand-Supply Comparisons - Actions on Delta Pumping, MWD 
has provided additional information on its imported water supply. 

   
  MWD’s reserve supplies, together with the fact that IRWD relies on MWD 

supplies as supplemental supplies that need not be used to the extent IRWD 
operates currently available and under-development local supplies, build a 
margin of safety into IRWD’s supply availability. 
 

    (2) Adopted capital outlay program to finance delivery of the water supplies. 
 
  All necessary delivery facilities currently exist for the use of the currently 

available and under-development supplies assessed herein, with the exception of 
future groundwater wells, and IRWD sub-regional and developer-dedicated 
conveyance facilities necessary to complete the local distribution systems for the 

C -32



33 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

Project.  IRWD’s turnout at each MWD connection and IRWD’s regional delivery 
facilities are sufficiently sized to deliver all of the supply to the sub-regional and 
local distribution systems. 

   
  With respect to future groundwater well projects (PR Nos. 11828 and 11829), 

IRWD adopted its fiscal year 2023-24 capital budget on April 24, 2023 
(Resolution No. 2023-6), budgeting portions of the funds for such projects. (A 
copy is available from IRWD on request.)  For these facilities, as well as unbuilt 
IRWD sub-regional conveyance facilities, the sources of funding are previously 
authorized general obligation bonds, revenue-supported certificates of 
participation and/or capital funds held by IRWD Improvement Districts.  IRWD 
has maintained a successful program for the issuance of general obligation 
bonds and certificates of participation on favorable borrowing terms, and IRWD 
has received AAA public bond ratings.  IRWD has approximately $585.5 million 
(water) and $711.1 million (recycled water) of unissued, voter-approved general 
obligation bond authorization.  Certificates of participation do not require voter 
approval.  Proceeds of bonds and available capital funds are expected to be 
sufficient to fund all IRWD facilities for delivery of the supplies under 
development.  Tract-level conveyance facilities are required to be donated to 
IRWD by the Applicant or its successor(s) at time of development.  

 
See also the MWD 2020 UWMP, Appendix A.3 Justifications for Supply Projections 
with respect to capital outlay programs related to MWD’s supplies.  

  
    (3) Federal, state and local permits for construction of delivery infrastructure.  
 
  Most IRWD delivery facilities are constructed in public right-of-way or future right-

of-way.  State statute confers on IRWD the right to construct works along, under 
or across any stream of water, watercourse, street, avenue, highway, railway, 
canal, ditch, or flume (Water Code Section 35603).  Although this right cannot be 
denied, local agencies may require encroachment permits when work is to be 
performed within a street.  If easements are necessary for delivery infrastructure, 
IRWD requires the developer to provide them.  The crossing of watercourses or 
areas with protected species requires federal and/or state permits as applicable. 

 
See also the MWD 2020 UWMP, Appendix A.3 Justifications for Supply Projections 
with respect to permits related to MWD’s supplies.  

 
    (4) Regulatory approvals for conveyance or delivery of the supplies. 
 
  See response to preceding item (3). Additionally, in general, supplies under 

development may necessitate the preparation and completion of environmental 
documents and/or regulatory approvals prior to full construction and 
implementation.  IRWD obtains such approvals when required, and copies of 
documents pertaining to approvals can be obtained from IRWD.  

 
See also the MWD 2020 UWMP, Appendix A.3 Justifications for Supply Projections 
with respect to regulatory approvals related to MWD’s supplies. 
 
 
 

C -33



34 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

3. Other users and contractholders (identified supply not previously used). 
 

For each of the water supply sources identified by IRWD, if no water has been received 
from that source(s), IRWD is required to identify other public water systems or water 
service contractholders that receive a water supply from, or have existing water supply 
entitlements, water rights and water service contracts to, that source(s):  

 
  Water has been received from all listed sources.  A small quantity of Subbasin 

water is used by Woodbridge Village Association for the purpose of supplying its 
North and South Lakes.  There are no other public water systems or water 
service contractholders that receive a water supply from, or have existing water 
supply entitlements, water rights and water service contracts to, the Irvine 
Subbasin. 

 
4. Information concerning groundwater included in the supply identified for 

the Project: 
 

(a) Relevant information in the Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP):   
 
  See Irvine Ranch Water District 2020 UWMP, section 6.2. 
 

(b) Description of the groundwater basin(s) from which the Project will be supplied: 
 
  The Orange County Groundwater Basin (“Basin”) is described in the Orange 

County Water District Groundwater Management Plan (“GMP”) 2015 Update, 
dated June 17, 201511.  The rights of the producers within the Basin vis a vis one 
another have not been adjudicated.  The Basin is managed by the Orange 
County Water District (“OCWD”) for the benefit of municipal, agricultural, and 
private groundwater producers.  OCWD is responsible for the protection of water 
rights to the Santa Ana River in Orange County as well as the management and 
replenishment of the Basin.  Current production from the Basin is approximately 
260,000 AFY. 

 
The DWR has not identified the Basin as “critically overdrafted,” and has not 
identified the Basin as overdrafted in its most current bulletin that characterizes 
the condition of the Basin, Bulletin 118.  The efforts being undertaken by OCWD 
to avoid long-term overdraft in the Basin are described in the OCWD GMP 2015 
Update and OCWD Master Plan Report (“MPR”), including in particular, Chapters 
4, 5, 6, 14 and 15 of the MPR.  OCWD has also prepared a Long Term Facilities 
Plan (“LTFP”) which was received by the OCWD Board in July 2009 and was last 
updated in November 2014.  The LTFP Chapter 3 describes the efforts being 
undertaken by OCWD to eliminate long-term overdraft in the Basin.  See also 
following section on “Sustainable Groundwater Management Act”. 

   
  Although the water supply assessment statute (Water Code Section 10910(f)) 

refers to elimination of “long-term overdraft,” overdraft includes conditions which 
may be managed for optimum basin storage, rather than eliminated.  OCWD’s 
Act defines annual groundwater overdraft to be the quantity by which production 

 
11 OCWD has also prepared a Long-Term Facilities Plan which was received and filed by its Board in July 2009, and 

last updated in November 2014.   

C -34



35 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

exceeds the natural replenishment of the Basin.  Accumulated overdraft is 
defined in the OCWD Act to be the quantity of water needed in the groundwater 
basin forebay to prevent landward movement of seawater into the fresh 
groundwater body.  However, seawater intrusion control facilities have been 
constructed by OCWD since the Act was written and have been effective in 
preventing landward movement of seawater.  These facilities allow greater 
utilization of the storage capacity of the Basin. 

 
  OCWD has invested over $250 million in seawater intrusion control (injection 

barriers), recharge facilities, laboratories, and Basin monitoring to effectively 
manage the Basin.  Consequently, although the Basin is defined to be in an 
“overdraft” condition, it is actually managed to allow utilization of up to 500,000 
acre-feet of storage capacity of the basin during dry periods, acting as an 
underground reservoir and buffer against drought.  OCWD has an optimal basin 
management target of 100,000 acre-feet of accumulated overdraft provides 
sufficient storage space to accommodate increased supplies from one wet year 
while also provide enough water in storage to offset decreased supplies during a 
two- to three year drought.  If the Basin is too full, artesian conditions can occur 
along the coastal area, causing rising water and water logging, an adverse 
condition.   Since the formation of OCWD in 1933, OCWD has made substantial 
investment in facilities, Basin management and water rights protection, resulting 
in the elimination and prevention of adverse long-term “mining” overdraft 
conditions.  OCWD continues to develop new replenishment supplies, recharge 
capacity and basin protection measures to meet projected production from the 
basin during normal rainfall and drought periods.  (OCWD GMP, OCWD MPR 
and LTFP) 

 
OCWD’s efforts include ongoing replenishment programs and planned capital 
improvements.  It should be noted under OCWD’s management of overdraft to 
maximize the Basin’s use for annual production and recharge operations, 
overdraft varies over time as the Basin is managed to keep it in balance over the 
long term.  The Basin is not operated on an annual safe-yield basis.  (OCWD 
GMP, OCWD MPR, section 3.2 and LTFP, section 6).  See also the following 
section on “Sustainable Groundwater Management Act”. 

 
(c) Description and analysis of the amount and location of groundwater pumped by 
IRWD from the Basin for the past five years: 

 
  The following table shows the amounts pumped, by groundwater source since 
the year 2002:  
 

(In AFY)  

Year (ending 6/30) 
DRWF/DATS/

OPA/21-22 
Irvine Subbasin (IRWD) Irvine Subbasin (TIC) LAWD12 

2023 36,558 4,692 0 0 

 
12  The water produced from IRWD’s Los Alisos wells is not included in this assessment. IRWD is presently 

evaluating the future use of these wells. 

 

C -35



36 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

2022 35,344 5,159 0 0 

2021 38,722 3,644 0 0 

2020 33,975 4,005 0 0 

2019 38,603 3,961 0 0 

2018 38,196 4,619 0 0 

2017 39,787 4,077 0 169 

2016 37,216 4,672 0 307 

2015 40,656 9,840 0 336 

2014 42,424 10,995 0 376 

2013 38,617 8,629 0 282 

2012 37,059 7,059 0 0 

2011 34,275 7,055 0 0 

2010 37,151 8,695 0 3 

2009 38,140 7,614 0 0 

2008 36,741 4,539 0 16 

2007 37,864 5,407 0 6 

2006 37,046 2,825 0 268 

2005 36,316 2,285 628 357 

2004 30,265 1,938 3,079 101 

2003 24,040 2,132 4,234 598 

2002 25,855 2,533 5,075 744 

 
(d) Description and analysis of the amount and location of groundwater projected to be 
pumped by IRWD from the Basin: 

 
  IRWD has a developed groundwater supply of 35,200 AFY from its Dyer Road 

Wellfield (including the Deep Aquifer Treatment System), in the main portion of 
the Basin.  

 
  Although TIC’s historical production from the Subbasin declined as its use of the 

Subbasin for agricultural water diminished, OCWD’s and other historical 
production records for the Subbasin show that production has been as high as 
13,000 AFY.  Plans are also underway to expand IRWD’s main Orange County 
Groundwater Basin supply (characterized as under-development supplies 
herein).  (See Section 2 (a) (1) herein).  IRWD anticipates the development of 
potential additional production facilities within both the main Basin and the Irvine 
Subbasin.  However, such additional facilities have not been included or relied 
upon in this assessment.  Additional groundwater development will provide an 
additional margin of safety as well as reduce future water supply costs to IRWD. 

 
 
 

C -36



37 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

The following table summarizes future IRWD groundwater production from currently available 
and under-development supplies. 
 

(In AFY) 
 

Year (ending 6/30) DRWF13 Future GW14 IDP (Potable) IDP (Nonpotable) 

2025 42,218 2,800 5,618 3,461 

2030 42,218 2,800 5,618 3,461 

2035 42,218 2,800 5,618 3,461 

2040 42,218 2,800 5,618 3,461 

  
   

(e) If not included in the 2020 UWMP, analysis of the sufficiency of groundwater 
projected to be pumped by IRWD from the Basin to meet the projected water demand of 
the Project:  

 
  See responses to 4(b) and 4(d).  
 
  The OCWD MPR and LTFP examined future Basin conditions and capabilities, 

water supply and demand, and identified projects to meet increased 
replenishment needs of the basin.  With the implementation of OCWD’s preferred 
projects, the Basin yield in the year 2025 would be up to 500,000 AF.  The 
amount that can be produced will be a function of which projects will be 
implemented by OCWD and how much increased recharge capacity is created 
by those projects, total demands by all producers, and the resulting Basin 
Production Percentage (“BPP”) that OCWD sets based on these factors.15        

  Sufficient replenishment supplies are projected by the OCWD MPR to be 
available to OCWD to meet the increasing demand on the Basin.  These supplies 
include capture of increasing Santa Ana River flows, purchases of replenishment 
water from MWD, and development of new local supplies.  In 2008, OCWD 
began operating its replenishment supply project, the Groundwater 
Replenishment System project (“GWRS”).  The GWRS currently produces 
approximately 100,000 AFY of new replenishment supply from recycled water 
(OCWD GMP).  

   
  Production of groundwater can exceed applicable basin production percentages 

 
13 See Potable Supply - Groundwater, paragraph (iii), above. DRWF non-colored production above 28,000 

AFY and colored water production above 8,000 AFY are subject to contractually-imposed assessments.  In addition, 
seasonal production amounts apply.  This also includes 3,200 AFY for the OPA well and 2,800 AFY for Wells 21 & 
22.  

14 Under-development. 

15  OCWD has adopted a basin production percentage of 85% for 2023-24.  In prior years OCWD has 
maintained a basin production percentage that is lower than the current percentage, and IRWD anticipates that such 
reductions may occur from time to time as a temporary measure employed by OCWD to encourage lower pumping 
levels as OCWD implements other measures to reduce the current accumulated overdraft in the Basin.  Any such 
reductions are not expected to affect any of IRWD’s currently available groundwater supplies listed in this 
assessment, which are subject to a contractually-set equivalent basin production percentage as described or are 
exempt from the basin production percentage. 

C -37



38 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

on a short-term basis, providing additional reliability during dry years or 
emergencies.  Additional groundwater production is anticipated by OCWD in the 
Basin in dry years, as producers reduce their use of imported supplies, and the 
Basin is “mined” in anticipation of the eventual availability of replenishment water.   
(OCWD MPR, section 14.6.) 

 
  See also, Figures 1-8 hereto.  IRWD assesses sufficiency of supplies on an 

aggregated basis, as neither groundwater nor other supply sources are allocated 
to particular projects or customers.  Under the Irvine Subbasin Agreement, IRWD 
is contractually obligated to attribute the Subbasin supply only to TIC 
development projects for assessment purposes; however, the agreement does 
not allocate or assign rights in the Subbasin supply to any project. 

   
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act.  Pursuant to the Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act (“SGMA”), the DWR has designated the Orange 
County groundwater basin, Basin 8-1, as a medium priority basin for purposes of 
groundwater management.  The SGMA specifically calls for OCWD, which 
regulates the Orange County groundwater basin, to serve as the groundwater 
sustainability agency or “GSA”.  The SGMA allows Special Act Districts created 
by statute, such as OCWD, to prepare and submit an alternative to a 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (“GSP”) that is “functionally equivalent” to a 
GSP.  Basin 8-1 includes the OCWD service area and several fringe areas 
outside of OCWD that are within the Basin 8-1 boundary.  Per the requirements 
of SGMA, an Alternative Plan must encompass the entire groundwater basin as 
defined by DWR.  On January 1, 2017, OCWD and the overlying agencies within 
Basin 8-1, including IRWD, jointly prepared and submitted an alternative plan in 
compliance with SGMA (Basin 8-1 Alternative).  The Basin 8-1 Alternative was 
updated in January 2023. 
 
 

5.            This Water Supply Assessment is being completed for a project 
included in a prior water supply assessment.  Check all of the following that 
apply: 
   Changes in the Project have substantially increased water demand. 

 
   Changes in circumstances or conditions have substantially affected IRWD’s 

ability to provide a sufficient water supply for the Project. 
 
   Significant new information has become available which was not known and 

could not have been known at the date of the prior Water Supply Assessment. 

 
 
6.  References 
 
Water Resources Master Plan, Irvine Ranch Water District, Updated 2017 
            
Water Shortage Contingency Plan, Irvine Ranch Water District, June 2021 
 
2020 Urban Water Management Plan, Irvine Ranch Water District, June 2021 
 

C -38



39 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

Proposed Framework for Metropolitan Water District’s Delta Action Plan, Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California, May 8, 2007 
 
2007 IRP Implementation Report, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, October 7, 
2007 
 
2010 Integrated Resources Plan Update, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, 
October 2010 
 
2015 Integrated Resources Plan Update, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, 
January 2016 
 
2020 Integrated Water Resources Plan Regional Needs Assessment, Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California, April 2022 
 
2020 Urban Water Management Plan, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, June 
2021 
 
2020 Urban Water Management Plan, Municipal Water District of Orange County, May 2021 
 
Climate Action Plan, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, May 2022 
 
Climate Action Plan Phase 2: Climate Change Analysis Guidance, California Department of 
Water Resources, September 2018 
 
Master Plan Report, Orange County Water District, April 1999 
 
Groundwater Management Plan 2015 Update, Orange County Water District, June 2015 
 
Final Draft Long-Term Facilities Plan, Orange County Water District, January 2006 
 
Long-Term Facilities Plan 2014 Update, Orange County Water District, November 2014 
 
2021-2022 Engineer's Report on Groundwater Conditions, Water Supply and Basin Utilization in 
the Orange County Water District, Orange County Water District, February 2023 
 
Basin 8-1 Alternative, Orange County Water District, January 2017 
 
Basin 8-1 Alternative 2022 Update, Orange County Water District, January 2022 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C -39



40 

 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Depiction of Project Area 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C -40



C -41



42 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Legacy Spec Plan Amendment (2/24) 

Exhibit B 

Uses Included in Project 

C -42



C -43



C -44



C -45



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



1

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 
ASSESSMENT OF WATER SUPPLY 

Water Code §10910 et seq. 

To:  (Lead Agency) 

City of Tustin 
300 Centennial Way 
Tustin, CA 92780 

(Applicant) 
City of Tustin 
300 Centennial Way 
Tustin, CA 92780 

Project Information 

Project Title:       Tustin Market Place (Exhibit A)       

Residential: No. of dwelling units:     900 dwelling units (See Exhibit B)  
Shopping center or business: No. of employees N/A     Sq. ft. of floor space 756,791 (no change) 
Commercial office: No. of employees    Sq. ft. of floor space   
Hotel or motel: No. of rooms  
Industrial, manufacturing or processing:  No. of employees   No. of acres   
Sq. ft. of floor space  
Mixed use (check and complete all above that apply)  
Other:   

Assessment of Availability of Water Supply 

On _______________ the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) approved the 
within assessment and made the following determination regarding the above-described Project: 

The projected water demand for the Project   was  was not included in IRWD’s most 
recently adopted urban water management plan. 

A sufficient water supply is available for the Project. 
The total water supplies available to IRWD during normal, single-dry and multiple-dry 
years within a 20-year projection will meet the projected water demand of the Project in 
addition to the demand of existing and other planned future uses, including, but not 
limited to, agricultural and manufacturing uses. 

A sufficient water supply is not available for the Project. [Plan for acquiring and 
developing sufficient supply attached.  Water Code § 10911(a)] 

The foregoing determination is based on the following Water Supply Assessment Information and 
supporting information in the records of IRWD. 

Signature Date Title 

Exhibit "D"

D-1



2

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 

Water Supply Assessment Information 

Purpose of Assessment 

Irvine Ranch Water District (“IRWD”) has been identified by the City as a public water 
system that will supply water service (both potable and nonpotable) to the project identified on 
the cover page of this assessment (the “Project”).  As the public water system, IRWD is required 
by Section 10910 et seq. of the Water Code to provide the City with an assessment of water 
supply availability (“assessment”) for defined types of projects.  The Project has been found by 
the City to be a project requiring an assessment.  The City is required to include this 
assessment in the environmental document for the Project, and based on the record, make a 
determination whether projected water supplies are sufficient for the Project and existing and 
planned uses. 

Water Code Section 10910 et seq. (the “Assessment Law”) contains the requirements 
for the information to be set forth in the assessment. 

Prior Water Supply Assessments 

IRWD does not allocate particular supplies to any project but identifies total supplies for 
its service area.  Because of IRWD’s aggregation of demands and supplies, each assessment 
completed by IRWD is expected to be generally similar to the most recent assessment, with 
changes as needed to take into account changes, if any, in demands and supplies, and any 
updated and corrected information obtained by IRWD.  Previously assessed projects’ water 
demands will be included in the baseline.  A newly assessed project’s water demand will have 
been included in previous water supply assessments for other projects (as part of IRWD’s “full 
build-out” demand) to the extent of any land use planning or other water demand information for 
the project that was available to IRWD.   

The Project’s water demand was included (as part of IRWD’s “full build-out” demand) in 
previous water supply assessments performed by IRWD, based on land use planning 
information available to IRWD.  In this water supply assessment, the Project demand will be 
revised in accordance with updated information provided by the applicant and included in the 
“with project” demand.   

Supporting Documentation 

IRWD prepares two planning documents to guide water supply decision-making.  
IRWD’s principal planning document is IRWD’s “Water Resources Master Plan” (“WRMP”).  The 
WRMP is a comprehensive document compiling data and analyses that IRWD considers 
necessary for its planning needs.  IRWD also prepares an Urban Water Management Plan 
(“UWMP”), a document required by statute.  The UWMP is based on the WRMP, but contains 
defined elements as listed in the statute (Water Code Section 10631 et seq.), and, as a result, is 
more limited than the WRMP in the treatment of supply and demand issues.  Therefore, IRWD 
primarily relies on its most recent WRMP.  The UWMP is required to be updated in years ending 
with “five” and “zero,” and IRWD’s most recent update of that document (2020 UWMP) was 
adopted in June 2021.   

In addition to the WRMP and the 2020 UWMP mentioned above, other supporting 
documentation referenced herein is found in Section 6 of this assessment. 

D-2



3 
 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

   Due to the number of contracts, statutes and other documents comprising IRWD’s 
written proof of entitlement to its water supplies, in lieu of attachment of such items, they are 
identified by title and summarized in Section 2(b) of this assessment (written contracts/proof of 
entitlement).  Copies of the summarized items can be obtained from IRWD. 
 
Assessment Methodology 
 
 Water use factors; dry-year increases.  IRWD employs water use factors to enable it 
to assign water demands to the various land use types and aggregate the demands.  The water 
use factors are based on average water use and incorporate the effect of IRWD’s tiered-rate 
conservation pricing and its other water use efficiency programs.  The factors are derived from 
historical usage (billing data) and a detailed review of water use factors within the IRWD service 
areas conducted as a part of the WRMP.  System losses at a rate of approximately 5% are built 
into the water use factors.  Water demands also reflect normal hydrologic conditions 
(precipitation).  Lower levels of precipitation and higher temperatures will temporarily result in 
higher water demands, due primarily to the need for additional water for irrigation.  To reflect 
this, base (normal) WRMP water demands have been increased by 7% in the assessment 
during both “single-dry” and “multiple-dry” years.   This increase in estimated demands is 
considered conservative and is consistent with the Municipal Water District of Orange County’s 
(“MWDOC”) 2020 UWMP which assumes increased demands in single-dry and multiple dry 
years of 6% based on MWDOC’s Orange County Reliability Study (MWDOC 2020 UWMP, pg. 
7-2).  The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (“MWD”) also considers these 
weather variables in their climate adjustment factors when forecasting demands, as 
documented in MWD’s 2020 UWMP which shows an average increase of 8% for single dry year 
demands (MWD 2020 UWMP Tables 2-4, 2-5, 2-6) and also documented in their 2020 
Integrated Resources Plan - Regional Needs Assessment (2022).    

 
Planning horizon.  In accordance with Water Code Section 10910, this assessment 

reviews demands and supplies covering a 20-year planning horizon.  For consistency with 
IRWD’s WRMP, the assessment reviews demands and supplies through the year 2044, which is 
considered to include build-out or “ultimate development”.   

 
 Assessment of demands.  Water demands are reviewed in this assessment for three 
development projections (to 2044): 
 

• Existing and committed demand (without the Project) (“baseline”). This provides a 
baseline condition as of the date of this assessment, consisting of demand from existing 
development, plus demand from development that has both approved zoning and (if 
required by the Assessment Law) an adopted water supply assessment.  

 
• Existing and committed demand, plus the Project (“with-project”). This projection adds 
the Project water demands to the baseline demands. 

 
• Full WRMP build-out (“full build-out”).  In addition to the Project, this projection adds 
potential demands for all presently undeveloped areas of IRWD based on current 
general plan information, modified by more specific information available to IRWD, as 
more fully described in Chapter 2 of the WRMP. 

 
 Assessment of supplies.  For comparison with demands, water supplies are classified 
as currently available or under development: 
 

D-3



4 
 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

• Currently available supplies include those that are presently operational, and those that 
will be operational within the next several years.  Supplies expected to be operational in 
the next several years are those having completed or substantially completed the 
environmental and regulatory review process, as well as having necessary contracts (if 
any) in place to move forward.  These supplies are in various stages of planning, design, 
or construction. 

 
• In general, supplies under development may necessitate the preparation and 
completion of environmental documents, regulatory approvals, and/or contracts prior to 
full construction and implementation. 

 
IRWD is also evaluating the development of additional supplies that are not included in either 
currently available or under-development supplies for purposes of this assessment.  As outlined 
in the WRMP, prudent water supply and financial planning dictates that development of supplies 
be phased in over time consistent with the growth in demand. 
 
 Water supplies available to IRWD include several sources: groundwater pumped from 
the Orange County groundwater basin (including the Irvine Subbasin); captured local (native) 
surface water; recycled sewage; and supplemental imported water supplied by MWD through 
the MWDOC.  The supply-demand comparisons in this assessment are broken down among the 
various sources and are further separated into potable and nonpotable water sources. 
 
 Comparison of demand and supply.  The three demand projections noted above 
(baseline, with-project and full build-out) are compared with supplies in the following ways: 
 

• On a total annual quantity basis (stated in acre-feet per year (“AFY”)). 
 
• On a peak-flow (maximum day) basis (stated in cubic feet per second (“cfs”)). 

 
• Under three climate conditions: base (normal) conditions and single-dry and multiple-
dry year conditions.  (Note: These conditions are compared for annual demands and not 
for peak-flow demands.  Peak-flow is a measure of a water delivery system’s ability to 
meet the highest day’s demand of the fluctuating demands that will be experienced in a 
year’s time.  Peak demands occur during the hot, dry season and as a result are not 
appreciably changed by dry-year conditions; dry-year conditions do affect annual 
demand by increasing the quantity of water needed to supplement normal wet-season 
precipitation.) 

 
Summary of Results of Demand-Supply Comparisons 
 
 Listed below are Figures provided in this assessment, comparing projected potable and 
nonpotable water supplies and demands under the three development projections: 
 
 Figure 1:   Normal Year Supply and Demand – Potable Water 
 Figure 2:   Single Dry-Year Supply and Demand – Potable Water  
 Figure 3:   Multiple Dry-Year Supply and Demand – Potable Water  
 Figure 4:   Maximum-Day Supply and Demand – Potable Water 
 Figure 5:   Normal Year Supply and Demand – Nonpotable Water 
 Figure 6:   Single Dry-Year Supply and Demand – Nonpotable Water  
 Figure 7:   Multiple Dry-Year Supply and Demand – Nonpotable Water 
 Figure 8:   Maximum-Day Supply and Demand – Nonpotable Water 

D-4



5 
 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

 
 It can be observed in the Figures that IRWD's supplies remain essentially constant 
between normal, single-dry, and multiple-dry years.  This result is due to the fact that 
groundwater and MWD imported water account for the majority of all of IRWD's potable supply, 
and recycled water, groundwater and imported water comprise all of IRWD’s nonpotable supply.  
Groundwater production typically remains constant or may increase in cycles of dry years, even 
if overdraft of the basin temporarily increases, as groundwater producers reduce their demand 
on imported supplies to secure reliability.  (See Section 4 herein.)  As to imported water, MWD’s 
2020 Urban Water Management Plan (MWD 2020 UWMP) concludes that MWD has supply 
capabilities sufficient to meet expected demands from 2025 through 2045 under a single dry 
year condition and a period of drought lasting five consecutive water years, as well as in a 
normal water year hydrologic condition.  (See also Section 2(b) (1) “IMPORTED SUPPLY - 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION,” below.)   Recycled water production also remains constant and 
is considered "drought-proof" as a result of the fact that sewage flows remain virtually 
unaffected by dry years.  Only a small portion of IRWD's supply, native water captured in Irvine 
Lake, is reduced in single-dry and multiple-dry years.   The foregoing factors also serve to 
explain why there is no difference in IRWD's supplies between single-dry and multiple-dry years. 
 
A review of the Figures indicates the following: 

 
• Currently available supplies of potable water are adequate to meet annual demands for 
the baseline, with-project and full build-out scenarios projected under the normal year, 
and the single- and multiple-dry year conditions through the year 2044.  (Figures 1, 2 
and 3.)  IRWD plans to proceed with the implementation of future potable supplies 
(under development), as shown in the Figures, to improve local reliability during dry-year 
conditions.  
 
• Adequate currently available potable water supply capacity is available to meet peak-
flow (maximum day) demands for all demand projections through the year 2044. (Figure 
4.) 

 
• With respect to nonpotable water, currently available supplies are adequate to meet 
projected annual demands for both the baseline and with-project demand projections 
under both dry-year conditions through the year 2044. (Figures 5, 6, 7 and 8.)  IRWD 
has implemented all planned nonpotable supplies, as shown in the Figures, to improve 
local reliability during dry-year conditions.   

 
The foregoing Figures provide an overview of IRWD potable and nonpotable water supply 
capabilities.  More detailed information on the anticipated development and use of supplies, 
which incorporates source costs and reliability issues, is provided in the WRMP. 
 
 Margins of safety.  The Figures and other information described in this assessment 
show that IRWD’s assessment of supply availability contains several margins of safety or 
buffers: 
 

• “Reserve” water supplies (excess of supplies over demands) will be available to serve 
as a buffer against inaccuracies in demand projections, future changes in land use, or 
alterations in supply availability. 

 
• Conservative estimates of annual potable and nonpotable imported supplies have 
been made based on connected delivery capacity (by application of peaking factors as 

D-5



6 
 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

described below in Section 2, footnote 1); additional supplies are expected to be 
available from these sources, based on legal entitlements, historical uses and 
information provided by MWD.  In addition to MWD’s existing regional supply 
assessments, this assessment has considered MWD information concerning operational 
limits on Delta pumping.  See “Actions on Delta Pumping,” below. 
 
• Information provided by MWD, as the imported water supplier, concerning the 
adequacy of its regional supplies, summarized herein, demonstrates MWD’s inclusion of 
reserves in its regional supply assessments.  In addition to MWD’s existing regional 
supply assessments, this assessment has considered MWD’s information concerning 
operational limits on Delta pumping.  See “Actions on Delta Pumping,” below. 

 
• Although groundwater supply amounts shown in this assessment assume production 
levels within applicable basin production percentages described herein, production of 
groundwater can exceed applicable basin production percentages on a short-term basis, 
which can provide additional reliability during dry years or emergencies.  See “IRWD’s 
Evaluation of Effect of Reduced MWD Supplies to IRWD,” below. 
 
Actions on Delta Pumping. The Sacramento/San Joaquin Delta (“Delta”) is a 

vulnerable component in both the State and Federal systems to convey water from northern 
portions of California to areas south of the Delta.  Issues associated with the Delta have 
generally been known for years; however, the continuing decline in the number of endangered 
Delta smelt resulted in the filing of litigation challenging permits for the operation of the Delta 
pumping facilities.  On August 31, 2007, a Federal court ordered interim protective measures for 
the endangered Delta smelt, including operational limits on Delta pumping, which have an effect 
on State Water Project (“SWP”) operations and supplies.  On June 4, 2009, a federal biological 
opinion imposed rules that further restrict water diversions from the Delta to protect endangered 
salmon and other endangered fish species.  Several proceedings concerning Delta operations 
to evaluate options to address Delta smelt impacts and other environmental concerns.  In 
addition to the regulatory and judicial proceedings to address immediate environmental 
concerns, the Delta Vision process and Bay-Delta Conservation Plan (“BDCP”) process were 
established to identify long-term solutions for the Delta.  In addition, State and federal agencies 
and water user entities are currently engaged in the development of the Delta Conveyance 
Project (previously California WaterFix), which is aimed at making physical and operational 
improvements in the Delta necessary to improve south of the Delta SWP water supplies and 
water quality and protect ecosystem health in the Delta (MWD 2020 UWMP).  Prior to the 2007 
court decision, MWD’s Board approved a Delta Action Plan in May 2007, that described short, 
mid and long-term conditions and the actions to mitigate potential supply shortages and to 
develop and implement long-term solutions.  To address uncertainties in expected SWP 
supplies, in October 2007, MWD prepared its 2007 Integrated Resources Plan (“IRP”) 
Implementation Report, in which MWD estimated that it could see as much as up to a 22% 
reduction on average of its SWP supplies based on the court order. As part of its ongoing long 
term planning, in its 2010 IRP Update, MWD identified changes to the long-term plan and 
established direction to address the range of potential changes in water supply planning.  The 
2010 IRP also discusses dealing with uncertainties related to impacts of climate change (see 
additional discussion of this below), as well as actions to protect endangered fisheries.  The 
2010 IRP Update emphasizes an evolving approach and suite of actions to address the water 
supply challenges that are posed by uncertain weather patterns, regulatory and environmental 
restrictions, water quality impacts and changes in the state and the region.  The 2010 IRP 
Update includes MWD’s Adaptive Resource Management Strategy three components:  Core 
Resources Strategy, Supply Buffer Implementation and Foundational Actions, which together 

D-6



7 
 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

provides the basis for the 2010 IRP Update.  The 2010 IRP Update expands the concept of 
developing a planning buffer from the 2004 IRP Update by implementing a supply buffer equal 
to 10 percent of the total retail demand.   

 
In January 2016, MWD adopted its 2015 IRP Update. In the 2015 IRP Update, MWD 

continued its Adaptive Resource Management Strategy and integrated future supply actions to 
improve the viability of potential contingency resources as needed, and to position the region to 
effectively implement these resources in a timely manner. The 2015 IRP finds that additional 
actions are needed in investments in conservation, local supplies, the Delta Conveyance Project 
(previously California WaterFix), and stabilizing Colorado River supplies. Among the supply 
actions, MWD will continue to work collaboratively with state and federal agencies on the 
California WaterFix, maximize its storage and transfer approach, and continue to develop and 
protect local supplies and conservation.   

 
MWD is currently developing its 2020 IRP Update and has completed and adopted a 

2020 IRP Regional Needs Assessment which is considered Phase 1 of the 2020 IRP.  A One 
Water Implementation phase will be Phase 2 of the 2020 IRP.  The One Water Implementation 
will take the results and findings of Phase 1 to identify integrated regional solutions.  It will 
include an updated Adaptive Management Strategy, policies, programs and projects to address 
the findings and mitigate any potential shortages.   

  
IRWD’s Evaluation of Effect of Reduced MWD Supplies to IRWD:   In the MWD 2020 

UWMP, MWD states it has supply capability that would be sufficient to meet expected demands 
from 2025 to 2045 under single dry year and multiple dry year conditions. 1   

 
Based on the prior MWD 2007 IRP Implementation Report and also reported in the 

MWD 2015 IRP, MWD estimated that it could receive reduction of SWP supplies of up to 22% 
on average until a long-term solution was implemented.  For purposes of ensuring a 
conservative analysis, IRWD made an evaluation of the effect of the 22% estimated reduction of 
MWD’s SWP supplies on its overall imported supplies.  IRWD estimates that 22% reduction of 
SWP supplies conservatively translates to approximately 16% reduction in all of MWD’s 
imported supplies over the years 2025 through 2045.  For this purpose, it is assumed that 
MWD’s total supplies consist only of imported SWP and Colorado deliveries.  Based on this 
estimate, this assessment uses a 16% reduction in MWD supplies available to IRWD for the 
years 2025 through 2045, using IRWD’s connected capacity without any water supply allocation 
imposed by MWD.  This reduction in MWD supplies is reflected in Figures 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, and 7. 
(See also the footnote 1).   

 
Per the MWD 2020 UWMP, MWD performs water shortage planning in its Water Surplus 

and Drought Management (“WSDM”) Plan (1988) which guides MWD’s planning and operations 
during both shortage and surplus conditions.  Furthermore, MWD developed the Water Supply 
Allocation Plan (“WSAP”) (dated February 2009, updated December 2014) which provides 
standardized methodology for allocation of MWD’s supplies during times of shortage.  The 
WSDM Plan distinguishes between shortages, severe shortages, and extreme shortages.  

 
1 The MWD 2020 UWMP utilized DWR’s 2019 SWP Delivery Capability Report to estimate future SWP supplies for 
2025 through 2045.  These estimates incorporate the effect of regulatory requirements in accordance with biological 
opinions and also reflect potential impacts of climate change on SWP operations. Tables A.3-7 of the MWD 2020 
UWMP reflect 58% or 1.1 MAF in MWD’s expected average year SWP entitlement supplies.  This amount is a higher 
expected average than MWD’s 2015 estimate of 984,000 AF.  For purposes of a conservative analysis, IRWD has 
used the 22% reduction in its supplies from MWD as the basis of IRWD’s analysis.    
 

D-7



8 
 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

These terms have specific meanings relating to MWD’s ability to deliver water and the actions it 
takes.  In June 2008, MWD’s Board adopted a Water Supply Condition Framework to 
communicate the urgency of the region’s water supply situation and the need for further water 
conservation to reduce regional demands, MWD uses the WSDM Plan and Framework to 
determine if a WSAP is recommended.    

 
As an alternative means of analyzing the effect of reduced MWD supplies on IRWD, 

listed below are Figures provided comparing projected potable water supplies and demands in 
all of the five year increments, under a temporary MWD allocation scenario: 
 
 Figure 1a: Normal Year Supply and Demand (MWD Allocated) – Potable Water  
 Figure 2a: Single Dry-Year Supply and Demand (MWD Allocated) – Potable Water 
 Figure 3a:  Multiple Dry-Year Supply and Demand (MWD Allocated) – Potable Water 

 
Figures 1a, 2a, and 3a show IRWD’s estimated supplies (average and single and 

multiple dry years) under a short-term MWD water supply allocation scenario whereby MWD 
declares a shortage stage under its WSAP, and a cutback is applied to IRWD’s actual usage 
rather than its connected capacity.  IRWD’s evaluation of reduced MWD supplies to IRWD as 
shown in Figures 1a, 2a and 3a conservatively analyzes the effect of up to a MWD level 5 
Regional Shortage Level.  In addition, these Figures do not reflect a reduction in demands, thus 
representing a more conservative view of IRWD’s supply capability.  (see “Recent Actions 
Related to Drought Conditions” below)   

 
On April 14, 2015, MWD approved the implementation of its WSAP at a level 3 Regional 

Shortage Level and an effective 15% reduction in regional deliveries effective July 1, 2015, 
through June 30, 2016.  As a result of IRWD’s diversified water supplies, IRWD is reliant on 
MWD for only 20% of its total supplies.  IRWD’s evaluation of reduced MWD supplies to IRWD 
as shown in Figures 1a, 2a and 3a includes MWD’s 2015 actions to implement a level 3 
Regional Shortage Level and 15% reduction.    
 
 Under shortage scenarios, IRWD may need to supplement supplies with production of 
groundwater, which can exceed the applicable basin production percentage on a short-term 
basis, providing additional reliability during dry years or emergencies.2   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2 In these scenarios, it is anticipated that other water suppliers who produce water from the Orange County Basin will 
also experience cutbacks of imported supplies and will increase groundwater production and that Orange County 
Water District (“OCWD”) imported replenishment water may also be cutback.  The OCWD’s “2021-2022 Engineer’s 
Report on the Groundwater Conditions, Water Supply and Basin Utilization” references a report (OCWD Report on 
Evaluation of Orange County Groundwater Basin Storage and Operational Strategy, 2007) which recommends a 
basin management strategy that provides general guidelines for annual basin refill or storage decrease based on the 
level of accumulated overdraft.  It states: “Although it is considered to be generally acceptable to allow the basin to 
decline to 500,000 AF overdraft for brief periods due to severe drought conditions and lack of supplemental 
water…an accumulated overdraft of 100,000 AF best represents an optimal basin management target.  This optimal 
target level provides sufficient storage space to accommodate anticipated recharge from a single wet year while also 
providing water in storage for at least 2 or 3 consecutive years of drought.”  MWD replenishment water is a 
supplemental source of recharge water and OCWD estimates other main supply sources for recharge are available.   
 

D-8



9 
 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

In addition, IRWD has developed water banking projects in Kern County, California 
which may be called upon for delivery of supplemental banked water to IRWD under a MWD 
WSAP.3  IRWD may also convert non-potable water uses to recycled water as a way to 
conserve potable water.  In addition, if needed, resultant net shortage levels can be addressed 
by demand reduction programs as described in IRWD’s updated Water Shortage Contingency 
Plan adopted in 2021.  IRWD’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan provides procedures for 
responding to various levels of supply shortages through a combination of supply augmentation 
and demand management measures.  As stated in IRWD’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan, 
use of local supplies, storage and other supply augmentation measures can mitigate shortages, 
and are used as necessary and appropriate during declared shortage levels.   
 
 It can be noted that IRWD’s above approach is conservative, in that IRWD evaluates the 
effect of the 16% reduction through 2044 and shows the effect of current allocation scenarios in 
all of the five-year increments.  However, MWD reports that it has made significant progress in 
other water resource categories such as transfers, groundwater storage and developing other 
local resources, and supplies will be available from these resources over the long-term.   
 
 Climate Change.  The California Department of Water Resources (“DWR”) released a 
report “Progress on Incorporating Climate Change into Management of California’s Water 
Resources” (July 2006), considering the impacts of climate change on the State’s water supply. 
In 2012, DWR adopted phase 1 of its Climate Action Plan, its department-wide plan for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions (GHG).  In September 2018, the DWR released phase 2 of its 
Climate Action Plan, which is DWR’s guide to addressing climate change in the programs, 
projects, and activities over which it has authority.  Per this guidance, California’s climate policy 
focuses on reducing GHG emissions, preparing for climate change impacts, and supporting 
climate-related research to inform policy responses and decision-making processes.       
 

In MWD’s 2015 IRP Update, MWD recognizes there is additional risk and uncertainty 
associated with climate change that may affect future supply and demands.  In the 2015 IRP 
Update, MWD states that it plans to hedge against supply and demand uncertainties by 
implementing a long-term plan that recognizes the risk and provides resource development to 
offset the risk.  Per the MWD 2020 UWMP, for longer term risks, like climate change, MWD 
established a Robust Decision Making (“RDM”) approach that can show how vulnerable the 
region’s reliability is to the longer-term risks such as climate change and can also establish 
“signposts” that can be monitored to see when crucial changes may be happening.  MWD states 
in its 2020 UWMP that the RDM analysis was valuable in identifying vulnerabilities to its 2015 
IRP approach to long-term reliability and in understanding how climate change would best be 
incorporated into the 2020 IRP. 

 
Per the MWD 2020 UWMP, MWD continues to incorporate current climate change 

science into its planning efforts and MWD has made great efforts to implement GHG mitigation 
programs and policies for its facilities and operations. In 2022, MWD released a Climate Action 
Plan which complements MWD’s IRP planning process and set reduction targets and outlined 
strategies to reduce emission levels by 2045.  In MWD’s 2020 IRP Regional Needs 
Assessment, MWD finds that SWP supplies are highly susceptible to varying hydrologic 
conditions, climate change, and regulatory restrictions.  In this report, MWD assesses climate 

 
3 IRWD has developed water banking projects (“Water Bank”) in Kern County, California and has entered into a 30-
year water banking partnership with Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District to operate IRWD’s Strand Ranch and 
Stockdale West portions of the Water Bank.  The Water Bank can improve IRWD’s water supply reliability by 
capturing lower cost water available during wet hydrologic periods for use during dry periods.  The Water Bank can 
enhance IRWD’s ability to respond to drought conditions and potential water supply interruptions. 

D-9



10 
 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

vulnerabilities and the need for future projects such as indirect potable reuse, stormwater 
capture, and expanded storage capacity to mitigate and adapt to these vulnerabilities and 
ensure future resilience.  Specific climate change impacts on regional and local water supplies 
and relevant information for the Orange County hydrologic basin and Santa Ana Watershed 
have not been sufficiently developed at this time to permit IRWD to assess and quantify the 
effect of any such impact on its conclusions in the Assessment.   

 
Catastrophic Supply Interruption Planning.  MWD has developed Emergency 

Storage Requirements (MWD 2020 UWMP) to safeguard the region from catastrophic loss of 
water supply.  MWD has made substantial investments in emergency storage and has based its 
planning on a 100% reduction in its supplies for a period of six months.  The emergency plan 
outlines that under such a catastrophe, non-firm service deliveries would be suspended, and 
firm supplies would be restricted by a mandatory cutback of 25 percent from normal year 
demand deliveries.  In addition, MWD discusses DWR’s investments in improvements on the 
SWP and the long term Delta plan in the MWD 2020 UWMP (pages 3-19 to 3-23).  IRWD has 
also addressed supply interruption planning in its WRMP and 2020 UWMP.    

 
Recent Actions Related to Drought Conditions.  In response to historically dry 

conditions throughout the state of California, on April 1, 2015, Governor Brown issued an 
Executive Order directing the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) to impose 
restrictions to achieve an aggregate statewide 25 percent reduction in potable water use 
through February 2016.  The Governor’s Order also included mandatory actions aimed at 
reducing water demands, with a particular focus on outdoor water use.  On May 5, 2015, the 
SWRCB adopted regulations which required that IRWD achieve a 16% reduction in potable 
water use from its 2013 potable water use levels.  On November 13, 2015, Governor Brown 
issued an Executive Order directing the SWRCB to extend the 2015 Emergency Regulation 
through October 31, 2016, if drought conditions continued. On February 2, 2016, the SWRCB 
adopted an extended and modified Emergency Regulation. As a result of the modification, 
IRWD's mandated reduction was changed from 16% to 9% effective March 1, 2016. On April 14, 
2015, MWD approved actions to implement its WSAP at a level 3 Regional Shortage Level and 
a 15% reduction in regional deliveries effective July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016. During this 
period, IRWD continued to implement actions to reduce potable water demands during the 
drought; however, this did not affect IRWD’s long-term supply capability to meet the demands.  
On April 7, 2017, Governor Brown rescinded the Executive Order.    

 
In California’s most recent drought (2021-2023), in July 2021, Governor Newsom called 

for voluntary 15 percent reduction in potable water use from all urban suppliers.  Consistent with 
the Governor’s Executive Order, IRWD implemented Level 2 of its Water Shortage Contingency 
Plan, although IRWD had no projected shortages in supplies.  In March 2023, Governor 
Newsom rescinded the Executive Order.  

 
As discussed under “IRWD’s Evaluation of Effect of Reduced MWD Supplies to IRWD” 

(see above), IRWD has effectively analyzed an imported water supply reduction up to a level 5 
Regional Shortage Stage in Figures 1a, 2a, 3a.  These Figures, however, do not reflect a 
reduction in demands, thus representing a more conservative view of IRWD’s supply capability.  
In particular, the reduction in demand mandated by Senate Bill 7 in 2010, requiring urban retail 
water suppliers to establish water use targets to achieve a 20% reduction in daily per capita 
water use by 2020, has not been factored into the demands in this analysis.   Similarly, 
notwithstanding the Governors’ 2015 and 2021 orders, IRWD’s conservative supply-sufficiency 
analysis in Figures 1a, 2a and 3a does not include the ordered reduction in potable demands.   
  

D-10



11 
 
Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

 
Detailed Assessment 

 
1. Supply and demand comparison 
 

Comparisons of IRWD’s average annual and peak (maximum day) demands and 
supplies, under baseline (existing and committed demand, without the Project), with-
project (baseline plus Project), and full build-out development projections, are shown in 
the following Figures 1-4 (potable water), Figures 5-8 (nonpotable water) and Figures 
1a, 2a, and 3a (short term MWD allocation potable water). See also the “Actions on 
Delta Pumping” above.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-11



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044
      
Current Potable Supplies       
MWD Imported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF, Baker) 51,027     51,027     51,027     51,027     51,027     
DRWF/DATS/OPA 39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     
Irvine Desalter 5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       
Wells 21 & 22 2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       
Baker Water Treatment Plant (native portion) 3,048       3,048       3,048       3,048       3,048       
Supplies Under Development      
Future Potable -           2,800       2,800       2,800       2,800       
Maximum Supply Capability 101,911   104,711   104,711   104,711   104,711   
Baseline Demand 76,467     80,981     83,748     83,958     84,126     
Demand with Project 76,468     81,430     83,850     84,060     84,228     
WRMP Build-out Demand 76,468     81,430     83,850     84,060     84,228     
Reserve Supply with Project 25,443     23,281     20,861     20,651     20,483     

 Notes: By agreement, IRWD is required to count the production from the Irvine Subbasin in calculating available  
 supplies for TIC developments (see Potable Supply-Groundwater). 

MWD Imported Supplies are shown at 16% reduction off of average connected capacity.
Baker Water Treatment Plant is supplied untreated imported water and native water from Irvine Lake.

12

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
cr

e
-F

ee
t 

p
er

 Y
ea

r

Figure 1   
IRWD Normal-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

Future Potable

MWD Imported

Irvine Desalter

Baker Water Treatment Plant
(native portion)

DRWF/DATS/OPA

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) D-12



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044
      
Current Potable Supplies       
MWD Imported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF, Baker) 51,027     51,027     51,027     51,027     51,027     
DRWF/DATS/OPA 39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     
Irvine Desalter 5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       
Wells 21 & 22 2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       
Baker Water Treatment Plant (native portion) 1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       
Supplies Under Development      
Future Potable -           2,800       2,800       2,800       2,800       
Maximum Supply Capability 99,863     102,663   102,663   102,663   102,663   
Baseline Demand 81,820     86,649     89,611     89,835     90,015     
Demand with Project 81,821     87,130     89,719     89,944     90,124     
WRMP Build-out Demand 81,821     87,130     89,719     89,944     90,124     
Reserve Supply with Project 18,042     15,532     12,943     12,719     12,539     

Notes:  Supplies identical to Normal-Year based on Metropolitan's Urban Water Management Plan and usage of groundwater under
drought conditions (OCWD Master Plan).  Demands increased 7% from Normal-Year.  By agreement, IRWD is required to count the 
production from the Irvine Subbasin in calculating available supplies for TIC developments (see Potable Supply-Groundwater).

MWD Imported Supplies are shown at 16% reduction off of average connected capacity.
Baker Water Treatment Plant is supplied untreated imported water and native water from Irvine Lake.

13

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
cr

e
-F

ee
t 

p
er

 Y
e

ar

Figure 2   
IRWD Single Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

Future Potable

MWD Imported

Irvine Desalter

Baker Water Treatment
Plant (native portion)

DRWF/DATS/OPA

Demand with Project

Baseline Demand

WRMP Build-out Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) D-13



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044
      
Current Potable Supplies       
MWD Imported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF, Baker) 51,027     51,027     51,027     51,027     51,027     
DRWF/DATS/OPA 39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     
Irvine Desalter 5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       
Wells 21 & 22 2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       
Baker Water Treatment Plant (native portion) 1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       
Supplies Under Development      
Future Potable -           2,800       2,800       2,800       2,800       
Maximum Supply Capability 99,863     102,663   102,663   102,663   102,663   
Baseline Demand 81,820     86,649     89,611     89,835     90,015     
Demand with Project 81,821     87,130     89,719     89,944     90,124     
WRMP Build-out Demand 81,821     87,130     89,719     89,944     90,124     
Reserve Supply with Project 18,042     15,532     12,943     12,719     12,539     

Notes:  Supplies identical to Normal-Year based on Metropolitan's Urban Water Management Plan and usage of groundwater under
drought conditions (OCWD Master Plan).  Demands increased 7% from Normal-Year.  By agreement, IRWD is required to count the 
production from the Irvine Subbasin in calculating available supplies for TIC developments (see Potable Supply-Groundwater).

MWD Imported Supplies are shown at 16% reduction off of average connected capacity.
Baker Water Treatment Plant is supplied untreated imported water and native water from Irvine Lake.

14

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
cr

e
-F

ee
t 

p
er

 Y
e

ar

Figure 3   
IRWD Multiple Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

Future Potable

MWD Imported

Irvine Desalter

Baker Water Treatment
Plant (native portion)

DRWF/DATS/OPA

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) D-14



(in cfs) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044
      
Current Potable Supplies       
MWD Imported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF, Baker) 130.4       130.4       130.4       130.4       130.4       
DRWF/DATS/OPA 96.7         96.7         96.7         96.7         96.7         
Irvine Desalter 9.7           9.7           9.7           9.7           9.7           
Wells 21 & 22 8.6           8.6           8.6           8.6           8.6           
Baker Water Treatment Plant (native portion) 4.2           4.2           4.2           4.2           4.2           
Supplies Under Development      
Future Potable -           3.9           3.9           3.9           3.9           
Maximum Supply Capability 249.6       253.4       253.4       253.4       253.4       
Baseline Demand 190.1       201.3       208.2       208.7       209.2       
Demand with Project 190.1       202.5       208.5       209.0       209.4       
WRMP Build-out Demand 190.1       202.5       208.5       209.0       209.4       
Reserve Supply with Project 59.5         51.0         45.0         44.4         44.0         

15

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

c
u

b
ic

 f
e

e
t 

p
e

r 
s

ec
o

n
d

 (
c

fs
)

Figure 4
IRWD Maximum-Day Supply & Demand - Potable Water

Future Potable

MWD Imported

Irvine Desalter

Baker Water Treatment
Plant (native portion)

DRWF/DATS/OPA

Demand with Project

Baseline Demand

WRMP Build-out
Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24)

  

D-15



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044
      
Current Nonpotable Supplies       
Existing MWRP&LAWRP 34,389     34,389     34,389     34,389     34,389     
Future MWRP&LAWRP -           7,623       7,623       7,623       7,623       
MWD Imported (Baker, ILP) 17,347     17,347     17,347     17,347     17,347     
Irvine Desalter 3,461       3,461       3,461       3,461       3,461       
Native Water -           -           -           -           -            
Maximum Supply Capability 55,197     62,820     62,820     62,820     62,820     
Baseline Demand 30,020     29,606     29,179     29,252     29,310     
Demand with Project 30,024     29,623     29,177     29,250     29,308     
WRMP Build-out Demand 30,024     29,623     29,177     29,250     29,308     
Reserve Supply with Project 25,173     33,197     33,643     33,570     33,512     

Note:  Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time.
MWD Imported Supplies are shown at 16% reduction off of average connected capacity.

16

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 
p

e
r 

Y
e

a
r

Figure 5
IRWD Normal-Year Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

Future MWRP&LAWRP

MWD Imported (Baker,
ILP)

Native Water

Irvine Desalter

Existing MWRP&LAWRP

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out
Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) D-16



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044
      
Current Nonpotable Supplies       
Existing MWRP&LAWRP 34,389     34,389     34,389     34,389     34,389     
Future MWRP&LAWRP -           7,623       7,623       7,623       7,623       
MWD Imported (Baker, ILP) 17,347     17,347     17,347     17,347     17,347     
Irvine Desalter 3,461       3,461       3,461       3,461       3,461       
Native Water -           -           -           -           -            
Maximum Supply Capability 55,197     62,820     62,820     62,820     62,820     
Baseline Demand 32,121     31,678     31,221     31,299     31,362     
Demand with Project 32,125     31,696     31,219     31,297     31,360     
WRMP Build-out Demand 32,125     31,696     31,219     31,297     31,360     
Reserve Supply with Project 23,072     31,124     31,601     31,523     31,460     

Note:  Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time.
MWD Imported Supplies are shown at 16% reduction off of average connected capacity.

17

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 
p

e
r 

Y
e

a
r

Figure 6
IRWD Single Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

Future MWRP&LAWRP

MWD Imported (Baker,
ILP)

Native Water

Irvine Desalter

Existing
MWRP&LAWRP

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out
Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) D-17



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044
      
Current Nonpotable Supplies       
Existing MWRP&LAWRP 34,389     34,389     34,389     34,389     34,389     
Future MWRP&LAWRP -           7,623       7,623       7,623       7,623       
MWD Imported (Baker, ILP) 17,347     17,347     17,347     17,347     17,347     
Irvine Desalter 3,461       3,461       3,461       3,461       3,461       
Native Water -           -           -           -           -            
Maximum Supply Capability 55,197     62,820     62,820     62,820     62,820     
Baseline Demand 32,121     31,678     31,221     31,299     31,362     
Demand with Project 32,125     31,696     31,219     31,297     31,360     
WRMP Build-out Demand 32,125     31,696     31,219     31,297     31,360     
Reserve Supply with Project 23,072     31,124     31,601     31,523     31,460     

Note:  Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time.
MWD Imported Supplies are shown at 16% reduction off of average connected capacity.

18

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
c

re
-F

e
e

t 
p

e
r 

Y
e

a
r 

Future MWRP&LAWRP

MWD Imported (Baker,
ILP)

Native Water

Irvine Desalter

Existing MWRP&LAWRP

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out
Demand

Figure 7
IRWD Multiple Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) D-18



(in cfs) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044
      
Current Nonpotable Supplies       
Existing MWRP&LAWRP 47.6         47.6         47.6         47.6         47.6         
Future MWRP&LAWRP -           10.5         10.5         10.5         10.5         
MWD Imported (Baker, ILP) 111.5       111.5       111.5       111.5       111.5        
Irvine Desalter 6.2           6.2           6.2           6.2           6.2           
Native Water -           -           -           -           -           
Maximum Supply Capability 165.3       175.8       175.8       175.8       175.8       
Baseline Demand 103.7       102.2       100.8       101.0       101.2       
Demand with Project 103.7       102.3       100.7       101.0       101.2       
WRMP Build-out Demand 103.7       102.3       100.7       101.0       101.2       
Reserve Supply with Project 61.6         73.5         75.1         74.8         74.6         

Note:  Downward trend reflects reduction in agricultural use over time.

19

0

30

60

90

120

150

180

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

c
u

b
ic

 f
e

e
t 

p
e

r 
s

e
co

n
d

 (
c

fs
)

Future MWRP&LAWRP

MWD Imported (Baker,
ILP)

Native Water

Irvine Desalter

Existing
MWRP&LAWRP

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out
Demand

Figure 8
IRWD Maximum-Dry Supply & Demand - Nonpotable Water

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) D-19



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044
Current Potable Supplies       
MWD Imported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF, Baker) 38,270     40,222     42,274     44,430     45,323     
DRWF/DATS/OPA 39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     
Irvine Desalter 5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       
Wells 21 & 22 2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       
Baker Water Treatment Plant (native portion) 3,048       3,048       3,048       3,048       3,048       
Supplies Under Development      
Future Potable -           2,800       2,800       2,800       2,800       
Maximum Supply Capability 89,154     93,906     95,958     98,114     99,007     
Baseline Demand 76,467     80,981     83,748     83,958     84,126     
Demand with Project 76,468     81,430     83,850     84,060     84,228     
WRMP Build-out Demand 76,468     81,430     83,850     84,060     84,228     
Reserve Supply with Project 12,686     12,476     12,108     14,055     14,779     
*For illustration purposes, IRWD has shown MWD Imported Supplies as estimated under a MWD short-term allocation up to a level 5
in all of the 5-year increments. This does not reflect a reduction in demands, thus representing a conservative view of supply capability. 
Under a MWD Allocation, IRWD could supplement supplies with groundwater production which can exceed applicable basin percentages
on a short-term basis or transfer water from IRWD's water bank.  IRWD may also reduce demands by implementing shortage contingency

measures as described in the 2020 UWMP.  Under a MWD Allocation, the Baker WTP would be limited to available MWD and native water.

20

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
cr

e
-F

ee
t 

p
er

 Y
e

ar

Figure 1a   
IRWD Normal-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water

Under Temporary MWD Allocation*

Future Potable

MWD Imported

Irvine Desalter

Baker Water Treatment Plant
(native portion)

DRWF/DATS/OPA

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) D-20



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044      
Current Potable Supplies       
MWD Imported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF, Baker) 38,270     40,222     42,274     44,430     45,323     
DRWF/DATS/OPA 39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     
Irvine Desalter 5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       
Wells 21 & 22 2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       
Baker Water Treatment Plant (native portion) 1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       
Supplies Under Development      
Future Potable -           2,800       2,800       2,800       2,800       
Maximum Supply Capability 87,106     91,858     93,910     96,066     96,959     
Baseline Demand 81,820     86,649     89,611     89,835     90,015     
Demand with Project 81,821     87,130     89,719     89,944     90,124     
WRMP Build-out Demand 81,821     87,130     89,719     89,944     90,125     
Reserve Supply with Project 5,285       4,728       4,190       6,122       6,835       
*For illustration purposes, IRWD has shown MWD Imported Supplies as estimated under a MWD short-term allocation up to a level 5
in all of the 5-year increments. This does not reflect a reduction in demands, thus representing a conservative view of supply capability. 
Under a MWD Allocation, IRWD could supplement supplies with groundwater production which can exceed applicable basin percentages
on a short-term basis or transfer water from IRWD's water bank.  IRWD may also reduce demands by implementing shortage contingency

measures as described in the 2020 UWMP.  Under a MWD Allocation, the Baker WTP would be limited to available MWD and native water.

21

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
cr

e
-F

ee
t 

p
er

 Y
ea

r
Figure 2a   

IRWD Single Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water
Under Temporary MWD Allocation*

Future Potable

MWD Imported

Irvine Desalter

Baker Water Treatment
Plant (native portion)

DRWF/DATS/OPA

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) D-21



(in acre-feet per year) 2025 2030 2035 2040 2044      
Current Potable Supplies       
MWD Imported (EOCF#2, AMP, OCF, Baker) 38,270     40,222     42,274     44,430     45,323     
DRWF/DATS/OPA 39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     39,818     
Irvine Desalter 5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       5,618       
Wells 21 & 22 2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       
Baker Water Treatment Plant (native portion) 1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       
Supplies Under Development      
Future Potable -           2,800       2,800       2,800       2,800       
Maximum Supply Capability 87,106     91,858     93,910     96,066     96,959     
Baseline Demand 81,820     86,649     89,611     89,835     90,015     
Demand with Project 81,821     87,130     89,719     89,944     90,124     
WRMP Build-out Demand 81,821     87,130     89,719     89,944     90,124     
Reserve Supply with Project 5,285       4,728       4,190       6,122       6,835       

*For illustration purposes, IRWD has shown MWD Imported Supplies as estimated under a MWD short-term allocation up to a level 5
in all of the 5-year increments. This does not reflect a reduction in demands, thus representing a conservative view of supply capability. 
Under a MWD Allocation, IRWD could supplement supplies with groundwater production which can exceed applicable basin percentages
on a short-term basis or transfer water from IRWD's water bank.  IRWD may also reduce demands by implementing shortage contingency

measures as described in the 2020 UWMP.  Under a MWD Allocation, the Baker WTP would be limited to available MWD and native water.

22

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

2025 2030 2035 2040 2044

A
cr

e
-F

ee
t 

p
er

 Y
e

ar
Figure 3a   

IRWD Multiple Dry-Year Supply & Demand - Potable Water
Under Temporary MWD Allocation*

Future Potable

MWD Imported

Irvine Desalter

Baker Water Treatment
Plant (native portion)

DRWF/DATS/OPA

Baseline Demand

Demand with Project

WRMP Build-out Demand

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) D-22



Existing sources of identified water supply for the proposed project:  IRWD does not allocate particular
supplies to any project, but identifies total supplies for its service area, as updated in the following table:

Max Day (cfs)  
Avg. Annual 

(AFY)
 Annual by Category 

(AFY) 

     Current Supplies 

Potable - Imported 10

       East Orange County Feeder No. 2 41.4               18,746            1        

       Allen-McColloch Pipeline* 64.7               29,296            1        

       Orange County Feeder 18.0               8,150              1        

124.1             56,192            56,192                       

Potable - Treated Surface 

     Baker Treatment Plant (Imported) 10 6.3              4,554            6        4,554                       
     Baker Treatment Plant (Native) 4.2              3,048            6        3,048                       
Potable - Groundwater

       Dyer Road Wellfield 80.0              28,000            2        

       OPA Well 4.4                3,200              11      

       Deep Aquifer Treatment System-DATS 12.3              8,618              2        

       Wells 21 & 22 8.6                2,400              2        

       Irvine Desalter 9.7                5,618              3        49,479                       

             Total Potable Current Supplies 249.6            113,273                     

Nonpotable - Recycled Water  

       MWRP (25.2 mgd) 39.1               28,228            4        

       LAWRP (5.5 mgd) 8.5                 6,161              4        

       Future MWRP & LAWRP 10.6              7,623              5        42,012                       

Nonpotable - Imported 10

       Baker Aqueduct 40.2               11,651            6        

       Irvine Lake Pipeline 65.0               9,000              7        

105.2             20,651            20,651                       

Nonpotable - Groundwater

       Irvine Desalter-Nonpotable 6.2                3,461              8        3,461                         

Nonpotable Native

       Irvine Lake (see Baker Treatment Plant above) 4.2                3,048              6,9

             Total Nonpotable Current Supplies (Excludes Native) 169.6            66,124                       

             Total Combined Current Supplies 419.2             179,397                     

   Supplies Under Development

Potable Supplies

          Future Groundwater Production Facilities 3.9                2,800              2,800                         

     Total Under Development 3.9                2,800              2,800                         

     Total Supplies
            Potable Supplies 253.4            116,073                     

            Nonpotable Supplies 169.6            66,124                       

            Total Supplies (Current and Under Development) 423.0            182,197                     

2    Contract amount - See Assessment Potable Supply-Groundwater(iii). Due to groundwater limitations, value changed from 6,329 AF to 2,400 AF

3    Contract amount - See Assessment Potable Supply-Groundwater (iv) and (v).  Maximum day well capacity is compatible with contract amount.

5    Future estimated MWRP & LAWRP recycled water production. Includes biosolids and expansion to 33 mgd

8    Contract amount - See Assessment Nonpotable Supply-Groundwater (i) and (ii).  Maximum day well capacity (cfs) is compatible with contract amount.

9    Based on 70+ years historical average of Santiago Creek Inflow into Irvine Lake. Since 2020, native water is treated through Baker WTP.

10   Supplies in this table are total and are not adjusted to account for any reductions in imported water.

11  Per Agreement with the City of Orange, average annual capacity increased to 3,200 acre-feet

*64.7 cfs is current assigned capacity; based on increased peak flow, IRWD can purchase 10 cfs more (see page 25 (b)(1)(iii))

23

6    Since 2017, Baker Water Treatment Plant (WTP) treats imported and native water.  Baker Aqueduct capacity has been allocated to Baker WTP participants and 
IRWD owns 46.50 cfs in Baker Aqueduct, of which, 10.5 cfs is for for potable treatment.  IRWD has 36 cfs remaining capacity for non-potable uses.  The nonpotable 
average use is based on converting maximum day capacity to average by dividing the capacity by a peaking factor of 2.5 (see Assessment Footnote 8, page 27).  In 
2023, IRWD executed an Agreement that sells 3 cfs to South County agencies, leaving 7.5 cfs for daily use for IRWD.  However, should an emergency arise, IRWD 
retains the right to use the 3 cfs sold.  The amount shown in the table remains 10.5 cfs

1    Based on converting maximum day capacity to average by dividing the capacity by a peaking factor of 1.6. Max Day is equivalent to Treatment Plant Production

4    MWRP 28.0 mgd treatment capacity (28,228 AFY RW production) with 90% plant efficiency (25.2 mgd) and LAWRP permitted 5.5 mgd 
tertiary treatment capacity (6,161 AFY) 

7    Based on IRWD's proportion of Irvine Lake imported water storage; Actual ILP capacity would allow the use of additional imported water from MWD through the 
Santiago Lateral.

Water Supply Assessment- Tustin Market Place (2/24) D-23



24 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

(b)  Required information concerning currently available and under-development water 
supply entitlements, water rights and water service contracts: 

 
    (1) Written contracts or other proof of entitlement.4 5  
 
          •POTABLE SUPPLY - IMPORTED6 
 
  Potable imported water service connections (currently available). 
 
  (i)  Potable imported water is delivered to IRWD at various service connections to 

the imported water delivery system of The Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California (“MWD”):   service connections CM-01A and OC-7 (Orange 
County Feeder); CM-10, CM-12, OC-38, OC-39, OC-57, OC-58, OC-63 (East 
Orange County Feeder No. 2); and OC-68, OC-71, OC-72, OC-73/73A, OC-74, 
OC-75, OC-83, OC-84, OC-87 (Allen-McColloch Pipeline).  IRWD’s entitlements 
regarding service from the MWD delivery system facilities are described in the 
following paragraphs and summarized in the above Table ((2)(a)(1)).  IRWD 
receives imported water service through Municipal Water District of Orange 
County (“MWDOC”), a member agency of MWD. 

 
  Allen-McColloch Pipeline (“AMP”) (currently available).   
 
  (ii) Agreement For Sale and Purchase of Allen-McColloch Pipeline, dated as of 

July 1, 1994 (Metropolitan Water District Agreement No. 4623) (“AMP Sale 
Agreement”).  Under the AMP Sale Agreement, MWD purchased the Allen-
McColloch Pipeline (formerly known as the “Diemer Intertie”) from MWDOC, the 
MWDOC Water Facilities Corporation and certain agencies, including IRWD and 
Los Alisos Water District (“LAWD”),7 identified as “Participants” therein.  Section 
5.02 of the AMP Sale Agreement obligates MWD to meet IRWD’s and the other 
Participants’ requests for deliveries and specified minimum hydraulic grade lines 
at each connection serving a Participant, subject to availability of water.  MWD 
agrees to operate the AMP as any other MWD pipeline. MWD has the right to 

 
4 In some instances, the contractual and other legal entitlements referred to in the following descriptions are 
stated in terms of flow capacities, in cubic feet per second (cfs).  In such instances, the cfs flows are converted to 
volumes of AFY for purposes of analyzing supply sufficiency in this assessment, by dividing the capacity by a peaking 
factor of 1.8 (potable) or 2.5 (nonpotable), consistent with maximum day peaking factors used in the WRMP.  The 
resulting reduction in assumed available annual AFY volumes through the application of these factors recognizes that 
connected capacity is provided to meet peak demands and that seasonal variation in demand and limitations in local 
storage prevent these capacities from being utilized at peak capacity on a year-round basis.  However, the 
application of these factors produces a conservatively low estimate of annual AFY volumes from these connections; 
additional volumes of water are expected to be available from these sources. 

5 In the following discussion, contractual and other legal entitlements are characterized as either potable or 
nonpotable, according to the characterization of the source of supply.  Some of the nonpotable supplies surplus to 
nonpotable demand could potentially be rendered potable by the addition of treatment facilities; however, except 
where otherwise noted, IRWD has no current plans to do so. 
 
6 See Imported Supply - Additional Information, below, for information concerning the availability of the MWD 
supply. 

7 IRWD has succeeded to LAWD’s interests in the AMP and other LAWD water supply facilities and rights 
mentioned in this assessment, by virtue of the consolidation of IRWD and LAWD on December 31, 2000. 

D-24



25 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

operate the AMP on a “utility basis,” meaning that MWD need not observe 
capacity allocations of the Participants but may use available capacity to meet 
demand at any service connection. 

 
  The AMP Sale Agreement obligates MWD to monitor and project AMP demands 

and to construct specified pump facilities or make other provision for augmenting 
MWD’s capacity along the AMP, at MWD’s expense, should that be necessary to 
meet demands of all of the Participants (Section 5.08). 

 
  (iii) Agreement For Allocation of Proceeds of Sale of Allen-McColloch Pipeline, 

dated as of July 1, 1994 (“AMP Allocation Agreement”).  This agreement, entered 
into concurrently with the AMP Sale Agreement, provided each Participant, 
including IRWD, with a capacity allocation in the AMP, for the purpose of 
allocating the sale proceeds among the Participants in accordance with their prior 
contractual capacities adjusted to conform to their respective future demands.  
IRWD’s capacity under the AMP Allocation Agreement (including its capacity as 
legal successor agency to LAWD) is 64.69 cfs at IRWD’s first four AMP 
connections, 49.69 cfs at IRWD’s next five downstream AMP connections and 
35.01 and 10.00 cfs, respectively at IRWD’s remaining two downstream 
connections. The AMP Allocation Agreement further provides that if a 
Participant’s peak flow exceeds its capacity, the Participant shall “purchase” 
additional capacity from the other Participants who are using less than their 
capacity, until such time as MWD augments the capacity of the AMP.  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, as mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the 
allocated capacities do not alter MWD’s obligation under the AMP Sale 
Agreement to meet all Participants’ demands along the AMP, and to augment the 
capacity of the AMP if necessary.  Accordingly, under these agreements, IRWD 
can legally increase its use of the AMP beyond the above-stated capacities but 
would be required to reimburse other Participants from a portion of the proceeds 
IRWD received from the sale of the AMP. 

 
  (iv) Improvement Subleases (or “FAP” Subleases) [MWDOC and LAWD; 

MWDOC and IRWD], dated August 1, 1989; 1996 Amended and Restated Allen-
McColloch Pipeline Subleases [MWDOC and LAWD; MWDOC and IRWD], dated 
March 1, 1996. IRWD subleases its AMP capacity, including the capacity it 
acquired as successor to LAWD.  To facilitate bond financing for the construction 
of the AMP, it was provided that the MWDOC Water Facilities Corporation, and 
subsequently MWDOC, would have ownership of the pipeline, and the 
Participants would be sublessees.  As is the case with the AMP Sale Agreement, 
the subleases similarly provide that water is subject to availability. 

 
  East Orange County Feeder No. 2 (“EOCF#2”) (currently available). 
 
  (v) Agreement For Joint Exercise of Powers For Construction, Operation and 

Maintenance of East Orange County Feeder No. 2, dated July 11, 1961, as 
amended on July 25, 1962, and April 26, 1965; Agreement Re Capacity Rights In 
Proposed Water Line, dated September 11, 1961 (“IRWD MWDOC Assignment 
Agreement”); Agreement Regarding Capacity Rights In the East Orange County 
Feeder No. 2, dated August 28, 2000 (“IRWD Coastal Assignment Agreement”).  
East Orange County Feeder No. 2 (“EOCF#2”), a feeder linking Orange County 
with MWD’s feeder system, was constructed pursuant to a joint powers 

D-25



26 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

agreement among MWDOC (then called Orange County Municipal Water 
District), MWD, Coastal Municipal Water District (“Coastal”), Anaheim and Santa 
Ana.  A portion of IRWD’s territory is within MWDOC and the remainder is within 
the former Coastal (which was consolidated with MWDOC in 2001).  Under the 
IRWD MWDOC Assignment Agreement, MWDOC assigned 41 cfs of capacity to 
IRWD in the reaches of EOCF#2 upstream of the point known as Coastal 
Junction (reaches 1 through 3), and 27 cfs in reach 4, downstream of Coastal 
Junction.  Similarly, under the IRWD Coastal Assignment Agreement, prior to 
Coastal’s consolidation with MWDOC, Coastal assigned to IRWD 0.4 cfs of 
capacity in reaches 1 through 3 and 0.6 cfs in reach 4 of EOCF#2.  Delivery of 
water through EOCF#2 is subject to the rules and regulations of MWD and 
MWDOC and is further subject to application and agreement of IRWD respecting 
turnouts. 

 
  Orange County Feeder (currently available) 
 
  (vi)  Agreement, dated March 13, 1956.  This 1956 Agreement between 

MWDOC’s predecessor district and the Santa Ana Heights Water Company 
(“SAHWC”) provides for delivery of MWD imported supply to the former SAHWC 
service area.  SAHWC’s interests were acquired on behalf of IRWD through a 
stock purchase and IRWD annexation of the SAHWC service area in 1997.  The 
supply is delivered through a connection to MWD’s Orange County Feeder 
designated as OC-7. 

 
  (vii) Agreement For Transfer of Interest In Pacific Coast Highway Water 

Transmission and Storage Facilities From The Irvine Company To the Irvine 
Ranch Water District, dated April 23, 1984; Joint Powers Agreement For the 
Construction, Operation and Maintenance of Sections 1a, 1b and 2 of the Coast 
Supply Line, dated June 9, 1989; Agreement, dated January 13, 1955 (“1955 
Agreement”).  The jointly constructed facility known as the Coast Supply Line 
(“CSL”), extending southward from a connection with MWD’s Orange County 
Feeder at Fernleaf Street in Newport Beach, was originally constructed pursuant 
to a 1952 agreement among Laguna Beach County Water District (“LBCWD”), 
The Irvine Company (TIC) and South Coast County Water District.  Portions were 
later reconstructed.  Under the above-referenced transfer agreement in 1984, 
IRWD succeeded to TIC’s interests in the CSL.  The CSL is presently operated 
under the above-referenced 1989 joint powers agreement, which reflects IRWD’s 
ownership of 10 cfs of capacity.  The 1989 agreement obligates LBCWD, as the 
managing agent and trustee for the CSL, to purchase water and deliver it into the 
CSL for IRWD.  LBCWD purchases such supply, delivered by MWD to the 
Fernleaf connection, pursuant to the 1955 Agreement with Coastal (now 
MWDOC). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-26



27 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

  Baker Water Treatment Plant (currently available) 
 
IRWD recently constructed the Baker Water Treatment Plant (Baker WTP) in 
partnership with El Toro Water District, Moulton-Niguel Water District, Santa 
Margarita Water District and Trabuco Canyon Water District.  The Baker WTP is 
supplied with untreated imported water from MWD and native Irvine Lake water 
supply. IRWD owns 10.5 cfs of treatment capacity rights in the Baker WTP.8 
 

          •POTABLE SUPPLY - GROUNDWATER 
 
  (i)  Orange County Water District Act (“OCWD”), Water Code App., Ch. 40 

(“Act”).  IRWD is an operator of groundwater-producing facilities in the Orange 
County Groundwater Basin (the “Basin”).  Although the rights of the producers 
within the Basin vis a vis one another have not been adjudicated, they 
nevertheless exist and have not been abrogated by the Act (§40-77).  The rights 
consist of municipal appropriators’ rights and may include overlying and riparian 
rights.  The Basin is managed by OCWD under the Act, which functions as a 
statutorily-imposed physical solution.  The Act empowers OCWD to impose 
replenishment assessments and basin equity assessments on production and to 
require registration of water-producing facilities and the filing of certain reports; 
however, OCWD is expressly prohibited from limiting extraction unless a 
producer agrees to such limitation (§ 40-2(6) (c)) and from impairing vested rights 
to the use of water (§ 40-77).  Thus, producers may install and operate 
production facilities under the Act; OCWD approval is not required.  OCWD is 
required to annually investigate the condition of the Basin, assess overdraft and 
accumulated overdraft, and determine the amount of water necessary for 
replenishment (§40-26).  OCWD has studied the Basin replenishment needs and 
potential projects to address growth in demand through 2035 in its Final Draft 
Long-Term Facilities Plan (January 2006), last updated November 19, 2014.  The 
Long-Term Facilities Plan is updated approximately every five years. 

 
  (ii)  Irvine Ranch Water District v. Orange County Water District, Orange County 

Superior Court Case No. 795827.  A portion of IRWD is outside the jurisdictional 
boundary of OCWD.  IRWD is eligible to annex the Santa Ana River Watershed 
portion of this territory to OCWD, under OCWD’s current annexation policy 
(OCWD Resolution No. 86-2-15, adopted on February 19, 1986, and reaffirmed 
on June 2, 1999). This September 29, 1998, Superior Court ruling indicates that 
IRWD is entitled to deliver groundwater from the Basin to the IRWD service area 
irrespective of whether such area is also within OCWD. 

 
  Dyer Road Wellfield (“DWRF”) / Deep Aquifer Treatment System (“DATS”) 

(currently available) 
 
  (iii) Agreement For Water Production and Transmission Facilities, dated March 

18, 1981, as amended May 2, 1984, September 19, 1990, and November 3, 

 
8 The Baker WTP is supplied nonpotable imported water through the existing Baker Pipeline.  IRWD’s existing Baker 
Pipeline capacity (see Section 2(b)(1) NONPOTABLE SUPPLY – IMPORTED) has been apportioned to the Baker 
WTP participants based on Baker WTP capacity ownership, and IRWD retains 10.5 cfs of pipeline capacity through 
the Baker WTP for potable supply and retains 36 cfs in Reach 1U of the Baker Pipeline capacity for nonpotable 
supply. In 2023, IRWD executed an agreement that sells 3 cfs to South County agencies, leaving 7.5 cfs for daily use 
for IRWD.  However, should an emergency arise, IRWD retains the right to the use of the 3 cfs sold. 

D-27



28 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

1999 (the “DRWF Agreement”).  The DRWF Agreement, among IRWD, OCWD 
and Santa Ana, concerns the development of IRWD’s Dyer Road Wellfield 
(DRWF), within the Basin.  The DRWF consists of 16 wells pumping from the 
non-colored water zone of the Basin and 2 wells (with colored-water treatment 
facilities) pumping from the deep, colored-water zone of the Basin (the colored-
water portion of the DRWF is sometimes referred to as the Deep Aquifer 
Treatment System or DATS.)  Under the DRWF Agreement, an “equivalent” 
basin production percentage (“BPP”) has been established for the DRWF, 
currently 28,000 AFY of non-colored water and 8,000 AFY of colored water, 
provided any amount of the latter 8,000 AFY not produced results in a matching 
reduction of the 28,000 AFY BPP.  Although typically IRWD production from the 
DRWF does not materially exceed the equivalent BPP, the equivalent BPP is not 
an extraction limitation; it results in imposition of monetary assessments on the 
excess production.  The DRWF Agreement also establishes monthly pumping 
amounts for the DRWF.  With the addition of the Concentrated Treatment 
System (“CATS”), IRWD has increased the yield of DATS. 

 
  Irvine Subbasin / Irvine Desalter (currently available) 
 
  (iv) First Amended and Restated Agreement, dated March 11, 2002, as 

amended June 15, 2006, restating May 5, 1988 agreement (“Irvine Subbasin 
Agreement”).  TIC has historically pumped agricultural water from the Irvine 
Subbasin. (As in the rest of the Basin of which this subbasin is a part, the 
groundwater rights have not been adjudicated and OCWD provides governance 
and management under the Act.)  The 1988 agreement between IRWD and TIC 
provided for the joint use and management of the Irvine Subbasin. The 1988 
agreement further provided that the 13,000 AFY annual yield of the Irvine 
Subbasin (“Subbasin”) would be allocated 1,000 AFY to IRWD and 12,000 AFY 
to TIC.  Under the restated Irvine Subbasin Agreement, the foregoing allocations 
were superseded as a result of TIC’s commencement of the building its Northern 
Sphere Area project, with the effect that the Subbasin production capability, wells 
and other facilities, and associated rights have been transferred from TIC to 
IRWD, and IRWD has assumed the production from the Subbasin.  In 
consideration of the transfer, IRWD is required to count the supplies attributable 
to the transferred Subbasin production in calculating available supplies for the 
Northern Sphere Area project and other TIC development and has agreed that 
they will not be counted toward non-TIC development. 

 
  A portion of the existing Subbasin water production facilities produce water which 

is of potable quality.  IRWD could treat some of the water produced from the 
Subbasin for potable use, by means of the Desalter and other projects.   
Although, as noted above, the Subbasin has not been adjudicated and is 
managed by OCWD, TIC reserved water rights from conveyances of its lands as 
development over the Subbasin has occurred, and under the Irvine Subbasin 
Agreement TIC has transferred its rights to IRWD.  

 
  (v) Second Amended and Restated Agreement Between Orange County Water 

District and Irvine Ranch Water District Regarding the Irvine Desalter Project, 
dated June 11, 2001, and other agreements referenced therein.  This agreement 
provides for the extraction and treatment of subpotable groundwater from the 
Irvine Subbasin, a portion of the Basin.  As is the case with the remainder of the 

D-28



29 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

Basin, IRWD’s entitlement to extract this water is not adjudicated, but the use of 
the entitlement is governed by the OCWD Act.  (See also, discussion of Irvine 
Subbasin in the preceding paragraph.)  A portion of the product water has been 
delivered into the IRWD potable system, and the remainder has been delivered 
into the IRWD nonpotable system. 
 
Orange Park Acres (currently available) 

 
On June 1, 2008, through annexation and merger, IRWD acquired the water 
system of the former Orange Park Acres Mutual Water company, including its 
well (“OPA Well”).  The well is operated within the Basin.   
 
Wells 21 and 22 (currently available) 

 
  In early 2013, IRWD completed construction of treatment facilities, pipelines, and 

wellhead facilities for Wells 21 and 22.  Water supplied through this project 
became available in 2013.  The wells are operated within the Basin. 

 
  Irvine Wells (under development)  
 
  (vi) IRWD is pursuing the installation of production facilities in the west Irvine, 

Tustin Legacy and Tustin Ranch portions of the Basin. These groundwater 
supplies are considered to be under development; however, four wells have been 
drilled and have previously produced groundwater, three wells have been drilled 
but have not been used as production wells to date, and a site for an additional 
well and treatment facility has been acquired by IRWD.   These production 
facilities can be constructed and operated under the Act; no statutory or 
contractual approval is required to do so.  Appropriate environmental review has 
or will be conducted for each facility.   See discussion of the Act under Potable 
Supply - Groundwater, paragraph (i), above.  

 
          •NONPOTABLE SUPPLY - RECYCLED 
 
  Water Recycling Plants (currently available) 
 

Water Code Section 1210. IRWD supplies its own recycled water from sewage 
collected by IRWD and delivered to IRWD’s Michelson Water Recycling Plant 
(“MWRP”) and Los Alisos Water Recycling Plant (“LAWRP”).  Under the recently 
completed MWRP Phase II Capacity Expansion Project, IRWD increased its 
tertiary treatment capacity on the existing MWRP site to produce sufficient 
recycled water to meet the projected demand through the year 2044. MWRP 
currently has a permitted tertiary capacity of 28 million gallons per day (“MGD”) 
and LAWRP currently has a permitted tertiary capacity of 5.5 MGD.  Water Code 
Section 1210 provides that the owner of a sewage treatment plant operated for 
the purposes of treating wastes from a sanitary sewer system holds the exclusive 
right to the treated effluent as against anyone who has supplied the water 
discharged into the sewer system.  IRWD’s permits for the operation of MWRP 
and LAWRP allow only irrigation and other customer uses of recycled water, and 
do not permit stream discharge of recycled water under normal conditions; thus, 
no issue of downstream appropriation arises, and IRWD is entitled to deliver all 
of the effluent to meet contractual and customer demands.  Additional 

D-29



30 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

reclamation capacity will augment local nonpotable supplies and improve 
reliability. 

 
          •NONPOTABLE SUPPLY - IMPORTED9 
 
  Baker Pipeline (currently available) 
 

Santiago Aqueduct Commission (“SAC”) Joint Powers Agreement, dated 
September 11, 1961, as amended December 20, 1974, January 13, 1978, 
November 1, 1978, September 1, 1981, October 22, 1986, and July 8, 1999 (the 
“SAC Agreement”); Agreement Between Irvine Ranch Water District and Carma-
Whiting Joint Venture Relative to Proposed Annexation of Certain Property to 
Irvine Ranch Water District, dated May 26, 1981 (the “Whiting Annexation 
Agreement”);  service connections OC-13/13A, OC-33/33A.  The imported 
untreated water pipeline initially known as the Santiago Aqueduct and now 
known as the Baker Pipeline was constructed under the SAC Agreement, a joint 
powers agreement. The Baker Pipeline is connected to MWD’s Santiago Lateral.  
IRWD’s capacity in the Baker Pipeline includes the capacity it subleases as 
successor to LAWD, as well as capacity rights IRWD acquired through the 
Whiting Annexation Agreement.  (To finance the construction of AMP parallel 
untreated reaches which were incorporated into the Baker Pipeline, replacing 
original SAC untreated reaches that were made a part of the AMP potable 
system, it was provided that the MWDOC Water Facilities Corporation, and 
subsequently MWDOC, would have ownership, and the participants would be 
sublessees.)  IRWD’s original capacities in the Baker Pipeline include 52.70 cfs 
in the first reach, 12.50 cfs in each of the second, third and fourth reaches and 
7.51 cfs in the fifth reach of the Baker Pipeline.  These existing Baker Pipeline 
capacities have been apportioned to the Baker WTP participants based on Baker 
WTP capacity ownership.  IRWD retains 10.5 cfs of the pipeline capacity for 
potable supply through the Baker WTP and retains 36 cfs in Reach 1U of the 
Baker Pipeline capacity for nonpotable supply (See also footnote 8, page 27).  In 
2023, IRWD executed an Agreement that sells 3 cfs to South County agencies, 
leaving 7.5 cfs for daily use for IRWD.  However, should an emergency arise, 
IRWD retains the right to use the 3 cfs sold. Water is subject to availability from 
MWD.           
 
•NONPOTABLE SUPPLY - NATIVE 

 
  Irvine Lake (currently available) 
 
  (i) Permit For Diversion and Use of Water (“Permit No. 19306”) issued pursuant 

to Application No. 27503; License For Diversion and Use of Water (“License 
2347”) resulting from Application No. 4302 and Permit No. 3238;  License For 
Diversion and Use of Water (“License 2348”) resulting from Application No. 9005 
and Permit No. 5202. The foregoing permit and licenses, jointly held by IRWD 
(as successor to The Irvine Company (“TIC”) and Carpenter Irrigation District 
(“CID”)) and Serrano Water District (“SWD”), secure appropriative rights to the 

 
9 See Imported Supply - Additional Information, below, for information concerning the availability of the MWD 
supply. 

D-30



31 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

flows of Santiago Creek.  Under Licenses 2347 and 2348, IRWD and SWD have 
the right to diversion by storage at Santiago Dam (Irvine Lake) and a submerged 
dam, of a total of 25,000 AFY.  Under Permit No. 19306, IRWD and SWD have 
the right to diversion by storage of an additional 3,000 AFY by flashboards at 
Santiago Dam (Irvine Lake). (Rights under Permit No. 19306 may be junior to an 
OCWD permit to divert up to 35,000 AFY of Santiago Creek flows to spreading 
pits downstream of Santiago Dam.)  The combined total of native water that may 
be diverted to storage under these licenses and permit is 28,000 AFY. A 1996 
amendment to License Nos. 2347, 2348 and 2349 [replaced by Permit No. 19306 
in 1984] limits the withdrawal of water from the Lake to 15,483 AFY under the 
licenses.  This limitation specifically references the licenses and doesn’t 
reference water stored pursuant to other legal entitlements.  The use and 
allocation of the native water is governed by the agreements described in the 
next paragraph. 

 
  (ii) Agreement, dated February 6, 1928 (“1928 Agreement”); Agreement, dated 

May 15, 1956, as amended November 12, 1973 (“1956 Agreement”); Agreement, 
dated as of December 21, 1970 (“1970 Agreement”); Agreement Between Irvine 
Ranch Water District and The Irvine Company Relative to Irvine Lake and the 
Acquisition of Water Rights In and To Santiago Creek, As Well As Additional 
Storage Capacity in Irvine Lake, dated as of May 31, 1974 (“1974 Agreement”). 
The 1928 Agreement was entered into among SWD, CID and TIC, providing for 
the use and allocation of native water in Irvine Lake. Through the 1970 
Agreement and the 1974 Agreement, IRWD acquired the interests of CID and 
TIC, leaving IRWD and SWD as the two co-owners. TIC retains certain reserved 
rights.  The 1928 Agreement divides the stored native water by a formula which 
allocates to IRWD one-half of the first 1,000 AF, plus increments that generally 
yield three-fourths of the amount over 1,000 AF.10   The agreements also provide 
for evaporation and spill losses and carryover water remaining in the Lake at the 
annual allocation dates.  Given the dependence of native water on rainfall, for 
purposes of this assessment only a small portion of IRWD’s share of the 28,000 
AFY of native water rights (3,048 AFY in normal years and 1,000 AFY in single 
and multiple-dry years) is shown in currently available supplies, based on 
averaging of historical data.  However, IRWD’s ability to supplement Irvine Lake 
storage with its imported untreated water supplies, described herein, offsets the 
uncertainty associated with the native water supply. 

 
          •NONPOTABLE SUPPLY - GROUNDWATER 
 
  Irvine Subbasin / Irvine Desalter (currently available) 
 
  (i) IRWD’s entitlement to produce nonpotable water from the Irvine Subbasin is 

included within the Irvine Subbasin Agreement.  See discussion of the Irvine 
Subbasin Agreement under Potable Supply - Groundwater; paragraph (iv), 
above. 

 
 

10 The 1956 Agreement provides for facilities to deliver MWD imported water into Irvine Lake, and grants 
storage capacity for the imported water.  By succession, IRWD owns 9,000 AFY of this 12,000 AFY imported water 
storage capacity.  This storage capacity does not affect availability of the imported supply, which can be either stored 
or delivered for direct use by customers. 

D-31



32 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

  (ii) See discussion of the Irvine Desalter project under Potable Supply - 
Groundwater, paragraph (v), above.  The Irvine Desalter project will produce 
nonpotable as well as potable water. 
 

          •IMPORTED SUPPLY - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

  As described above, the imported supply from MWD is contractually subject to 
availability.  To assist local water providers in assessing the adequacy of local 
water supplies that are reliant in whole or in part on MWD’s imported supply, 
MWD has provided information concerning the availability of the supplies to its 
entire service area.  In the MWD 2020 UWMP, MWD has extended its planning 
timeframe out through 2045 to ensure that the MWD 2020 UWMP may be used 
as a source document for meeting requirements for sufficient supplies.   In 
addition, the MWD 2020 UWMP includes “Justifications for Supply Projections” 
(Appendix A-3) that details the planning, legal, financial, and regulatory basis for 
including each source of supply in the plan.  The MWD 2020 UWMP summarizes 
MWD’s planning initiatives over the past 15 years, which includes the Integrated 
Resources Plan (IRP), the IRP 2015 Update, the WSDM Plan, Strategic Plan and 
Rate Structure.   The reliability analysis in MWD’s 2015 IRP Update shows that 
MWD can maintain reliable supplies under the conditions that have existed in 
past dry periods throughout the period through 2040.  The MWD 2020 UWMP 
includes tables that show the region can provide reliable supplies under both the 
single driest year (1977) and multiple dry years (1990-92) through 2045.  MWD 
has also identified buffer supplies, including additional State Water Project 
groundwater storage and transfers that could serve to supply the additional water 
needed.   

   
  It is anticipated that MWD will revise its regional supply availability analysis 

periodically, if needed, to supplement the MWD 2020 UWMP in years when the 
MWD UWMP is not being updated. 

 
  IRWD is permitted by the statute (Wat. Code, § 10610 et seq.) to rely upon the 

water supply information provided by the wholesaler concerning a wholesale 
water supply source, for use in preparing its UWMPs.  In turn, the statute 
provides for the use of UWMP information to support water supply assessments 
and verifications. In accordance with these provisions, IRWD is entitled to rely 
upon the conclusions of the MWD UWMP.  As referenced above under Summary 
of Results of Demand-Supply Comparisons - Actions on Delta Pumping, MWD 
has provided additional information on its imported water supply. 

   
  MWD’s reserve supplies, together with the fact that IRWD relies on MWD 

supplies as supplemental supplies that need not be used to the extent IRWD 
operates currently available and under-development local supplies, build a 
margin of safety into IRWD’s supply availability. 
 

    (2) Adopted capital outlay program to finance delivery of the water supplies. 
 
  All necessary delivery facilities currently exist for the use of the currently 

available and under-development supplies assessed herein, with the exception of 
future groundwater wells, and IRWD sub-regional and developer-dedicated 
conveyance facilities necessary to complete the local distribution systems for the 

D-32



33 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

Project.  IRWD’s turnout at each MWD connection and IRWD’s regional delivery 
facilities are sufficiently sized to deliver all of the supply to the sub-regional and 
local distribution systems. 

   
  With respect to future groundwater well projects (PR Nos. 11828 and 11829), 

IRWD adopted its fiscal year 2023-24 capital budget on April 24, 2023 
(Resolution No. 2023-6), budgeting portions of the funds for such projects. (A 
copy is available from IRWD on request.)  For these facilities, as well as unbuilt 
IRWD sub-regional conveyance facilities, the sources of funding are previously 
authorized general obligation bonds, revenue-supported certificates of 
participation and/or capital funds held by IRWD Improvement Districts.  IRWD 
has maintained a successful program for the issuance of general obligation 
bonds and certificates of participation on favorable borrowing terms, and IRWD 
has received AAA public bond ratings.  IRWD has approximately $585.5 million 
(water) and $711.1 million (recycled water) of unissued, voter-approved general 
obligation bond authorization.  Certificates of participation do not require voter 
approval.  Proceeds of bonds and available capital funds are expected to be 
sufficient to fund all IRWD facilities for delivery of the supplies under 
development.  Tract-level conveyance facilities are required to be donated to 
IRWD by the Applicant or its successor(s) at time of development.  

 
See also the MWD 2020 UWMP, Appendix A.3 Justifications for Supply Projections 
with respect to capital outlay programs related to MWD’s supplies.  

  
    (3) Federal, state and local permits for construction of delivery infrastructure.  
 
  Most IRWD delivery facilities are constructed in public right-of-way or future right-

of-way.  State statute confers on IRWD the right to construct works along, under 
or across any stream of water, watercourse, street, avenue, highway, railway, 
canal, ditch, or flume (Water Code Section 35603).  Although this right cannot be 
denied, local agencies may require encroachment permits when work is to be 
performed within a street.  If easements are necessary for delivery infrastructure, 
IRWD requires the developer to provide them.  The crossing of watercourses or 
areas with protected species requires federal and/or state permits as applicable. 

 
See also the MWD 2020 UWMP, Appendix A.3 Justifications for Supply Projections 
with respect to permits related to MWD’s supplies.  

 
    (4) Regulatory approvals for conveyance or delivery of the supplies. 
 
  See response to preceding item (3). Additionally, in general, supplies under 

development may necessitate the preparation and completion of environmental 
documents and/or regulatory approvals prior to full construction and 
implementation.  IRWD obtains such approvals when required, and copies of 
documents pertaining to approvals can be obtained from IRWD.  

 
See also the MWD 2020 UWMP, Appendix A.3 Justifications for Supply Projections 
with respect to regulatory approvals related to MWD’s supplies. 

 
 
 

D-33



34 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

3. Other users and contractholders (identified supply not previously used). 
 

For each of the water supply sources identified by IRWD, if no water has been received 
from that source(s), IRWD is required to identify other public water systems or water 
service contractholders that receive a water supply from, or have existing water supply 
entitlements, water rights and water service contracts to, that source(s):  

 
  Water has been received from all listed sources.  A small quantity of Subbasin 

water is used by Woodbridge Village Association for the purpose of supplying its 
North and South Lakes.  There are no other public water systems or water 
service contractholders that receive a water supply from, or have existing water 
supply entitlements, water rights and water service contracts to, the Irvine 
Subbasin. 

 
4. Information concerning groundwater included in the supply identified for 

the Project: 
 

(a) Relevant information in the Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP):   
 
  See Irvine Ranch Water District 2020 UWMP, section 6.2. 
 

(b) Description of the groundwater basin(s) from which the Project will be supplied: 
 
  The Orange County Groundwater Basin (“Basin”) is described in the Orange 

County Water District Groundwater Management Plan (“GMP”) 2015 Update, 
dated June 17, 201511.  The rights of the producers within the Basin vis a vis one 
another have not been adjudicated.  The Basin is managed by the Orange 
County Water District (“OCWD”) for the benefit of municipal, agricultural, and 
private groundwater producers.  OCWD is responsible for the protection of water 
rights to the Santa Ana River in Orange County as well as the management and 
replenishment of the Basin.  Current production from the Basin is approximately 
260,000 AFY. 

 
The DWR has not identified the Basin as “critically overdrafted,” and has not 
identified the Basin as overdrafted in its most current bulletin that characterizes 
the condition of the Basin, Bulletin 118.  The efforts being undertaken by OCWD 
to avoid long-term overdraft in the Basin are described in the OCWD GMP 2015 
Update and OCWD Master Plan Report (“MPR”), including in particular, Chapters 
4, 5, 6, 14 and 15 of the MPR.  OCWD has also prepared a Long Term Facilities 
Plan (“LTFP”) which was received by the OCWD Board in July 2009 and was last 
updated in November 2014.  The LTFP Chapter 3 describes the efforts being 
undertaken by OCWD to eliminate long-term overdraft in the Basin.  See also 
following section on “Sustainable Groundwater Management Act”. 

   
  Although the water supply assessment statute (Water Code Section 10910(f)) 

refers to elimination of “long-term overdraft,” overdraft includes conditions which 
may be managed for optimum basin storage, rather than eliminated.  OCWD’s 
Act defines annual groundwater overdraft to be the quantity by which production 

 
11 OCWD has also prepared a Long-Term Facilities Plan which was received and filed by its Board in July 2009, and 
last updated in November 2014.   

D-34



35 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

exceeds the natural replenishment of the Basin.  Accumulated overdraft is 
defined in the OCWD Act to be the quantity of water needed in the groundwater 
basin forebay to prevent landward movement of seawater into the fresh 
groundwater body.  However, seawater intrusion control facilities have been 
constructed by OCWD since the Act was written and have been effective in 
preventing landward movement of seawater.  These facilities allow greater 
utilization of the storage capacity of the Basin. 

 
  OCWD has invested over $250 million in seawater intrusion control (injection 

barriers), recharge facilities, laboratories, and Basin monitoring to effectively 
manage the Basin.  Consequently, although the Basin is defined to be in an 
“overdraft” condition, it is actually managed to allow utilization of up to 500,000 
acre-feet of storage capacity of the basin during dry periods, acting as an 
underground reservoir and buffer against drought.  OCWD has an optimal basin 
management target of 100,000 acre-feet of accumulated overdraft provides 
sufficient storage space to accommodate increased supplies from one wet year 
while also provide enough water in storage to offset decreased supplies during a 
two- to three year drought.  If the Basin is too full, artesian conditions can occur 
along the coastal area, causing rising water and water logging, an adverse 
condition.   Since the formation of OCWD in 1933, OCWD has made substantial 
investment in facilities, Basin management and water rights protection, resulting 
in the elimination and prevention of adverse long-term “mining” overdraft 
conditions.  OCWD continues to develop new replenishment supplies, recharge 
capacity and basin protection measures to meet projected production from the 
basin during normal rainfall and drought periods.  (OCWD GMP, OCWD MPR 
and LTFP) 

 
OCWD’s efforts include ongoing replenishment programs and planned capital 
improvements.  It should be noted under OCWD’s management of overdraft to 
maximize the Basin’s use for annual production and recharge operations, 
overdraft varies over time as the Basin is managed to keep it in balance over the 
long term.  The Basin is not operated on an annual safe-yield basis.  (OCWD 
GMP, OCWD MPR, section 3.2 and LTFP, section 6).  See also the following 
section on “Sustainable Groundwater Management Act”. 

 
(c) Description and analysis of the amount and location of groundwater pumped by 
IRWD from the Basin for the past five years: 

 
  The following table shows the amounts pumped, by groundwater source since 
the year 2002:  
 

(In AFY)  

Year (ending 6/30) DRWF/DATS/
OPA/21-22 

Irvine Subbasin (IRWD) Irvine Subbasin (TIC) LAWD12 

2023 36,558 4,692 0 0 
 

12  The water produced from IRWD’s Los Alisos wells is not included in this assessment. IRWD is presently 
evaluating the future use of these wells. 

 

D-35



36 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

2022 35,344 5,159 0 0 
2021 38,722 3,644 0 0 
2020 33,975 4,005 0 0 
2019 38,603 3,961 0 0 
2018 38,196 4,619 0 0 
2017 39,787 4,077 0 169 
2016 37,216 4,672 0 307 
2015 40,656 9,840 0 336 
2014 42,424 10,995 0 376 
2013 38,617 8,629 0 282 
2012 37,059 7,059 0 0 
2011 34,275 7,055 0 0 
2010 37,151 8,695 0 3 
2009 38,140 7,614 0 0 
2008 36,741 4,539 0 16 
2007 37,864 5,407 0 6 
2006 37,046 2,825 0 268 
2005 36,316 2,285 628 357 
2004 30,265 1,938 3,079 101 
2003 24,040 2,132 4,234 598 
2002 25,855 2,533 5,075 744 

 
(d) Description and analysis of the amount and location of groundwater projected to be 
pumped by IRWD from the Basin: 

 
  IRWD has a developed groundwater supply of 35,200 AFY from its Dyer Road 

Wellfield (including the Deep Aquifer Treatment System), in the main portion of 
the Basin.  

 
  Although TIC’s historical production from the Subbasin declined as its use of the 

Subbasin for agricultural water diminished, OCWD’s and other historical 
production records for the Subbasin show that production has been as high as 
13,000 AFY.  Plans are also underway to expand IRWD’s main Orange County 
Groundwater Basin supply (characterized as under-development supplies 
herein).  (See Section 2 (a) (1) herein).  IRWD anticipates the development of 
potential additional production facilities within both the main Basin and the Irvine 
Subbasin.  However, such additional facilities have not been included or relied 
upon in this assessment.  Additional groundwater development will provide an 
additional margin of safety as well as reduce future water supply costs to IRWD. 

 
The following table summarizes future IRWD groundwater production from currently available 
and under-development supplies. 

D-36



37 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

 
(In AFY) 

 
Year (ending 6/30) DRWF13 Future GW14 IDP (Potable) IDP (Nonpotable) 

2025 42,218 2,800 5,618 3,461 

2030 42,218 2,800 5,618 3,461 
2035 42,218 2,800 5,618 3,461 

2040 42,218 2,800 5,618 3,461 
  
   

(e) If not included in the 2020 UWMP, analysis of the sufficiency of groundwater 
projected to be pumped by IRWD from the Basin to meet the projected water demand of 
the Project:  

 
  See responses to 4(b) and 4(d).  
 
  The OCWD MPR and LTFP examined future Basin conditions and capabilities, 

water supply and demand, and identified projects to meet increased 
replenishment needs of the basin.  With the implementation of OCWD’s preferred 
projects, the Basin yield in the year 2025 would be up to 500,000 AF.  The 
amount that can be produced will be a function of which projects will be 
implemented by OCWD and how much increased recharge capacity is created 
by those projects, total demands by all producers, and the resulting Basin 
Production Percentage (“BPP”) that OCWD sets based on these factors.15        

  Sufficient replenishment supplies are projected by the OCWD MPR to be 
available to OCWD to meet the increasing demand on the Basin.  These supplies 
include capture of increasing Santa Ana River flows, purchases of replenishment 
water from MWD, and development of new local supplies.  In 2008, OCWD 
began operating its replenishment supply project, the Groundwater 
Replenishment System project (“GWRS”).  The GWRS currently produces 
approximately 100,000 AFY of new replenishment supply from recycled water 
(OCWD GMP).  

   
  Production of groundwater can exceed applicable basin production percentages 

on a short-term basis, providing additional reliability during dry years or 
emergencies.  Additional groundwater production is anticipated by OCWD in the 

 
13 See Potable Supply - Groundwater, paragraph (iii), above. DRWF non-colored production above 28,000 
AFY and colored water production above 8,000 AFY are subject to contractually-imposed assessments.  In addition, 
seasonal production amounts apply.  This also includes 3,200 AFY for the OPA well and 2,800 AFY for Wells 21 & 
22.  

14 Under-development. 

15  OCWD has adopted a basin production percentage of 85% for 2023-24.  In prior years OCWD has 
maintained a basin production percentage that is lower than the current percentage, and IRWD anticipates that such 
reductions may occur from time to time as a temporary measure employed by OCWD to encourage lower pumping 
levels as OCWD implements other measures to reduce the current accumulated overdraft in the Basin.  Any such 
reductions are not expected to affect any of IRWD’s currently available groundwater supplies listed in this 
assessment, which are subject to a contractually-set equivalent basin production percentage as described or are 
exempt from the basin production percentage. 

D-37



38 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

Basin in dry years, as producers reduce their use of imported supplies, and the 
Basin is “mined” in anticipation of the eventual availability of replenishment water.   
(OCWD MPR, section 14.6.) 

 
  See also, Figures 1-8 hereto.  IRWD assesses sufficiency of supplies on an 

aggregated basis, as neither groundwater nor other supply sources are allocated 
to particular projects or customers.  Under the Irvine Subbasin Agreement, IRWD 
is contractually obligated to attribute the Subbasin supply only to TIC 
development projects for assessment purposes; however, the agreement does 
not allocate or assign rights in the Subbasin supply to any project. 

   
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act.  Pursuant to the Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act (“SGMA”), the DWR has designated the Orange 
County groundwater basin, Basin 8-1, as a medium priority basin for purposes of 
groundwater management.  The SGMA specifically calls for OCWD, which 
regulates the Orange County groundwater basin, to serve as the groundwater 
sustainability agency or “GSA”.  The SGMA allows Special Act Districts created 
by statute, such as OCWD, to prepare and submit an alternative to a 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (“GSP”) that is “functionally equivalent” to a 
GSP.  Basin 8-1 includes the OCWD service area and several fringe areas 
outside of OCWD that are within the Basin 8-1 boundary.  Per the requirements 
of SGMA, an Alternative Plan must encompass the entire groundwater basin as 
defined by DWR.  On January 1, 2017, OCWD and the overlying agencies within 
Basin 8-1, including IRWD, jointly prepared and submitted an alternative plan in 
compliance with SGMA (Basin 8-1 Alternative).  The Basin 8-1 Alternative was 
updated in January 2022. 
 
 

5.            This Water Supply Assessment is being completed for a project 
included in a prior water supply assessment.  Check all of the following that 
apply: 
   Changes in the Project have substantially increased water demand. 
 
   Changes in circumstances or conditions have substantially affected IRWD’s 

ability to provide a sufficient water supply for the Project. 
 
   Significant new information has become available which was not known and 

could not have been known at the date of the prior Water Supply Assessment. 
 
 
6.  References 
 
Water Resources Master Plan, Irvine Ranch Water District, Updated 2017 
            
Water Shortage Contingency Plan, Irvine Ranch Water District, June 2021 
 
2020 Urban Water Management Plan, Irvine Ranch Water District, June 2021 
 
Proposed Framework for Metropolitan Water District’s Delta Action Plan, Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California, May 8, 2007 
 

D-38



39 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

2007 IRP Implementation Report, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, October 7, 
2007 
 
2010 Integrated Resources Plan Update, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, 
October 2010 
 
2015 Integrated Resources Plan Update, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, 
January 2016 
 
2020 Integrated Water Resources Plan Regional Needs Assessment, Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California, April 2022 
 
2020 Urban Water Management Plan, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, June 
2021 
 
2020 Urban Water Management Plan, Municipal Water District of Orange County, May 2021 
 
Climate Action Plan, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, May 2022 
 
Climate Action Plan Phase 2: Climate Change Analysis Guidance, California Department of 
Water Resources, September 2018 
 
Master Plan Report, Orange County Water District, April 1999 
 
Groundwater Management Plan 2015 Update, Orange County Water District, June 2015 
 
Final Draft Long-Term Facilities Plan, Orange County Water District, January 2006 
 
Long-Term Facilities Plan 2014 Update, Orange County Water District, November 2014 
 
2021-2022 Engineer's Report on Groundwater Conditions, Water Supply and Basin Utilization in 
the Orange County Water District, Orange County Water District, February 2023 
 
Basin 8-1 Alternative, Orange County Water District, January 2017 
 
Basin 8-1 Alternative 2022 Update, Orange County Water District, January 2022 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-39



40 
 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Depiction of Project Area 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-40



City of Tustin       

   

D-41



42 

Water Supply Assessment – Tustin Market Place (2/24) 

Exhibit B 

Uses Included in Project 

D-42



D-43



D-44



D-45



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 


	Agenda
	No. 4 2023 Digital Communications Outreach
	No. 4 Exhibit A

	No. 5 Minutes
	No. 5 Exhibit A

	No. 6 2024 Legislative Update
	No. 6 Exhibit A

	No. 7 WSA Tustin Legacy & MarketPlace
	No. 7 Exhibit A
	No. 7 Exhibit B
	No. 7 Exhibit C
	No. 7 Exhibit D




